I~ocone-evnship
NS YLYAR

POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

AGENDA

October 15, 2024 6:00 p.m.

112 Township Drive | Tannersville, PA 18372
Dial-In Option: 646 558 8656
Meeting ID: 892 102 5946
Passcode: 18372
Zoom Link:
https://lus06web.zoom.us/j/8921025946?pwd=01VtaFVKVEpRWTUvdIFrSHJ1cE1Tdz09

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT

For any individuals wishing to make public comment tonight, please state the spelling of
your name and identify whether you are a taxpayer of Pocono Township.

Please limit individual comments to five (5) minutes and direct all comments to the Chair.
Public comment is not for debate or answering questions, rather it is for “comment on
matters of concern, official action or deliberation...prior to taking official action” [PA
Sunshine Act].

CORRESPONDENCE

OLD BUSINESS

= Motion to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2024 meeting of the Pocono Township
Planning Commission. (Action Item)

SEWAGE PLANNING MODULES:

Waivers of Land Development:

MTG Accounting LLC- Interior subdivision
Sanofi Pasteur — B53 Exterior Freezer Replacement

NEW PLANS

FINAL PLANS UNDER CONSIDERATION


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/8921025946?pwd=Q1VtaFVkVEpRWTUvdlFrSHJ1cE1Tdz09

Terrery Dentistry — 140 Rose Street LDP# 1433 — Motion for Acceptance & Approval (Possible
Action Item)

PRELIMINARY PLANS UNDER CONSIDERATION

¢ Cranberry Creek Apartments Land Development Plan (LDP# 1369) — Plans were administratively

accepted at the 7/25/22 P.C. meeting. Extension letter request received with approval deadline
of February 11, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 1/13/25.

Brookstead Apartments — (LDP# 1423) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 5/13/24
P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of December 9, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is
11/12/24

Tannersville Point Apartments (LDP# 1358) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
6/10/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of December 31, 2024 (Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 12/9/24)

Simpson Minor Subdivision (LDP #1426) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 7/8/24 P.C.
meeting with approval deadline of Jan 6, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration is Dec. 9, 2024.

Brookdale Spa (LDP #1425) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 9/9 24 P.C. meeting
with approval deadline of December 8, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is Nov. 12, 2024

1124 Sky View Drive Mono-pine Tower (LDP# 1424) — Plans were administratively accepted at
the 4/8/24 P.C. meeting with approval deadline of Jan. 3, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration
is 12/9/24.

Motion to table the following plans (Action Item):

611 Land Development LLC (LDP #1401) — Dual Brand Hotel — Hotel by Marriot -Plans
administratively accepted at the 4/8/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of January 18, 2025.
Deadline for P.C. consideration is 12/9/24

Alaska Pete’s Roadhouse Grille (173 Camelback Road) Land Development Plan (LDP# 1387) —
Plans were administratively accepted at the 4/10/23 P.C. meeting. Extension request received with
approval deadline of December 31, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 12/9/24.

135 Warner Road — JBAR Pocono LLC (LDP# 1414) — Plans were administratively accepted at
the 2/12/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of March 9, 2025. Deadline for P.C. consideration
is 2/10/25.

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, CONDITIONAL USE, ET AL, APPLICATIONS

PRIORITY LIST

Zoning Ordinance, Zoning Map & SALDO Amendments
o Review process will continue with Nanci Sarcinello, Sarcinello Planning & GIS Services on
the 4™ Monday of each month.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS -

NEW BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENT & ADJOURNMENT



POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Minutes
September 9, 2024

The regular meeting of the Pocono Township Planning Commission was held on Monday,
September 9, 2024 and was opened at 6:00 p.m. by Jeremy Sawicki.

ROLL CALL

Joe Folsom, present; Christina Kauffman, absent; Claire Learn, present; Chris Peechatka, present;
Dennis Purcell, present; Jeremy Sawicki, present; Kyle VanFleet, present.

Planning Commission Alternates: Bruce Kilby, present., Vacant Seat
IN ATTENDANCE

Amy Montgomery, Twp. Engineer; Lisa Pereira, Township Solicitor; Krisann MacDougall, Township
Asst. Secretary. Jerrod Belvin, Township Manager

PUBLIC COMMENT
CORRESPONDENCE

A letter was received from the daughter of Marie Guidry resigning Marie from the Planning
Commission that she has been a member of since 2013.

OLD BUSINESS

C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by D. Purcell, to approve the minutes of the August 12,
2024 meeting of the Pocono Township Planning Commission. All in favor. Motion carried.

Floor was opened for nominations for Vice Chair

C. Learn made a motion, seconded by C. Peechatka to nominate Christina Kauffman, as Vice Chair.
All in favor. Motion carried.

SKETCH PLANS
SEWAGE PLANNING MODULES

C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by C. Learn to recommend the sewage planning modules,
component 4A on Kalahari Resort/KR SPE. All in favor. Motion carried.

NEW PLANS

. Brookdale Spa (LDP #1425) — Nate Oiler with RKR Hess presented the Plans for the Spa to
the P.C. D. Purcell made a motion, seconded by C. Peechatka to accept the plan for review. All in
favor. Motion carried.

PRELIMINARY PLANS UNDER CONSIDERATION

Iroquois Ridge (LDP #1431) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 7/8/24 P.C. meeting with
approval deadline of Oct. 6, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is Sep. 9, 2024.



C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by C. Learn, to recommend approval of a waiver for Section
390-18b2c. All in favor. Motion carried.

D. Purcell made a motion, seconded by C. Peechatka, to recommend approval of the Iroquois Ridge
Lot line adjustment as per T&M'’s letter dated 9/5/24. Discussion took place. All in favor. Motion carried.

Simpson Minor Subdivision (LDP #1426) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 7/8/24 P.C.
meeting with approval deadline of Oct. 6, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is Sep. 9, 2024. J.
Sawicki made a motion, seconded by C. Peechatka, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion carried.

Cranberry Creek Apartments Land Development Plan (LDP# 1369) — Plans were administratively
accepted at the 7/25/22 P.C. meeting. Extension letter request received with approval deadline of
November 13, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 10/15/24. C. Learn made a motion.
seconded by D. Purcell, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion carried.

Brookstead Apartments — (LDP# 1423) — Plans were administratively accepted at the 5/13/24 P.C.
meeting. Approval deadline of December 9, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 11/11/24. D.
Purcell made a motion, seconded by C. Learn, to table the plan. All in favor. Motion carried.

D. Purcell made a motion, seconded by C. Peechatka, to table the following plans. All in favor.
Motion carried.

e Tannersville Point Apartments (LDP# 1358) — Plans were administratively accepted at the
6/10/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of December 31, 2024 (Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 12/9/24)

e 611 Land Development LLC (LDP #1401) — Dual Brand Hotel — Hotel by Marriot -Plans
administratively accepted at the 4/8/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of Nov. 14, 2024.
Deadline for P.C. consideration is 10/15/24

» Alaska Pete’s Roadhouse Grille (173 Camelback Road) Land Development Plan (LDP# 1387) —
Plans were administratively accepted at the 4/10/23 P.C. meeting. Extension request received with
approval deadline of December 31, 2024. Deadline for P.C. consideration is 12/9/24.

e 135 Warner Road — JBAR Pocono LLC (LDP# 1414) — Plans were administratively accepted at
the 2/12/24 P.C. meeting. Approval deadline of March 12, 2025. Deadline for P.C.
consideration is 2/10/25.

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, CONDITIONAL USE, ET AL, APPLICATIONS - None

PRIORITY LIST
= Zoning Ordinance, Zoning Map & SALDO Amendments
o The review process will continue with Nanci Sarcinello, Sarcinello Planning & GIS Services
on the 4" Monday of each month.
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
ZONING HEARING BOARD SCHEDULE
NEW BUSINESS — Welcome to Kyle VanFleet as a full-time member of the Planning Commission.
PUBLIC COMMENT - E. Gnandt requested information on the status of the Cell Tower.
ADJOURNMENT

C. Peechatka made a motion, seconded by C. Learn, to adjourn the meeting at 6:25 p.m. All in favor.
Motion carried.




- YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

N
T~
/I n
September 16, 2

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: MTG INVESTMENT PROPERTY - 3199 ROUTE 611
LAND DEVELOPMENT WAIVER REVIEW NO. 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0910

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have reviewed a Waiver of Land Development Application for the above
referenced project. The submitted information consists of the following items.

e Pocono Township Waiver of Land Development Application.
e  Written Description of Proposal.

e Deed dated January 11, 2024.

o Interior floor spaces sketches.

e Professional Services Agreement and Escrow.

e Application Fee

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The subject parcel (Parcel ID No. 12.112544) is located at 3199 Route 611 and is owned by the applicant. It consists
of an existing office building with an associated parking lot. The Applicant is proposing to subdivide a portion of
the existing internal office space with a new wall to create a separate office space. No additional changes are
proposed.

Based upon our review of the above information, we find no engineering issues with the application.

If you should have any questions, please call me.

incerely,
OV g,

Jon S.Wresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/arm

cc: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
MTG Investment Property — Owner/Applicant
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates

Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. - T&M Associates
G:\Projects\POCOYR09 10\Correspondence\M TG Investment Property LD Waiver 3199 Rte 611.docx

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 & 6106252999 Ml 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com




23 SRBR DL
R o s
N

FoINO

September 24, 2024
Pocono Township Planning Commission

Re:  MTP Investment Property — 3199 Route 611
Land Development Waiver Application
PIN #12637100791658, Tax ID 12.112544

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have reviewed the Waiver of Land Development
Application for the above-referenced project. Based on our review of the information provided, we find
no apparent zoning or building code related issues with the application and recommend approval of the
waiver request. However, we do offer the following comments:

1. The minimum parking requirements specified in §470-34(A) of the Township Zoning Ordinance
will not be affected, as the calculation for off-street parking spaces for professional office uses,
excluding medical or dental offices, is 1 space per 200 square feet of total floor area.

2. The property is currently served by public water and sewer. The proposed subdivision of the
building will require additional EDUs to be purchased from those service providers.

If you have any questions, please contact the Zoning Office at (570) 629-1922 or via email at
zoning@poconopa.gov.

Sincegely,

Lindsay Scerbo gw/‘

Pocono Township Zoning Administrator
SFM Consulting LLC

Cec:  Property file
Shawn McGlynn — Township Zoning Officer
Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
MTG Investment Property — Owner/Applicant
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchinson, P.E. — T&M Associates



Z

October 9, 2024

N
N
B

YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: SANOFIBUILDING 53 EXTERIOR FREEZER REPLACEMENT
LAND DEVELOPMENT WAIVER REVIEW NO. 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0940

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have reviewed a Waiver of Land Development Application for
the above referenced project. The submitted information consists of the following items.

o Letter of Transmittal prepared by Verdantas, dated September 30, 2024.

e Pocono Township Waiver of Land Development Application with Professional Services Escrow
Agreement.

e Memo prepared by Verdantas, dated September 27, 2024.

e Property Deed, Tax [.D. Nos. 12/12/2/10-2, 12/12/2/10, 12/11/1/3, 12/11A/1/89, 12/11A/1/90,
and 12/11A/1/92-1.

o Exterior Freezer Replacement Plans prepared by Verdantas, dated June 28, 2024, revised
September 30, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The subject property has an area of 213.086 acres and is located on the western side of S.R. 0611 just
south of Lower Swiftwater Road. It consists of medical laboratories, medical manufacturing, and office
buildings with associated parking. Swiftwater Creek traverses the northern portion of the site, and areas
of wetlands exist throughout the property.

The Applicant is proposing to replace an existing 460 square foot walk-in cold room with a 1,200 square
foot freezer building. The freezer will continue to be utilized to store samples and clinical trial materials.
This project does increase the impervious area by approximately 800 square feet, however the submitted
Memo indicates a 14,800 square foot modular building known as MB-8 was previously removed and the
area is established with meadow and trees. Therefore, no increase in impervious area is proposed. No
other changes are proposed.

Based upon our review of the above information, we find no engineering issues with the application.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 I3 6106252999 [ 6106252969 K tandmassociates.com




4I\§ Pocono Township Planning Commission

Sanofi Building 53 Exterior Freezer Replacement
Land Development Waiver Application Review #

October 9, 2024

Page 2

If you should have any questions, please call me.

Sincerely,
NS NI

Jon SN Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/meh

ol Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Daniel Peletier, Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. — Owner/Applicant
Aaron M. Sisler, P.E., Verdantas — Applicant’s Engineer
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0940\CorrespondencetComment LettersiSanofi B53 Exterior Freezer Replacement LD Waiver.docex



Z%

October 8, 2024

N\
Wy
I

~ YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: TERRERY DENTISTRY, 140 ROSE STREET, LLC
PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT COMPLETENESS REVIEW & REVIEW NO. 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1433, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0920

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed a completeness review of the Preliminary/Final
Land Development Plan Application for Terrery Dentistry. The submitted information consists of the
following items.

e Pocono Township Land Development Application

e Cover letter prepared by D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC, dated October 1, 2024.

e Waiver Request Letter prepared by D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC, dated September
17,2024

e Stormwater Summary prepared by D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC.
e Property Deed, Deed Book 2643, Page 857.

e Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan (8 sheets) prepared by D&D Engineering & General
Construction, LLC, dated September 4, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, Michael Terrery Dentistry PC, is proposing a land development at property located on the
eastern side of the Rose Street cul-de-sac.

The existing property has an area of 1.179 acres, is located within the C, Commercial Zoning District, and
is part of the Hillside Business Park located along the eastern side of S.R. 0611. The existing property
includes an office building with a 33 space parking lot taking access from Rose Street. The existing office
building is served by on-lot well and on-lot sewage disposal. The remainder of the property consists of
lawn and woodlands.

The proposed development will convert the existing office building into a dental office to support Terrery
Dentistry previously located at Fountain Court. The proposed improvements include:

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 ﬂ 610.625.2999 [l 610.625.2969 tandmassociates.com



%i\§ Pocono Township Planning Commission

'. Terrery Dentistry, 140 Rose Street, LLC
Preliminary/Final Land Development Completeness Review & Review No. 1

October 8, 2024

Page 2 of 5

e Demolition of 120 square feet + of the existing building and approximately 993 square feet of
sidewalk and parking area.

o Construction of a 770 square foot building addition to be utilized as office space.
e Construction of a 480 square foot garage (2 parking spaces).

e Modification of the existing parking lot with a reduction of parking spaces. The proposed number
of surface parking spaces is 29.

The proposed use will continue being served by the existing on-lot well and on-lot sewage disposal system.
The limit of disturbance will be 0.13 acres.

A business or professional office is a Principal Permitted Use within the C, Commercial Zoning District.

Based upon our review, we recommend the Planning Commission accept the Preliminary/Final Land
Development Plan for review, provided all other requirements have been met including, but not limited
to, formal written applications and application fees with establishment of an escrow to cover the costs of
review.

Given the small scope of work we have also completed our first review of the Preliminary/Final Land
Development Plan. Based upon our review of the above information, we offer the following comments
and/or recommendations for consideration.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

b In accordance with Section 470-20.E, “all proposed signs shall conform to the requirements of
Article VII of this chapter™. A note to this effect shall be placed on the plan.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINACNE COMMENTS

Waivers are requested from sections of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance as discussed
in Comments 3, 4, 5, and 10.

2. In accordance with Section 390-19.F.(6)(c), “the applicant shall be responsible for submission of
the plan and all required supporting documentation to the Monroe County Planning Commission,
the Monroe County Conservation District, PennDOT, and all other governing agencies’.
Submissions to and correspondences with the Monroe County Planning Commission shall be
provided to Pocono Township.

(O8]

In accordance with Section 390-29.F, a map compiled from existing information showing the
location of the proposed land development within its neighborhood context shall be submitted. For
sites under 100 acres in area, such maps shall show the relationship of the subject property to
natural and man-made features existing within 1,000 feet of the site. For sites of 100 acres or more,
the map shall show the above relationships within 2,000 feet of the site. The features that shall be
shown on site context maps include topography (from USGS. maps), stream valleys, wetland
complexes (from maps published by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service or the USDA
Natural Resources Conservation Service), woodlands over 1/2 acre in area (from aerial



10.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Terrery Dentistry, 140 Rose Street, LLC

Preliminary/Final Land Development Completeness Review & Review No. |
October 8, 2024
Page 3 of 5

photographs), ridgelines, public roads and trails, utility easements and rights-of-way, public land,
and land protected under conservation easements.” A waiver from Section 390-29.F is being
requested.

In accordance with Section 390-29.G, “for all land developments, an existing resources and site
analysis shall be prepared to provide the developer and the municipality with a comprehensive
analysis of existing conditions, both on the proposed development site and within 500 feet of the
site. Conditions beyond the parcel boundaries may be described on the basis of existing published
data available from governmental agencies, and from aerial photographs. The Planning
Commission shall review the plan to assess its accuracy, conformance with municipal ordinances,
and likely impact upon the natural and cultural resources on the property.” The information listed
in Subsections (1) through (12) shall be included. 4 waiver from Section 390-29.G is being
requested.

In accordance with Section 390-29.H, a Resource Impact and Conservation Analysis is required.
A waiver from Section 390-29.H is being requested.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(2), the submission shall include “exterior elevations of any
proposed buildings including at least the front and side elevations™. Proposed building elevations
shall be submitted for review.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(6), the submission shall include “proof of legal interest in
the property, a copy of the latest deed of record and a current title search report™. A title search
report shall be completed and submitted, or a waiver will be required.

In accordance with Section 390-29.N, “prior to approval of the land development plan, the
applicant shall submit to the Township a land development plan engineering certification stating
that the proposed layout of proposed roads, lots, and open lands complies with the Township's
ordinances, particularly those sections governing the design of subdivision roads and stormwater
management facilities, and that all improvements will be installed in accord with the specific
requirements of this chapter or any waivers or modifications granted by the Township. This
certification requirement is meant to provide the Township with assurance that the proposed plan
is able to be accomplished within the Township's current regulations.™ A note to this effect shall
be placed on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-32.B.(2), no final plan shall be signed by the Board of
Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds until proposed
developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with § 390-35 and the Pennsylvania
Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended, have been accepted by the Board of
Commissioners™. A/l agreements shall be executed, and financial security posted prior to plan
recordation. A construction cost estimate shall be submitted for review.

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(6)(c)[4], "no clearing or earth disturbance (except for soil
analysis for proposed sewage disposal systems) shall be permitted on a site before the completion
of subdivision and land development agreements. The determination of sight distance clearances
along roadways shall be made graphically and not by clearing on site prior to final plan approval.”
A waiver from Section 390-43.4.(6)(c)[4] is being requested.



11

-/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Terrery Dentistry, 140 Rose Street, LLC

Preliminary/Final Land Development Completeness Review & Review No. |
October 8, 2024

Page 4 of 5

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(6)(f), “natural areas containing rare or endangered plants
and animals, as well as other features of natural significance exist throughout the Township. Some
of these have been carefully documented (e.g., by the Statewide Natural Diversity Inventory),
whereas for others, only the general locations are known. Subdivision applicants shall take all
reasonable measures to protect significant natural areas and features either identified by the
Township Map of Potential Conservation Lands or by the applicant's existing resources and site
analysis plan by incorporating them into proposed conservation open space areas or avoiding their
disturbance in areas proposed for development.” The required PNDI search shall be submitted,
or a waiver will be required.

In accordance with Section 390-55.D.(1)(a), street trees are required along all existing streets
abutting or within the proposed subdivision or land development. Per Section 390-55.D.(3)(d),
“trees shall be planted at a ratio of at least one tree per 50 linear feet of frontage or fraction thereof.
Trees shall be distributed along the entire frontage of the property, although they need not be
evenly spaced.” Four (4) street trees are required along Rose Street (168-feet ). One (1)
deciduous and two (2) evergreen trees exist within 15-feet of the street right-of-way (Section 390-
55.D.(3)(a)), and woodlands exist at the southern corner of the property.

In accordance with Section 390-55.D.(2), “the street tree requirement may be waived by the
Township where existing vegetation is considered sufficient to provide effective screening and to
maintain scenic views of open space, natural features, or other valued features™. The required
street trees shall be provided, or a waiver will be required.

[n accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3), property line buffers are required for all nonresidential
development. The following buffers are required per Table 390-55-1.

a. Ten (10) foot wide low intensity buffers are required along the western and eastern property
lines shared with Parcel Nos. 12.94231 and 12.94229, respectively (commercial).

b. A 20-foot wide high intensity buffer is required along the northern property line shared
with Parcel No. 12.6A.2.16 (residential).

c. A 20-foot wide medium intensity buffer is required between the parking lot and the Rose
Street Right-of-Way.

The required buffers shall be provided. Alternatively, and per Section 390-55.F.(3)(g), “existing
healthy trees, shrubs, or woodlands may be substituted for part or all of the required plants with
the approval of the Township. The minimum quantities and/or visual effect of the existing
vegetation shall be equal to or exceed that of the required buffer as determined by the Township. ™

STORMWATER MANGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

14.

In accordance with Section 365-4.E.(6), the proposed redevelopment is a regulated activity. “Any
redevelopment that does not increase the runoff must still comply with § 365-10, Water quality
and stream-bank erosion, and § 365-11, Groundwater recharge, infiltration and bioretention.” No
stormwater management is proposed, and a waiver is required.

The decrease in impervious area by demolishing the existing sidewalk and portions of the parking



A, Pocono Township Planning Commission
I'\. Terrery Dentistry, 140 Rose Street, LLC
Preliminary/Final Land Development Completeness Review & Review No. |

October 3, 2024

Page 5 of 5

area and the addition to the existing building and of the proposed garage creates a negligible
increase in impervious area (0.003 acres).

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

15. On Sheet 6, refer to E&S Maintenance & Inspection Note “Refer to the individual maintenance
and inspection note for each BMP within the detailed specification on Sheets 9-117. Sheets 9-11
are not provided in this plan set and the note shall be revised.

16. On Sheet 8, the nomenclature of the ADA van accessible plaque referenced in the ADA Sign Detail
shall be revised for consistency with the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation’s Handbook
of Approved Signs (Publication 236).

17. Sidewalk and handicap ramp details shall be provided on the plan. The concrete shall be Type S
per the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation Publication 408.

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with
the intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the nature of the comments
in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to
approval of the Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

[f you should have any questions regarding the above comments, please call me.

Sincerely,

\EM

Jon S. Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/meh

ge: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
140 Rose Street, LLC — Owner/Applicant
Deanna L. Schmoyer, P.E. - D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC, Applicant’s Engineer
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects: POCO'\R0920:Correspondence\Comment Letters\Terrery Dental LDP Plan Acceptance and Review No. 1.doex



POCONO TOWNSHIP
WAIVER OF LAND DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Certain improvements to existing non-residential structures may be eligible for a Waiver of the requirements of Chapter
350 Subdivision and Land Development. To be eligible for consideration of a Waiver of Land Development, a proposed
division of space or leasehold, building addition or site alteration shall not result in any of the following:

a. A requirement for additional parking;

b Development within flood-prone or wetland areas;

c Activities that would require the submission of a stormwater management site plan per Chapter 365;

d. Installation of new access drives providing vehicular access to/or from a public right-of-way;

e An increase in water consumption of sewage discharge exceeding 247 gallons per day;

f. Changes to utility services including new service laterals to increase capacity or provide fire protection;

g An expansion involving additional occupied space.

Additionally, neither the Owner, the Applicant, nor the property shall have any open violations of any type.

and described below:

1. TaxParcel: (2. 74230 County Deed Book No.: 2¢4 3
Volume No.: 2643 Page No.: _@&x7
Zoning District: < Area to be Developed or Subdivided, Gross: (. 179 4. Net: /-179 4 (E¥. "°TJ

2. Name of Property Owner(s) of Record: __ [0 fosg STREET (te.
(If corporation, provide corporations’ name and address and twao officers of corporation)

Address: (42 posg STRERT Stotpury P {8355

Email Address: _ M3 TBMD Q. pro. pg— Phone No..__(570) 27%- 1697

3. Name of Applicant, if different than Owner:_ /™l pipL T‘F-\Lﬁﬁ:\"*’i -DENﬁSTm}/ Pc

Address: (Yo Rosg  steger Swnwy Ph |82¢es

Email Address: __mWSTOMD C pD, MRT Phone No.:_Cf 70) 279- /897

4. Applicant’s interest, if other than Owner:

5. Engineer, Architect, Land Surveyor, or Landscape Architect responsible for plan:
DD ERECIPEREIVG 2__GENERNC Cop STIWC TN L eLe.

‘Address: 48 CLquuJ\L IR STROVDSZORGL  Ph- (630

Email Address: DEA-NNAgcv\erfEﬂ-@—‘fp,woo_ Com  PhoneNo.._ 70— 236-7osg

112 TOWNSHIP DRIVE, TANNERSVILLE, PA 18372 rev. 06/2024
PHONE (570) 629-1922 FAX (570) 629-7325



6. Name of Attorney (optional):

Address:

Email Address: Phone No.:

7. Brief project description describing the proposed intent of the project and all proposed improvements:
SEE  PrMonvE / CRTRA.

8. Type of water supply
proposed: Public (Municipal) Private (Centralized) & Individual (On Site)

9. Type of sanitary sewage
Disposal proposed: Public (Municipal) Private (Centralized) _ X Individual (On Site)

10. Have appropriate public utilities been consulted: ¥ Yes No

11. Material accompanying this Land Development Waiver Application:

a) A Plan -5 copies

b) pod Copy of Deed with any Restrictive Covenants— 2 copies
c) X Written Description of Proposal — 5 copies

d) >~ Application Fee

e) v Professional Services Agreement and Escrow

f) Other

12. List basis for Request of Waiver of Land Development:
SEE Nppaive [ LATRA

The undersigned represents that to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, all the above statements are true
and correct, and complete.

BAL .

Date: _ Ocropre 1, 2029 By: T Ry <°“N‘ff‘k [z A9 \CAMT
Printed Name \/ “
/
U / / Signature

For Office Use Only:
Date Received: By:
Distribution: Township Engineer

Township Solicitor

Zoning Officer

Sewer Department or SEQ

Public Works

Fire Company

112 TOWNSHIP DRIV E, TANNERSVILLE, PA 18372 rev. 06/2024

PHONE (570) 629-1922 FAX (570) 629-7325



Engineering & General Construction, LLC

October 1, 2024

Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

Project: Terrery Dentistry Land Development Plan

Dear Board of Supervisors,

On behalf of our applicant, Michael Terrery Dentistry PC, we request a Land Development Plan
submission waiver. The waiver is requested due to a hardship associated with the replacement of their
existing office that was destroyed by fire. Michael Terrery Dentistry PC purchased the existing
building/lot located at 140 Rose Street to replace the existing office. Alterations are required to the
existing building to convert it from an existing office space to a Dentist’s office, including an
approximately 770-sf addition. The office would not be able to open without the use of the additional
770-sf space, since it is required for the overall function of their business.

The waiver form has been attached to this letter, of which we meet all criteria of the waiver except for
part g) specifying an expansion involving additional occupied space. But it should be noted that the
conversion from the existing use of the building as a professional office to a Dentist’s office is a re-
allocation of the existing spaces that were previously considered offices and now includes spaces that
will not be occupied in the same manner. Examples of this includes conversions of the existing office

spaces to “sterile rooms”, “x-ray rooms, “lab”, which will not have occupants in comparison to the
existing office use.

The following is a summary of the project and the supporting information to the Waiver Request. Land
Development plans have been submitted along with the Waiver Request for review.

Proposed Improvements:

A proposed 770-sf building addition to the existing building to accommodate the additional
requirements that are needed to make the Dentist’s office function. Example is additional rooms, such
as “Sterile rooms”, “x-ray room”, “lab”, and “reception area” that have been reconfigured in an existing
building that was allocated as offices. An approximately 480-sf garage will also be added. The site is an
existing developed site with an existing building, existing parking lot, existing utilities (including on-lot
sewer and water), and existing stormwater management controls (existing detention pond that controls
stormwater from all lots of the original subdivision).

D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC. 548 Skyhawk Trail
Phone: 570-236-7058 Stroudsburg, PA 18360



Parking:

There are 33 existing parking spaces on the site, of which 2 are ADA spaces. The proposed
improvements include a garage addition which will remove 4 of the existing parking spaces, and add 2
additional parking spaces within the garage, for a total of 31 parking spaces. In accordance with the
Pocono Township Ordinance; the required parking for a Dentist’s office is 4 parking spaces for each
practitioner and 1 parking space for each employee on peak shift. There is only one practitioner for the
building with a maximum of 11 employees on peak shift. Therefore, the required parking spaces for the
proposed Dentist’s office is 15 parking spaces. There have been 31 proposed parking spaces for the
change in use, which exceeds the Township Ordinance’s parking space requirements. There is also one
existing unloading/loading space that will be maintained in accordance with the Township’s Ordinance
requirements.

Sewer & Water:

The existing building is serviced by an existing on-lot sewer system and an on-lot well. The existing on-
lot sewage disposal system consists of a 1,000-gallon septic tank with a sewage bed of 35’ in length x 20’
in width, for a total area of 700 sf. In accordance with the percolation rate that was listed in the
originally approved design of the system (obtained through a right to know with the township) which
was 17.6 min/inch; a 700-sf absorption area would equate to treating 467 gpd maximum. The septic
tank (1,000 -gal tank) meets the requirements for a 400 gpd maximum flow generation. The original
design of the building specified a sewage flow of 200 gpd based on the existing office use, but the
system that was designed and constructed was for a sewage flow of 400 gpd.

In accordance with the Pennsylvania Code Chapter 73.17, offices generate 10 gpd of sewage flow for
each employee. The renovations to the existing building are to accommodate a Dentist’s office. The
maximum number of employees working on peak shift would be 12 employees. In accordance with the
PA Code, the sewage flow generated for the building would be 120 gpd, which is substantially less than
what the system has been designed and constructed for of 400 gpd. Therefore, it has been determined
that the sewage system at 140 Rose Street is adequate to meet the proposed sewage flows for the
future Dentist’s office.

It should be noted that the projected flows of 120 gpd is less than a single-family residential houses’

projected flows of 400 gpd. The on-lot well will be more than adequate to meet the required flows for
the Dentist’s office.

Utilities:

All other existing utilities, including electric is through the existing service connections. The proposed
770-sf building addition and garage will be serviced from or within the existing building.

Stormwater:

In accordance with the approved original subdivision plans, “Final Subdivision Plan — Hillside Business
Park”, recorded in plat book 78, pages 102 and 103, depicts that all stormwater from the lot was to
discharge to the existing detention basin. All stormwater from the lot either enters the swale located to
the rear of the existing building or existing inlets located within the parking lot. The swale and inlets all

discharge to the stormwater conveyance system located on Rose Street, which eventually discharges to
the Detention Basin.

D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC. 548 Skyhawk Trail
Phone: 570-236-7058 Stroudsburg, PA 18360



The proposed improvements include an approximately 770-sf building addition and a 480-sf garage,
with removal of a portion of the existing building, pavement, and sidewalk. The existing impervious
surfaces for the property are approximately 19,038 sf. The proposed surfaces for the property are
approximately 19,151 sf impervious. The increase in impervious is less than 0.003 acres.

The increase in impervious is negligible and would not have any impacts on the existing detention basin
routing or overall stormwater runoff for the site. Therefore, stormwater management is not required
for the proposed improvements since it was previously designed under the Subdivision Design and
previous land development for the lot.

Lighting:

The existing lighting that was originally designed as part of the original Land Development plan will be
maintained except for relocating one of the light posts.

Landscaping:

A plan was included with the land development submission showing all the existing vegetation and trees
on the lot. Additional trees were added as part of the original land development plan for both buffering
the adjacent residential properties and within the parking area. The existing trees will be maintained
except for one maple tree that will be removed for the proposed garage. A new tree has been proposed
to replace the maple tree that will be removed. Additional landscaping (shrubs) will also be provided in
front of the building between the building and the sidewalk.

Aland development plan submission has been included with the waiver request which shows all the
information summarized above

Sincerely,

Deanna L. Schmoyer, P.E.
Project Manager

D&D Engineering & General Construction, LLC. 548 Skyhawk Trail
Phone: 570-236-7058 Stroudsburg, PA 18360



09681 Vd 'OUNESANOULS

VUL SMYHAYS 875

919c£03d HIAOWHDS ) YNNY3D 3vg

"ALNIBISNOGS3Y 31314MOD ONY TINd 14300V I HOHM HOd ONY.

NOISIAN3ANS 19310 AW ¥3GNN HO 3N AS 03VdINd 3UIM NV ZONVNINO

ONINOZ dIHSNAAOL DNODOd 3HL HOIONY SNOILYINO3M INIWIO1IAZD

3nYL Y HLM3N3H GILLINENS SINIWNDOA ONY SONIMYNA G3LV13Y 1TV SY

NolLans30 ava | o TIE 5¥ NO3MIH UIBINOSIT ONY NAOHS NYTd HL LYHL AJLLYID AGTHEH |
$Z02/6 034013A3A SNV Svoshas SONVITANO3 ONY ASVEITODY 40 HA3NIONT
3UNIYNOIS SHINMO

HINNVIY

S11BNd AMVION 4O FHNIVNOIS INVN SHINWO
1o .

OIMIATY NI\ SYH LNIAOTIAZA O SHL Y1 O SNIGNOOOV 030HOD3Y 38 01 JWYS SHL STMISIA GNY NY1d ONY LIV NMO SH Ad 38 OL JWYS
311 SIOOTWONYOY 3H IVHL NOLLOZMIA SH 1V 3QVN SV 40UTHL NY1d ININAOTIAIQ NV 3HI IVHL
SMIIAZY NOISSIHINOD ONINNYTIA ALNNOD 30HNOW 'Hv1d SIHL NO 03101430 OHY ANOHS AL3JONd FH1 40 HINMO 31 1 3H LYHL AVS ONY 350430 H100
‘Mv10L “NHOMS ATNG ONIZE OHA 34v3ddY ATIVNOSH3d
___3HNLVNOIS SHIINIONT TYNOISSISONd H351430 GINSISHIGNN FHL TW 3M0430 'YZ0L " 10Ava 3HLSHLNO
Ti¥1d 30 INGN3503 VAONYOY ONY dIHSHINO 30 NOILYOLITH30

Qrvd svm 334

M3IA3Y SALNNOD 3HL ONY 1202 [EECEICES

NO M3IAZY HOJ NOISSINWOD SNINNYTd ALNNOD JONNOW
OL G3LLINBNS SYM NYd INIWAOTIAIA ONVT SHL

NOISSIWENS NVVd 40 LIAVAIZAY

"AL¥3dONd 038HNLSIA AISNOIATHL

NO 38V SLNIWIAOYJWI 1TV "HONIN JHV SINIWINOUJI QISOdOYd IHL ‘NOILYOIILSAr
*SISATYNY NOLLVANISNOD 9 1OVdN| J0MNOSTM - H'62-06¢ - NOLLDIS v

y “AL¥3dOYd 038YNLSIA AISNOINIY

NOJUH NMOHS §v 7] '133uLS 3508 Ont NO 3¥Y SINIWIAOUCWI TTV "HONIW 38V SINIWIAOYdIWI 035040¥d FHL ‘NOLLYDLILLSAF
*NVId SISATYNY 3LIS ¥ S30UN0SIY ONLLSIXI - 9'6Z-06E - NOLLDIS 't

*AL¥3dOYd GIBYNLSIA ATSNOIAIN

NO JHY SININIAOHCII TV "MONIW 38V SINIWIAOUWI 03SOdOHd THL :NOILYDILLSNN

NO QT3H SNUZIN G3SINZATY 1Y 1V *dYI SINIVHLSNOD 3LIS - 4'62-06¢ - NOLLO3S T
*3y14 ¥ A8 GIAOHLSIA SYM LVHL 301440 1SV HIFHL 40 SSOT 40 1INSIN VSt
IYASUSIY ONY MMARL 0 Blyla LI AN3WJO13A3A ANYT 03SOdONd FHL "A3AONAdY SI INIWAOTIAIA ANV IHL TILNN A3AIAOYd 38

SHINOIESWINOD 40 UYOU SHEIMOL Onoiod LON 02 TWNIJ ONV O3 LUIWY3d 38 NOILONYLSNOD 3HL LVHL ONILSIND3IY 3¥Y IM "INIWdOTIAIA

QNV1 1SVd NV NOISIAIQENS 3HL 4O L¥Vd SY 031IVASNI A1SNOIATHd IUIM HILYMWHOLS
ANV S3ILITILN AMYSSIDIN 1TV "MONIN 34V SINIWIAOUWI 03SOdONd THL ‘NOILYOLILSAr
*SINIWITUOV INIWJOTIAIA ANV HO NOISIAIQENS 0 NOLLITdWOD 4043d 3LIs
V NO 03LLIWY3d 38 TIVHS 3ONVEUNLSIA HLYVI YO ONIMVIT1D ON - (h)(2)'(s)'v'er-06¢ - NOLLO3S °4
:03153ND3Y N338 3AVH JONVNIQHO INIW4O13A3Q
ANV GNY NOISIAIGENS dIHSNMOL ONODOd 3HL WOY4 SNOILYOIJIQOW ¥O4 1S3ND3¥ ONIMOT10 3HL

TSNOLLVOIId0N H04 153N03d

o NOZMIH NAOHS 271 'L 33418 3508 0r “NVId 3LIS SHL NO NMOHS NIJ8 SVH
40 AL¥3dO¥d FHL HO4 NYd INGWEOT3A0 ONV -
O e hande MOVELIS 1O ONNYd ¥ "SINI ALYIONd JHL WON4 133404 MIAO SNIVWIYN ONDINVd LIRS 330
Q3AIAONA ONY QIMIIATH LI LYHL AJLLNID AB3UIH 300 AVNI0-LHOIY
“O314HVD AWNA NOILOW V A8 GNY G3MIIATY dIHSNMOL YO/ANY INIT ALHIJONd ANV 4O 1334 0F NIHLIM O3 LLIWY3d 38 LON TTVHS ONDIYYd 133¥18-440 °d
ONO30J 30 NOISSININOD ONINNY Y FHL '$Z07
NO 013H ONILIIN ONBNd Q3SLLHIAQY ¥ 1Y *107 3HL 40 %L'Z9 ONINIVWIY JHL dn SNV SYIHY Q3dVISANY

"%0C NYHL SS310N 38 1TVHS Ya¥Y Q3dVOSANYT WNWINIWIHL 3

NV M3IATY 40
NOISSINIOD ONINNYId dIHSNMOL ONDDOd

CHELELY S1.107 3HL ¥O4

‘%0 NVHL H31VIHO ON 38 TIVHS 3OVHIA0D SNOIAYIJII WIWIXYIW IHL '

“%%°8 MO 4S 5£2'v LV 035040¥d S| IOVHIA0D ONIaTING
*%0¥ NYHL ¥31v349 ON 38 TIvHS 39¥H3A0D ONIOTING WAWIXYIN FHL "D

“133¥1S ISON OLNO MALNI HOHM VIHY ONDINYd FHL NIHLIM STTOIHIA ¥O4 SdrHOVE ON IHY IHIHL
'S133¥1S ONILLNAY ONILSIX3
OLNO SJNXOVE 31/H3A 3LVIHO LON TTVHS SIULNIOVS ONDI¥Y FHL 40 NOIS3A FHL ONY OL SS300V LvHL ILVHLISNOW3A TIVHS LNVOI1ddY 3HL '8

‘QYOM ¥OL23T100

¥ SV HLOIM AVMTIAVYUL LOO4-+Z 3HL SLITW ANV TVAOUddY HL HLIM SYM LITULS I5OH VIA SSI00V
"SLNIW3¥INDIY LNIWINOYJNI ONY NOIS3A 133HLS HOLO3 710D HO TYIHI LYY ONIMIVAIHD OL SWHOJINOD HOIHM NY1d

AN3WJOT3A30 ANV HO NOISIAIQENS 03SOdOYd ¥ NI LIIHLS V O 'ONITTING dIHSNMOL JHL 1Y 318VTIVAY LS| NOLLYDIHISSYIO AVMAVYOY TVIDI440
JHL NI 03141LNI0I SY AYOY ¥OL93T102 "YOLIINNOD "IVIHILHY NV ¥3HLIT WO SSIDIV NIVO ONY NO LNOYS TTVHS LOYHL 1D3rENS 3HL 'V

07 3HL 40 ISMVNOLLONULSNOD TYNIOINO SHL ¥OJ NV 1d INSWJOTIAIQA GNV1 G3A0HddY

ATSNOIAINH - 107 3HL 30 INIWdOT3A30 3HL HLIM ATSNCIAINd QILLINYId SYM 35N 301440 TTYNOISSIJ0Nd) ¥2-0L¥ NOLLO3S JONVNIQHO ONINOZ

HIAWNN ISNIOM ONY FUNLYNOIS SHOAIANNS 31va

“INIWAOTIAIA ONY1 035040l IHL 40 AHVONNOE

ALY340Nd 3HL SINISTHJIY ATLI3NH0D NO ATANNS
01314 ¥ HOMd O3UYd3Yd NYTd JHL 1VHL AJILH3D ABIHIH OO VINVAIASNNIA
HOHITV. 3HL 40 HOAIAYN: : 1

NOUVOIHIIYID SHOAIAINS

JUNLYNOIS SHINMO

2NBNd AMYION 4O FUNIVNOIS NN SHINMO.

‘dHSHAOL FHL 40 1V 3HL NO NOLLDY MIHLYNA ON

HLA G3I0A 38 GNY G3LINTINN 3WOD38 TTUA dIHSNAMOL ONDOOd A8 NIAID STYAOHddY
TTv GNV ANY 03MINO3Y Sv G3NIY180 LON 3yY SLINNId QNS IHL 31 IVHI 321TV3H ONY.
3349V 0S¥ 00 ONV SIONIOV TvH3A34 HO ‘3LVIS YOO 11V ANV ANY A8 AIHINOIY
SV S11AM3d TTY NIVLEO ONY SINIWSHINOIY 11 INIWIdiil TIM SNOISSY HO SHIZH
SHH '3H L¥HL AJILY3D ABIYIH NY1d SHL NO 0310130 ONY NAOHS AL¥3ONd 3HL 40
UINMO JHL 513H L¥H1 AYS ONY 350430 HLOQ MY DL ONIGHOIDY NHOMS AINA ONIZE
OHM” 038Y3ddY ATIYNOSY3d ‘H3D(440 OINOISHIONA
3HL'IWIMOAFAROZ T doavd 3HLSHLNO

FONVoHIEIS [IWH3d GI8No38

09681 Vd 'DMNBSANOHLS VML WAYHANS 8v5.
*371 ‘NOILINYULSNOD TVHINIO ¥ ONINIINIONT aFa

9LL1—-Z¥T—008—1 @

“2u] "wayshs IIo SUQ DIONKsULS]
TI¥D_dOIS = 30VLS NOISIO NI Sivg

S3MIND3Y MY VINVATASNNIS
i0I0 NOA J¥0438 TV

379MYHQVNO S9SN ONOJOd INNOH

0002
dYW NOLLYO01

*INIWISY3 3dOTS dIILS THL NIHIIM O3 LLINYId S1 ¥IA0D ONNOYD ONLLSIXT IHL 40 FONVENNLSID ¥IHLO HO ONITTIE "ONIIVHS ‘NOLLYAVOX3
SIMUNLONHLS ON 'SNV1d 3HL NO O3LVOIANI SY INJW3SVA 3d0TS 3315 ¥ G3HSNBVLST €0} ONY 701 30V 82 %008 1¥1d NI 030003 NY1d FHL Z¢

€01 ONY 201 SIOVd ‘8. YOO8 1¥1d NI ISNOHLENOD ALNNOD JONNOW 3HL NI 300D XHvd SSINISNE JOISTIH - Nvld
NOISIAIGENS TYNI4. NY1d NOISIAKIENS TYNISINO 3HL NO 3HSIBYAST 5V SINIWISVA HO SNOLLOR1SIY 0330 AMY OL 153F8NS 51 ALY3JOHd FHL I

‘dIHSNAMOL SHL 40 L¥Vd 3H1 NO NOULOY ¥IHLYN ON HLWM GIOA
GNY TINN 3WOD38 TTIM dHSNMOL ONOIO AB NIAID STYAONAdY TTv ONV ANY NIHL ‘G3¥IND3Y SV GINIV1H0 LON 34V STYAOHJY ONY SLIWN3d
QIVS 31 IVHL 3340V GNY 3003 TMONXOV AG343H S300 ONY ‘SILLINOHLNY ONV SIIONIOV TrH3034 HO '3LYLS “TvD0T TIV ONV ANV AB G3MINOIY
SY STYAOYddY ONV S1I43d TIv NIY180 ONY SINIWIHINOIY 1TV INIWI 1| T1IM SNOISSY HO 'SHOSSTIONS 'SHITH SIH 'INVOIddY IHL 0F

"G30NINY 3HV HLOE SY "JONVNIHO ONINOZ dIHSNMOL ONOOO JHL ONY JINVNIGHO ININAOTIAIA GNY1 ONY NOISIAIJENS dIHSNMOL
ONODOd 3HL NI HLHO 135 S¥ SNOLORILSIY GNY 'SINIWININOIY 'SNOILYIND3Y 'SI1NY HL 30 TTv OL 193r8NS GNY H3ONN SINVId SHL 62

“(NOWLOISHIINI 3HL 1¥ GIAVHS) TIONVINL 1HOIS HYI1D SHL NIHLIM GINIVANIVIA 5O 031933 38 TIVHS 1334 01 ONY 1334 Z NIIMLIE INVId ¥O
GNYHS TTVA\ '3ONI3 ‘JUNLONYLS ON ‘INIWAOI3AIA ONVT 3HL MO 3ONVHINT AVMIAING 3HL Lv G3CIAOHH N338 SYH TTONVINL LHOIS MYI1O 82

‘SIONIOV TYNOLLOKISRINT IHL

40 SNOILYINO3Y N STINH 3HL OL WHONOD TIVHS ‘NOID3L0Yd 40 130 VINVATASNNd
3HL HO/GNY SHIINIONI 40 SJHOD AWHY 3HL JO NOLLDIGSISNF 3HL 01 LI3r8NS 38 TIVHS NV SNOISSY ONY SHEH SH '3d0T3A30 3HL 40
ALIIGISNOSTY 3H1 38 TIVHS HIAJOSL) ANY HOJ NOFUIHL ANY ONY "NY1d 3HL NO G3LV3NIN3Q 1ON HO ¥3HLIHM

'SY3YY ONVILZM ANY 30 IN31X3 HO/ONY 30NILSIX3 3HL G3N3A HON G3WYINOD NIHLISN SYH dHSNMOL SHL NY1d SHL 40 TWAOHddY A8 ‘L2
“WILSAS TYSOJSIa FOYM3IS MO 113M 40 3dAL ANY NIVLSNS OL J18Y ONIZE 101

¥ NIH1IM 031207 3O 10T TVNGIAKINI ANY 40 ALINIGISY3S 3HL NOdN G3SSVd 10N IHLONY ONINNYId 3HL 52
1d NG 40
WINVATASNNId FHL HIM 38 TIVHS SWILSAS TvSOJSIA FOYM3S ONY 113M 52

AYM-40-LHOI ONY SININ ALYIO¥d FHL ONOTY 133404 HO4 G3HSIEYLSI NI\ IAVH SININISYE 3d0S GNY JOVNIMHA ‘ALITLN ¥T
‘QHVA ¥Y3Y .SZ ONY ‘QHVA 30IS 02 ‘O¥YA INOHA 5L ‘SHOVELIS ONIGTING T2

SV
UILYMNHOLS 1 OL 03193410 38 TIVHS 107 3H1 WOHS HILYMIHOLS TT¥ ‘N¥1d NOISIAIGENS 03A0YdY ATIVNIORSO 3HL HLM 3ONYOHOOOY NI 22

“£01 ONY 20} S39Vd 8L %008 Lv1d N G3GHOO3H ONY 9002/1/5 NO SHOSIA¥ANS 4O GHVOE dHSNAVWOL
ONODOd 3HL AS G3AOHdAY . Vd SSINISNE SAISTIH - Nv1d NOISIAIOBNS TYNL. G31LIL NY1d 3HL OL LNVNSHN St ALIS STHL 30 INIWAOTIAIA 1T

SINVINIAGD INISIIONIANIONIS I

NY1d 3LIS NO G3TIACY 110Y2 N¥NL “(HLONIT 1334 0F = WIQ) XONKL XO8 ¥ 38 OL 301440 3HL HO4 SIHIAIIA HONHL 02
‘SHYId 3HL NO NMOHS SY 113\ 3LISTNO HY A8 030IAN3S S11013HL 6

‘NOLLYM3NIO MO WNWIX(YF OdO-007 ¥ ¥O4 INFWIYINDIY 3HL S133N

HOHM Y3Y NOLLJHOSEY 4S-00£ ¥ HLW ¥NV.L TvO-000't ¥ 1 NY.L OL1d3S ONILSI 3HL "0dO 00% JO SMO4 FOVMIS HOJ O3NOISIA Svi 038
OVM3S ONLLSIX3 THL 'GdD 002 §1 301430 S1SIIN3Q 03SOJO¥d IHL HOJ SMOTH JOVMIS “T¥SOJSIA FIOVMIS LOTNO AB 03DIAN3S §11013HL 81
SY3MY Q38HNLSIA ATSNOIAIHA NO TIV 3V SINIWIAOHAI G3SOLOYd 3HL VIHY 1O3r0Yd SHL NIHLIM SONYILIA ON 34V JM3HL "Lt

‘402 'Z AYW 310 IALD3443 ‘I¥620068027 HIBANN dVI VINYATASNNI 'ALNNOD
JOUNOW 30 SV 31 FONYHNSNI GO0 (WHI4) 1531V 3HL NO Q3191430 SY NIVIJG0O0TS YiM34 3HL NHLM 31 LON S30Q A1¥3d0¥d 3HL ‘9t

‘HO134 3OHO3D AB GINNOIYIJ ATANNS AMYONNOE ‘St
UV Kio¥ v

30vdS | - 03q08d
35V | - 3AINOIY
VU HOO 45 000'S O AIHINO3Y 30VdS | = SYIHY ONIAYOTNN
$30VdS SNDINYA 1€ = 03SOdOBd FOVHYO NI SIIVAS Z + 107 ONDIMY NI (SIDVdS YOV Z SIANTOND SIIVS 62 = 03S0JOHd ONDIXYd
(S30VdS YAV Z S3ANTOND SIDVIS ONINY €E = ONLISDE SNV
S3OVAS 5 = 11 + ¥ = GIHINOIN WIOL
SI0VAS 14 = | X 11 44V1S
S3OVdS p = X | = MINOILLOVYH
L3IHS YY3d NO 33A0TdW3 HOV3 04 | ONV HINOLLLLOVE HOYE HO4 ¥ = G3MINO3Y DHINEYY
301440 SUSUNIA = 351 GISOdO¥d
SINIWIYINDTY ONDIXYd EH

ork ok St (534 Wou4) NOLLYEVd3s 5018

05> 25 o5

%9¢ %8¢ noo) %08

ze e s

£€ g€ -3

¥ Ty SL

ko sz 04
s3woves't | s3woveLlt Mwov o't 3ov3¥OY 10T NIN
Q35040¥d SNLISDE aIMINoIY ANINIYINDTY

SINIWIHINDIY LORILSIA ONINGZ TH
“Nd 1 = WY 8 AVOUNLYS ‘Nd T 01 WY B AVOINS 'Wd 501 WY § AYOSHNHL - AVONON 34 NOLYHIHO 4O SHNOH 301440 S.LSILN3T 3HL

“NOLLIQ@Y IOVRIYO ¥ ONY ONIaTING
3HL OL NOILKIQY 3S ~ ATILYWIXOHddY NY HLIM 391440 SLSLNIA O1 301430 SSINISNA Y WO ONIG1ING ONLLSIX3 3HL 40 35N J0 FONVHO 3HL
“INGWdOT13A30 40 V3HY Y101 ¥ Nv1d 3O NOLINILNI ot

oezs6 2
QIXVLILVISI VAY 6

ST8L-69-20E9EFTL
HIBNON NI B

SIMoV 6LL'L
OVIUOV AL¥3dO¥d L

169 39vd ‘€79z %008
IOVANOOR 0330 ALNIJONd 9

VINVATASNNAd ‘XALNNOD TOANONW ‘dIHSNMOL ONODOd s v s oo oY U S
AALSILNIAd AdTIIHL

‘030H003Y 38 OL S133HS NV,

Jdod

LORILSIA D IHL NI 35N GILUNYIA ¥ S13SN 3HL (391440 TYNOISSII08d) 301440 SUSUNIQ ¥ S1 35N 0350dONd JHL
IVONINNOD ‘D
15RISIKI BNINOZ T

55€81 Vd NNYLODS '1T3HLS 3S0Y ol
SSIM0AV ALY3dO¥d €

L681-6LZ (015)
S5E81 Vd NNHLOOS

B o iR NVId LNAWJOTAAAA ANV TVNIJ/XAVNINITAN -

8133HS STI¥130 3US 9 0dS73
L133Hs $1Iv130 0ds?3
¥ 133HS «NY1d 0dS%3 ¥ WSOd
£ 133HS SNY1d ALMILN 7 3LIS
T133HS +NV1d S3HNLYIL ONLLSIX3
<HIAOD

“X30NI L33HS

INVOddY T

55€81 Vd ‘NMHLODS
133415 3S0M OV}
D1 133815 3504 Ork
HINMO 1

SII0N W&




gjoc¢

oo

2
4 =
am @
z o
g 3
E]

S o2
m= =
2 ¢
2 A
[7]

a= @

R

z

2 z

hd

B

& |7

uvg

NOLLAROS30

B8N0 MIN
8HND ONISHE 90 3903

EMELLEY
SINN ALYIHONd 1HIDVTaY

— = A¥VONNOB ALY3JONd
3dALSTOS
AMYONNOB 51105

SHNOLNOD SNUSPE

GNI531

zor o4 £61) 80
§1CV9Z 0 XYL -
_YTA ¥ 0w 77 3

A
NOSIIGENS TYNtS GINO¥ISY
Xyva SSINGPE FOSTIH 43 /.
VI¥Y HNUISIY FOVHIS AWVANYE "

1

7 ’
’
’ E
!
’
¥20e/v/6 ‘.
E g
“oN 1037084
PyOOHAOMICHOINGD
#0L9CT1019) 3H0HS
03691 vd '0¥NESNONLS
ANHLNAVHANS 95
53407 43315 0L S12Vanl

O 38 1T TuFHy. x 01 s

NOILON¥LSNOD
291 10¥ XI34D STAVHOINDIVSQVIHOONE 3HL
31 ¥3d 41 ITOH
7 S1HOIHM Y3240 NNY 1025 DL XT3LYRLLIN HOIHAA
3101 3U1S IHL HOUA 0N g
aza “311S 3L O STUNLONYLS SOLSIH ON IUYIUTHL T

‘SY3uY 03TUNLSK
A1SNOIAIYd NIHLIA G31¥D01 51 L3OV SIHL 4O 1HVd SY IONVENNLSID 40 V3V
T30MYBUNLSIQ 0 YINY) VIHY 1OIrONd IHL NIHLVA SHYIHLS HO SONVIIIMON IV IUIHL T

€402 'Z AV 30¥0 JALOT44T ‘I¥5TOD6U0Y
MIENNN d¥I VINVATASNINIA ALHNOD JOUNON 40 Sd¥W 31 IONYHNSNI 000 (HHLd)
15311 341 HO 03101430 5Y NIV1dG00TS Y34 IHL NIKIPA 31 LON S300 A1NIJONd THL

S3Ion

SSIMSNG FTSTIH Z.407)
on \LS&&.N@.P» 504

§691 99 ZR¥ 60
91T YIZs O Hvd
AT YNV HIINNIH

FONYEINT INTHNE

0343100 o€usHI—

e s

SIYOY 6L1'1=VIyY 107
ofere .W\ ‘al xvi

SSINSNG FOSTIH + 407)
SIS 03
LT HFUNS MOSHT

4 3 vONT P 2 MIYGNY /

a0 -

=

SS3VISNg 305TIH § 107)
- SIUSNEL~00
VAT LIRS NOSVT

9LL1—-2¥C—008—1 @

"2U] ‘wess |IDD SuQ DOAKSUUIY
TIVD dOIS ~ 30VIS NOISIQ NI SAvQ
ONINHOM Ol QNY 3SVHd NOLLONHISNOD
404 IIUON SAVO SNDNOM €
SIUINDIY MY VINVAUSKNIZY
i910 NOA 3W0J3a TWd

"D dNOYD TI0S DISOTOYAAH
“SIHONI 9€ - LL 51 NYJIOVHA OL H1d3Q "SIHONI 6¢ - 81 §1 318VL
N¥3LYMOLHLA3Q ‘SIJOTS %52 OL 8 "WYO AUINNYHD YNNYMYMOWT - 2a1

"D dNOYD TIOS DIDOTOYAAH
"SIHONI 9€ - LL SI NYdIOV¥4 OL H1d3@ "SIHONI 9€ - 91 S1 3TaV.L
YILYM OL HId3Q 'SIJOTS %8 0L 0 ‘WYOT AMINNYHD YNNYMYNOVT - BT

oS

'S34071S

d334S OL SLOVJI ON 38 T1IM 3¥3HL 'S3dOTS d33US

3H1 40 33IS1NO 03LVI01 SI SINIWIAOYJWI 03S0dOHd
11V "3ONVENNLSIA ON HLIM NOISIAIQENS TYNIDIHO 3HL
INOY4 ALY3dO¥d FHL NO INIVLNIVN N338 SYH LNIW3svI
3407S 3HL "3AVA-NYIN 34V LO1 3HL NO S3d071S 11V ‘310N

021 = .1 J1IVOS
NV1d IX3LNOD 31IS - dYW VI3V




8J0¢

oxown
°m 2
m m
o
Z2_¢c
<25
Fgad
mo
z" 5
4 <
:
Z z

vd ‘ALNNOD

SovSE

ava

NOlLnsZa

b20zivie
e

ON 193084

3 COMADIIAO OV
019015 INOHd

03691 Vd 'O¥NESANOYLS
VUL MAVHAXS o5

NOLLONYLSNOD
LWL ELEG]
7

BYND MIN 0d0Hd
8N ONILSHA 40 3503

i i AYM-3O-1HOR

3NN S000M

— = 3NN ALN3dONd INIDVIOY
- — ————  A¥VONNOA ALY3JOYd
3dALSTIOS

AUVONNOB STI0S

=~ = = S¥NOLNOD DHUSDE

SUNOLNOD 0350d0Yd

[NEGER}

>
2or 5 o611 60 N o

SIZVITI Ol XVI RN
YIA ¥ LN )
A

NOISAIGENS TYNt) GIAONAAY
¥ SSINSNE FOIS TIH ¥3d
VISV INSTSTY FOVHIS 4 HVLINYS-

7

I 3 33 1InG 3H1
‘GINVANIVA 38 TR ONKITING 3HL 01 3DIAY3S TYORILO3 T3 DNLLSIXE “S3NT 3DIANIS SHI Jo
‘SNOILYD0 JAVHIXOYdAY HLIM GILYOOTIY N336 IAVH SY3YY TYSOISIa J0VMIS ONY 113

ONILSI(3 3HL 'GINIVINIVA 38 TIM SIUNLN ONLLSDG ‘G350d0Yd 3NV SIULMINMINON 'S

"ONIGTING 3H1 O1 IONVMINI JHL ONY NOLLIOG)
ONIOING 31 HO BNILHOM TYHOLLKIQY ¥04 SHY1d ONIGTING TYNIDLMONY 3HL O ¥343

v
N v

*13(ONd 3H1 40 14Vd SY OINOISIA NI\ SYH INIAIOVNYH
MILVMNNOLS ON ‘IUOIH3HL 'ONOd NOLLNILIT 3HL O1 JOMVHISIC OL 107 3HL

aza

SY GILYNOISIA 51 HOIHW NAY 1035 OL EITE

TIv SN 3HL “29) LDV XIIYD STAVHOIMOHSAVIHOOHE
3HL NIHLM G310 51 LIS 3HL “SHOLLYOIIISSYIO €6 aLdVHO ¥3d ‘N '4MIOH

"ONKTING 3H1 40 35N GI50dOYd FH1 HO4 IINVNIGHO JH1 H3d ONDIHYd QIMNOIY
3HL S133W DNDNYY FH1 “FOVHVD MIN IHL NI SIIV4S ONDINYY T 40 NOLLIOGY 3HL ONY

¥ 40 VAGH3Y 30 TIPA

NG v %04 Ju¥

S3IoN

{a3aunoud 38 o1
WNSOTONIMIN)

avd
M3LSINNA OMILSI3

5691 99 2647 €0
91ZV9ZI O XVl
VLT HINYYS HIINNTH

$5€ 9d 105¢ 60
6224621 a1 X¥L
(xsve

SSINSNG F0STIH Z 107)
DT ALY 1371S 508

FONVEINT ONTTNG
343103 ONUSIXF-

-
-
s % ~
nvof— P 30YHVD 3L¥OONAODY LT
ks o
~

TV DNV Y
3004 10T

318Y193130 vaY ¥ HOlS
316155330V NYA VaY-

- .
At 27

. HY1d Notswans

= WL ivd SSINISNE

- 3ISTIH G3A0NddY
Z I5HVONOSOY NI STUIY
Nigp,+ 500 = ININISY3 340TS-

- S

- ¢ Yo -

©1 533745 ONDYVA TIUHL
40 TYAON3Y - 1NOAYT
ONDRIY] O1 SHOISIATY:

-
]
oS i/,
a._.\u%
\

Jovivo

/.nm:u ONI

el

awuseG

QINVINVA
38 01 55300V vOY
¥4 XTYM3IAIS/BUND

NI
/  a3davooNd
/

NY1d ININGO13A30
QNY1 03A0¥ddY
ATIVHIORIO

HLIM 30NYONODOY
1 TIONVINL IHOIS 5L

STV 6L1't=VISY 10T \m,w % seos 94 gisz 69
ocz6 2L Al Xvl o inereg1 ol xv
g SSWISNG 05T # 107)
Y5 STUSPUL-02
\vw i3 HIUNS NOSKT™
s
& \
o
i
Ws0d517 /
FOVMIS 15
aivis |
ONUSIT Ved
i
4,
VA

n
Q344v0 G4
’
’
\ 0or od £6¢ 89 /

12TVIZ 0 XL N
HINIS N
4 3 YO F 9 MISINY N

N
N

’

’

9/4/1-2+2-008—1 @

“2u) waishs (10D SO oIDAKSUUSY

TIVD dOIS — 39YIS NOISIO NI SAYQ
ONIXYOM 01 GNY 3SYHd NOLONUISNOD

i910 NOA 3¥oJ38 Mvd

SSINSNG FISTIH § 407)
23Sl -09
LT YIBUNS NOSYT

—~————

L7m

“350dHNd A3GNIINI S11 404 G3LS 1N 38 TIVHS INIWAINDI QITIVASNI TV )
“S3NIN AL3JONd 3HL QUVMOL 03103MI] 38 TIYHS NOLLYNINNTIION

‘NMOQ IHOIVHLS

IV 3 TIVHS ONY 'SISNIT L1 JAVH TIVHS VINILIND 34010 TINd (YNS3I) vorsany
HLHON 0 AL3100S ONIYIINIONI ONLYNINNTII HLIM ATdNOD TIVHS STHIVNINNT 1TV
NOLLYITVLSHI S11 OL ¥Oldd 'ONLLHOI G3INNOVFONIQTING ONIGNTONI "SNILHON HORELA
TTV 40 TYAOYddY ONV NOLLOTJSNI HO JONVHYY OL dIHSNMOL AJLLON TTVHS ¥3TTVLSNI
*dHSNANOL FH1 A8 G3AOYdAY ATI¥OLIO3dS ISWANIHLO SSTINA YINILMD 430100-T1nd
NS3| 133N TIVHS ONILHOI G3INNOK-ONIQ NG ONKINTINI ‘ONILHOM HOW3LE 1V
“dHSNMOL 3H1 OL 3SNIdXE ON 1V NOLLOY

TYIAINTY FHINOTY OL 'dHSNMOL JHL A LVINAOYddY G3WI3A I NV ‘SINIWLIVOD
NY1d ONILHOI G3A0HJdY GNY SININIHINOIY ONYNIGHO HLIM 3ONVITAINOD AJRITA

0L SNOLIDIASNI NOLLYTTVASNFLSOd 1OAGNOD OL IO 3HL SIANISIY dHSNMOL SHL
‘NOWLIOQY ONIGING

3HL 3LYOOWWODOY OL G314IHS 38 TIM 1SOd LHOI 3NO “LNIWAOI3A3A NV SNOAIHd
‘IH1L NI GIAOHAAY AISNOIATYd N338 IAVH LOT ONDINY FHL NI SIUNLXIS ONULHON TV 1

530N SWIO3 WONILHOT




gjovy

ON oS0

yod
NV1d 3dS#3 ? WSJId

AYLSILNIA AMVHHIL

vd ‘ALNNOD

ave
SRR
—

20

NolLRs:

veozivie
ER

va

“ON 193708

moTooNOM OO
5019210151 MO

09691 vd 'O4NASANONLS
VAL WAVHANS §r5

NOLLONYLSNOD
R LELED]
L)

ONRIANIONT
aza

o %208 L7iS

IINVBHNLSIA 40 LINN

. 9L41-2+Z—008—1 @

’
BN M3N 40 3503 A35040Yd Le= / ’ - 3] “welsAs 0) suQ DOAKsUURY
P -

TIVO dOLS — 3OYIS NOISIO NI SAYQ

84N ONILSPE 403903 S N ONDRHON, 01 ONY Jovid NOLOMUISNOD
) - ¥04 J0UON ONIOM €
————————— AVMvdO-IHOM — B S3UINDIY MYT VINVAUSNNIA
- - s 910 NOA 3¥0J38 TIVD

3NN S000M - -

— — ——— S3NMN ALY3dO¥d INIDVraY 2

—— = = ———— ANYONNOY ALY3dOYd . o E T -7 ey
i jAS = E 5y <
3dALSNOS - \ S
g bn\ﬁp \
AMVOHNOB STIOS - e asZ \
” ’ mEn R NoIS BN
- s 5 SHNOINOD NS - - N Nokyens
- s A WL Yivd SSINISNE ERAC D BICE
SHNOLNOD 0350dO¥d -- il % ey, g "™
- cer 2d 1052 80 L= Zuuzéxﬂuz Wl SOV g
. - sIveTs O Vi N 500 = 1N3N3SYE 34075- SSINSNE FASTIH § 107)
=R - o lrvd - S s — S7zSNA~00

T3 d30in5 WOSYT

SSINSNE FTSTIH £,407)
D11 ATV 434S T508

&7 Z i £
- 4 VM ONINIYLIY

e L vauv a3gunLsiid0” P
i 1HIOVESHAO0 QI TVLSH - :
, E (02021349
. 5 (3 0an)
. & - =
o \ \ e
‘ z -
B =
o Tnes
. auvamOLS
oMUSOT / T (socoziesd)

& Tasow

R
0343100 oMUSHT—" \
(s9voct-a49) Z9TCTT

oNOTAE g
Nenne TR gy

,
208 od B61) 69

LEAZE i)
TIVA Y 2I0HVA
A

So.xgaw#zce‘ggknx\\:
NIV SSINSNG F0STIH 830 1
VMY INNISTY FOVHIS ANVIINVS <"

O—— N

> 37
, YIS AGVINYS 1O
4 NOUVIOT I YNXOKV-

; y
/ STV IO =

30NYNNLSKI HINY 30 LINN

&
§

\
\

\

~

‘s szoc 94 §isT 69 - ~
8 wzs6 21 a0l vt -

o4 \ ’ SSIMSNE Z0STIH $ 10V 1

STUSNUL—00
TVIT WIAUNS NOSV

$694 9d ZRYZ 6T
91T VIZL O Xvd.
VAT YNVt HIINNGH

\ ‘G350d0Yd T4V S INTWINOUAN] HILVWNNOLS
\ ON 3115 JHL ¥O4 HILYRMMNOLS IHL NO LOYANINY SAVH LON TIM HOIHM
N {5340V £00'0>) 345 €11 ATILVINIXONAdY 3O VINY SNOIANIANI ¥ILMMANNOLS NI ISYIHONI
MONI v S| 3L "NISYE NOLINZL30 ONILSHXA 3HL O1 101 3HL WO¥4 GIAIANCD
3801 TIv'SNId JHLHLM

45 54r'v) = ININIAVA
35 542 = DNIGTING

45 ¥E0BH = W10

4SEHE=ONKIING  SHOILINOD ONILSI
SNOLLYINDTYD SNOIAN3ANI 3115 1oL

, 7 < 1D3rONd 3L 40 1¥Vd SY GINOISIA NITA SYH LNINTOVHYIH
UILVAMHOLS ON ‘HOJIUIHI ‘GNOd NOLNI13Q IHL DL FONVHOSI] DL 107 3HL
G31Y20TIV SHY1d NOISIAKIBNS G3AONAY JHL “Z31 10V ¥33WD STAVHOINON'SOYIHOONE

.uu:Omu.__owu_ooaozE: uE ,m_zE E&:.%de
mwzuz_mn.:m_zﬁ,u«muohxima.mw..GZ_wn.?m_m.,m«k / ﬂzu!ﬁ:ax.ow%nw ux» 4
Y3LYM OL HLA3Q 'SIOTS %52 OL 8 'WYOT AUINNYHO YNNYMYMOVT - 0a1 oor 9d §62 60

1E2vat @ Kt N 11130 01 351VOHO0DY NI GZIV2S 38 01 SLNIOF TIY “Zovaanl
Vs N LNV N3N 40 HOILVITYLSNI HOa V130 3411 HIA 32NVOHOI0Y i NEHAVA
4 7 YONIT % 9 MINONY ONILSIX LNMYS QI TIVLSNI 38 TIM LNIFGAVA M3N IOVHYD 3H1 OLNI SS300V
N ST 3L 40 HoLLod TIVNS Y

‘D dNOYO TIOS DISOTONAAH
“SIHONI S - L1 SINYJIOVYS OL H1d30 "SIHONI 9¢ - 91 SI T18vL
HILYM OL H1d30 "SIHOTS %8 OL0 VIV AYINNYHO YNNYMYHOVT - 831

57105

yo4 3uY kK




8J0G

ON shvsa

dod
NV1d ONLLHOIT ® ONIdVISANVY1

AYLSILNIQ A¥VHHAL

vd ‘ALNNO3

ave
ShovIe
=

=

NolLdns

v202/v/6
ava

“ON 193704

O3 OOHVIBIILOrOEVINGD
B09C015) IO

03891 vd 'OMNBSANONLS
VUL AVHANS 995

NOLLONYLSNOD
IVHINID

kd
ONMHIANIONI
aza

\1
o
)

FAND MIN 0

84N DNUSDA 403903

se——— o AYA4O-LHOR

3NN S00M

- S3NITAIN3dONd INIDVIaY

AYYONNOB AL¥3dOYd

34ALSN0S
AMYONNOS STIOS
T T T T T T T T T T T SHAOLNOD ONUSKG

SHNOINOD 03S0dONd

RECE]]

o5 24 661/ 80
Sicveel 0 avt
A ¥ TN

§“/

Yyyd SSINSNG FOSTIH ¥3d

VOIS TV G0NV !/

VINY NGFSTY TOVMIS ASVLINVE "

7

HOIW

GOONYYH 300IHHS 40 HIAVTHONI TV JAEFITH TIVHS SYIUY ONUNYId TV T4
“H31136 ¥O | ON 30vO

AYISUNN SY GIAVHS 36 1IM TVIMILYW INV1d ONY S334L GIQNTANODIN TIY 11
‘Q31ON 3SIW3HI0

SSIINN 0SAOL 40 SIHONI 9 IAEFOTY TIVHS ONIGI3S HO4 0INAIHOS SYIUY TIV ‘0L

'S1id INV1d DNIOOK OL HORJd 1T¥D SHO

Vd ONILDYINOD

A8 530IAN3S GNY SIILILLN ONNOHOUIANN TT¥ JONOLVOOTFHLAINIA 6

“SAV 054

40 WAWDCYI V NIHLIA 'SNOSYIS SNWAOYO ONIIAISNOD “TYILLOVH SY NOOS §Y
"SISVA INO-OL-INO V NO "INMO AL¥3dONd FHL AR 03DV143H 38 TIVHS 430VIva
ATY3A3S S| 4O ‘TIAONTY 51 'S0 LYHL ONIdYOSONYT ANY UINMO ALYIJONd
IHL A8 GNIVANIA ATTVNITd3d 38 TIVHS SNYTd SHL NONAMOHS S338L TV '8
“SNY1d 3HL NO Q31vDIONI SY SGOOM ONUSIX3 SHL NMINIVIN L
SNOLLY214D3dS ONY ‘STLON FONYNIINIVN ‘STVL3 ONLINYII33S 9
‘NOSVES SHIWO¥O LXAN 3HL OHINNG
3071434 ON HINMOGNY 3HL AB 031¥3Y1 HO GIADWIY 38 TIVHS STYRIILYI

1M¥1d G3SY3SKI ¥O OY3Q "SONILNYI SHL NIVANIW TIVHS MINMO ALHIdONd

HJ01S AY3SHON 40 QNYONYLS NYORIIWY 3HL 40 NOLLKIF INTHHND

IHLNIONI W 40 NYOIMINY 3HL AQ

SQHVANYLS 3H1 OL WHONOD TIYHS STYINILYI INV1d “JOUOVYd ONIdVOSONY]

ONY AM3SHAN 00D HLM IONVIVHOINOD NI GIWHOAH3d 38 TVHS ONLINYId TV

“GNDI NI 'Q30Y1d34 ONY ALJHLIN S1I

TIYHS GORIZd IWLL HINOW (81) HINTILHOM 3HL NIHLM S310 LYHL TYRI3LVI INVId

NIGIAOW3Y 38

'QOIN3d QIILNYHYNO IHL 40 ONI IHL LV JHSNAOL
3HL AB O3NINYIL3 SY AHLTYIH ONY JATIV 38 TIVHS ONY ONLINYTd 40 31vQ SHL

WOH SHINOW (81) NIILHOI3 50 QOIY3d ¥ 303 0IIUNVHVNO 38 TIVHS DNLLNY D TIY
‘G3WHO04¥3d N338 SYH ONIAVHO TYNIJ ¥3LI¥ NN G3INVTd 38 LON TT¥HS SINVId

=

“SII0N SNIgVOSaNYT

- SSC od 10SZ €0
- G a v -
- tovs -
’ SSINSNG 30T 2.407)

D77 ALY 133218 350

3104
40 NOLLYDO M-

owgung
onasag

UFNTS ANVAINYS S0
HOUYIOT AU VHXOHSIY-

. $691 94 78¥Z 60
9TVITI T XU
VLT SNV HIIVNIX

WonaavoT g

ONVINT ONIGTNG
G330 sz

2

[TENTTY

SSINSNG FOSTUH # 107)
735N -03
T HIUNS NOSYI

9/L1L—¢+¢—008—1 @

“au) 'weiehs (169 BUO DUBAKSUUSY
TIVD dOiS — 39YIS NOISIO NI SAYQ
ONDIHOM 01 GNY 3SVHd NOLLONHISNOD
404 JOUON SAYQ ONINNOM €
S3MIND3Y MY VINVATASNNId
1910 NOA 3¥0438 TWD

SS3MSNG F0STIH § 107)
—_ = SIUSNY -0
VI HIUNS NOSY"

‘03101 031vJdN 38 OL SIHNLXIS ONILHON
TIV NY1d 3HL H3d G31¥O0T134 36 OL 150d 1HOM 3NO “ININJOTIAIA
OGNV G2AONddY ATIVNIOINO NOY NIYW3H O ONLLHON TIY

310N

~ ‘SININIWINDIM dIHSNWOL JHL 133N TIVHS SHOLLALLISINS “0INIMAOI3Y TUY 151 A0TY WL MOUS S33uL °1
SIoN

LVL3¥4RO3, VHEVIO X3T) ATIOH AMITIN 13V4N0I

IVOINYATLS N34 YOINAR) AWY3EAVE NYIHLNON senys s

(¥EI¥014 SNN¥OD) OOMOOT DNINIMOTS UL ONYIMOU u

(RANanY ¥32¥) Tiavm 038 23Ut 30vH5 15
TRV Eveuor] YountE

LSTTONLLNVd 3381




8409

ok onuvio
-
am
I m
g 5
E
<50
= 900
m2m
z 4
4 2
a B
8 =
s =<
z
(5
hd
»
53
—z
¢ |
2

NOlLdnsos:

ve0z/v/6
31va

‘ON 103°0Kd

euuswmRr)

X E} x| eeev Jiper|  on E)
£00/5 W62 @ "Lt HOUUDD 2

PULLP0] WIUETWOD 105

x E} x | oear fover| ov )

OIS W) SN G e Mes0d ) wodiiom

10 SPeqI1 B 46930 01 9 43
101 10D B a3 1

womamo
)

sasve

waij o 91 0 04 )

e pa

10 PAISD 19 U0 P 59 i Dot RS

A el W) UNSO03 351

s
WIS Wik 39031 PR T 10NN 130

somad U KD ey

suonniosaY 105 uoneuwn ros

suoNInjosay pur suopeNw 1105

“LNINMONIANI 3H1 ¥O AL3IVS GHY HLTVIH D1GNd OL $153443 SHILINSIY ANY JUYIAITIV OL N3XYL 30 0L
NOUDY ANV oY ‘213 50014 ‘SIHRILS SYHONS SHO10vd TYNYLX3 40 S19344 3181550 IHL I8I530 -
SHOLOVA TYHYILX H

INININD3 O1 35V ONY SHOSY34 OL ANNTNI NOXGNY 'SNOILYINOIY TYANIN1UVA3Q 30 NOLLYIO
¥ NI 11NS3Y GINOD LVHL AMINT TVNOLLNGLNI O TvAN3AIDOY 1MIAINA OL LIS HL 1¥ SWILSAS GHY S3UNAID0HA ALINOIS I6RIOSIA -
S3MNSVIN ALNND3S ‘D

3NNOSYI O STUYZVH ALTdvS

ONY STIIdS VINIAIIY 40 ALITIBISSOd 3HL JZININIA O1 SIIOVA ONIdTINISNOH 40 3dAL GILVID0SSY THL GHY SYIUV IHL AJILNII -
WYHOONd ONIAITNISNOH *4

‘svauy
UYIINIS ONY SYIHY JOVHOLS 'ININAINGT 40 ALRIOILNI FHL S5ISSY 0L STUNAII0NA SNINOLINOW GHY WYHOON NOLLIIASHI 3HL 3BMHOS3A -
F¥HOONd NOILDIdSHI 3

“IA0Y HL ININT)4dNS O1 SNV 10Td HO SONIYYA JLVHVAIS JQINONd

3H1 ONY STVREILYI O3 T1I4S 30MO 40 NOILDTUIO TTEVEON IHL 'STIJS ONY SXVI1 TYILNIL0d HOJ SYINY GHY 3DNOS 3H1 38N4IS30 -
ISNOJSIM ONY NOILNIATHA XYI1 ONY T1IdS ‘Q

NY1d Ddd FHL NI O3LID ATYID 38 01 SINOLLYWHOANT
HYTINIS HO 133HS VAV ALTIVS NOILYDO) 3HL “3LIS 3H1 1¥ 3¥OLS 404~
“315 3HL HO 03YOLS HO 035N SILLNYNO GNY 'SIOUNOS ‘SHOILYOOT JAMIINI O1 IN¥N IAVYL GNY IHVN TYDINIHD NOWKOD AB AALLNICH -
AMOLNIAN! J1SVM CHY TYINILYN *3

“S3ANON NOILYNOVAI 318ISSOd
ANV ONY“ALNIOY4 3L I0ISH SOVON SS322Y OL SIONVHLNI 'ONDHOM ATIVINON 30 GYIOM TINNOSHIE 3H3HM S3Ov1d ‘GTICHVH
(ANY 41 5 3L S3L1HIJOUd 3H1 3H1 40 1NOAY FH1 HIM
HOLYNIGNOOD LNIWIOVHYW AONZONINI ALNNOD 3H1 ONY SHY3L ISHOASTY AONIONING ‘SLHININYAI] 3u13 ‘30M10d TwDOT JZRIVTIIAVA -
“SISIANIS 404 GI3N IH1 ONY HNDOO AYA LYHI SIDNIOUINI
TVINIL0d 40 AL FH1 SNINYIONOD STYLIdSOH ONY SIDNIOY 3SNOISIH ADHIDHING T¥DO0T FUOMI -
“3QIAOHd T

UOLOVMINGD HOVE SIDIAHIS IHL ONY SHIGNNN 3NOHd HLIA LTI IGIAOYA 3sNods Y
VAMYSSIOIN GINI3Q 3 LV TIVASNI O3 Y

“INININO3 AONION3N JO

WILIHOY3 40 S3ILNIBYAYD GNY 35N G3GHALNI NOILAINOS3 OIS AHA 'NOLLYDOT 3HL FGNISNI “LN3NAINGT ASNIONING 40 L

“SHILSAS MUYV ONY SHOLLYOINNNINOD TYNN3LX3 ONY TYHaLr

SYIUY NOLLYZNO:
SH3ISN ¥31vM TVRLSACHT

53M4dNS ¥3L¥M D18Nd NVIULS HO
1NV ININLV3HL 39WA3S V20T

S1NIM14YA3 364 ONY 32104 T¥301
{OMYNO 1SY0D 'S'N ONY ¥d3 §') HUNID ISNOISITY TYNOLLY
NOISSINWO.

ANINLYYVAIQ HLTVIH

Jonz0Y INBNIDAN AoNIOUING va

43avd

NI LST VY HOAS

F18¥DN4dv s¥ S30N

“T11dS HO ASNIOUINI NV 40 LH3AT IHL

PO30ONADNIAORESYINIG
501921015 INOHY

09631 vd 'ONNESANOMLS
TVHL WAVHANS §¥5

NOILLONYLSNOD
IVHINID

7
ONNIINIONT
aza

38 1SN LYH1 SHIBNNN HOHA ONY SIIDNIDV 40 1511 ¥ "LNIRHOYLLY HY NO HO 14YHO TYNOLLYZINYOHO 3HL NO
*AONIONINI TYNLDY HO LN
NY 40 IN3A3 3HL NI ALIALIDY ¥O 3415 HL O1 2115345 AoN3OMINT L 3HL 3800530 -

ASNIOUINI NY 40 INIAZ 3HL NI GILOVINGD 38 1SN LYHL SHOLYNIGHOOD ASNIONII 40 LST1 ¥ 1MVHD TYNOLLYZINYONO 3HLNO AJILN3AI -
NY1d Ddd 3H1 4O HOILYININI 1A O3 GHYINOD 40 NIYHD IHL NIHLM STLLTIEISNOJS Y ONY SILLNG STVNGINGN HOYE
30MoNI'S! ADNIONING ‘ONYANOD 40 NIVHD ‘JHNLINYLS TYNOLLVZINVONO IHL J6IHOSI0 -
FIVHOON ISNOJSTY AONIOUING ‘8

“SNY1d 573 3H1 40 S3UN1Y34 IH1 OL NOLLIGAY N1 'SY3UY ONIHSYM 2N 'SILIS NOILYNID
ONIGYOINN ONY ONIGYOT 'SY3XY J0YNOLS STVILY 'SIRIVONNOE ALNIdONd ‘3LIS 40 LNOAY] TYNINIO ONIMOHS SONIMYND JANTONI -
ALIALLOY NOLLONMLSHOD 3HL 40 NOLLAINOS3A TVHINTD ¥

NY1d Ddd 341 HO4 SINIWIT3 353HL J0MIONI ONY LYWNOS SIHLMOTIOS

3115 3HL NO GIZMNLLN ¥O GIHOLS 34Y HILYA HO ‘GNVI ‘HI¥ 40 NONTIOd
TYINIGIDOY ONISIYD HOJ TYILNIL0 3H1 HLWA TVINI LY ANY HO 'SILSVAA SNOGHYZVH ‘SLNIAT0S ‘STYOINIHD 91 GIMINDIY SINYIA ddY

N

*LIW¥3d 3HL 40 NOILYNNG 3HL 04 3LISHO GINIVANIY 38 OL IV NYTd 9dd IHL ONY HY1d S73 3HL HI08

U3 1¥M MHOLS NI O3V SLHVNTIOH 4O 30UYHISIA TVILNILOd 3H1 TOBINGD O1 SILIALLOY NOLLINYISNOD
35040Ud 3H1 HO4 NY1d (3dd) VIuvdINd 0L ETOTON

S31ON VN3O Nvid
{5dd) AONFONLINOD OGNV NOLINIATH 'SSINGTHVT

. u
o] s | o pre— ey i
. P i o
i ol fpi Al oot | e e e -
o) weag
Y05, L
SNOILVLIWN 110S
conron azzmorny a1 oo

NIG39V1d STVINZLYN 0NTON] Lot S300 FAL HONS SY TTEVZINDO03 S Gy 3USYA NINLO TIoWd SUveva3s SI LML SaUINLoY
18 ¥OINE QMY *1IYHASY Q35N 'STVINALYI 035030 INOLS H20H
7105 S30MTOHI WAL 3L GMOS 143 TIBVSONOS3AHON 1BIOS H3LWAATION G2LVNINVLNGSNN 'Sy CINIZ30 1T V31D«

LNZNLEVAI 3HL 0 SNOLYINOIY

ILSYM TYNQISTY HO TYAIONAN TTAVOIIddY HLM 3ONVOUOOOV NI IASYM V SY OIOVHYN 38 1SNM ONY 113 G3LVINOT
3U3ISNOD 51 DNIL3L TYOLLATYNY HONOYHL Tikd NYI1D SV AJITYNO LON OL 3NINM3L30 TYRILYW 114 “35N301K 300
VANINNOMIANG 40 1¥vd SV S350 QYT 15Vd 40 MIIATY HO/GNY NOILDIASHI T¥NSIA 30 HOLLTTAMOD HOJN G3SYR JONVISENS
031¥INO3Y ¥ 40 ISYITIM O TNdS ¥ OL WRILYN TS S1OMISIL IVOUATYHY .

‘S1anY ¥o

SININSSISSY WANIANOYIANI ‘DNILSIL TYOILATYNY
“AMO1SIH 35N ALNIAONd 0 FAINIH dHSHINO ALEIAOUd 40 MIINIY “5IHOUVIS 3SVE Y1vA JNONIOTTI SHOILDTdSHI
ALY3d0Yd TYNSIA ‘0L GILINTT 10N 108 'ONIANTONI 'SINOINHOIL JALLYOLLSIANI S¥ OIN1430 51 3HIONID 3G TYANIRNOHIANT «

“3UIS 1937084 IH1
543d TUM 3115 3HL L.

NO G3ZILN 38 TIW LYHL 57105 G3140dRI TIV 30

714 NV3T10

Les1-6z (015)
55681 Vd 'NAHL0S
13315 350M orl
9d AMISIINIO ANIHUIL TIHIIN  HINVO

SIVIYILYYI 111 ¥O4 TTBISNOJSTY 38 TIVHS HINNO
3HL" 30NY143D0V LIS TYHIZ HOAN "HOLOVHLNGD FH1 4O ALMIBISNOASIY IHL 38 TIM SIVMALYA T4 40 NOILYANIHITNI FHL

SIVIYILYIN 1114 ¥O4 S3ILNIBISNOdS3Y

"G3AON3Y ONY
G3NY310 38 01 IMY SIUNLONY1S TOHINOD NOISOYT ANVHOIW3L ‘GIZNIVLS NITA IAYH SY3kY 03BUNLSK] ONY S3SSTHOONI
NOUDNUISNGD 5Y U314 XOOH ¥ HLM 0I0V1d3H A
3308 HILTI 150dAOD ANY ‘SHILTL ¥OOM 3L 40 LHOI3H GHNOUD JACAY 3HL E/
GNNOYD 3A0BY IH1 21 HI¥IY SNOLLYINWNDDY N3HAA OIACHIY 38 TIVHS LHIAIIIS
¥3d 33NO 40 NAWINI TIvHS.

NOISOY3 04 SIULMIIVA AMVHOINIL IHL

WINMO
3HL A8 GINVANMN 38 TIM STV TOUINGD NOISOM3 LNIHYNNIA NOLLDNULSNOO O1 HORid NIISIHOINN SYIMY IOVHOLS

S3LNIDY3 ONY SIUNSYIN 10N INOD LH3NYIWHI ONY ANYNOANIL TTV 3AVOLHOINI OL GININDI S1 HOLOVHINGD FHL

‘NYHO0¥d JONVNILNIVIN

SIUIAILDY 31va ¥ 1V SINTON AYHL SHY1d 593 3HL
HLM 35NYTIGNGD JUASN3 O1 SINLL TIY L¥ SANE TIV 04 3115 NO 14X 38 TTvHS SILLIALLDY JONVNILNIVH T1Y 40 %008 901V

“L16 5133HS
WNQIAIGHI 3H1 O1 ¥3334

NO SNOWYOI4ID3dS B3 Y130 FHL NHLIM JHS HOV HO.

“LOIYLS10 NOILYAUISNOD

31VIHONddY SHL 0L 'HOLOVHLNOD 3H1 A8 NOISSINENS HY1d TONINOO INIAIGIS ONY NOISON NY JMINOTH TTM

XOO0M H0 1105 40 TYSOdSI] 31IS=330 "TILLINNHIA 38 LON TIWA NNOM IHL 40 3LIS FHL NO ONINMNG HSYHL 'NOLLIGNOD NYI1 ONY

V3NV Nl AYN-40-S LHOTY OI18nd GHY Y4OM 3HL 40 S3LIS 3HL 40 TIV 1nd GNY HHOM 3H1 HO4 030IOHd 'STVINILYH A3SONN
ONY SRIG30 'SIILMIDYA HOLLOANISNOD AMVHOINIL TI¥ IADHIY TVHS FHL HOM FHL

UTINONI NOIS30 L

48 03A0HAdY ONY TVDLLOYHA HIAINTHW YHOM 31 40 3SHNOD IHL ONINNG GITOXOTY 38 TIVHS STV
SIS WA NTVIIOSVIM AVII0-21HOM SGG 0N IV L2310 SHL 493 ONY S1H830 CHY TWIN3LYW SNIdUNS TIV 40
35045K1 ATIVO31 GHY JAONIM NHOA 3HL 40 SSINO0NA 3H1 DNRING 03103HK] S¥ 4O ATIVOIIORITd TIVHS OLIVMINGD IHL

‘SI0MINOO ININYWHId 40 JONYNIINIVH ¥O4 TIBISNOISTY 51 HINMO

WI180Md
3HL 193403 ALUIGISHOdS3Y s111°do INoHS

(V34Y 1¥S0dSI0 3115340 ANY ¥O4 GININO3Y 38 TIM NY1d TOMLNOD ININIGIS GNY NOISONT GIAONAdY Nv)
NIV M 3115 IHL WON3 T2 IHL 38 AVH

‘G30¥143H ¥O O3UIY4TY 38 TIVHS OMINIT GIOVNVD 'S1ISO43A
ININIG3S IAONIY HOILYDOT AHY LY %52 A3NYHO WIOL 10 38 TIWHS STINNYHD

‘SHOISN3NIG
TYNIOINO 511 OL G3HOLSIM NISYE 3H1 ONY LS 3HL NO NOLLYATI 11O NYITD JHL G3HOV3H SYH 11 N3HW O3A0KTY
38 TIVHS IN3NIG3S O3LVINNNSIY “LN3AT 40KNY HOV3 M3LJY ONY ATNIA 1SYA1 1V 03103451 38 TIVHS NiSYE ININIA3s

‘a3ov1d3y
38 TIVHS SOVE H3LTH4 GISVNYA TIN 1 51 5YB IHL NIHW 03V143M MO/GNY G3NYITD 3 QINOHS SOVE HILT LT TN

3504SK1 ONY NJ0S 3H1 40 LHOIZH GNNOHO 3A0AY FHL FTVH SIHOV3Y 11 N3HA GIAON3Y 38 TIVHS
NMNDOY 1 sunod V1a3Y ONIGNODOY
Q3MIvd3H 38 TIVH RLETE] ¥3L4Y ONY A 30 TIVHS 5208 Y3114 1504M0D

WIS

HOVH 3H1 40 35 ¥IH1UNA OL HOIYd UIUIvAIY 3d TIVHS HOVH HSYM JHL O1 FOVAVD SIAL
TIV 1V N3O 143 38 TIVHS YOVH HSYM B3NN 3OVdS NIVEA “IS0¥Nd SIHL HOJ 31IS HO OINIYANIVA 38 TIVHS TND0LS ¥
MO0 DNIGQY A8 SHOISNINIQ A311534S 3HL 01 GINIVANIYA A1LNVASNOD 38 TIVHS SSINNOML 30NYALN NOLLINYISNOD 20U

‘O3UIBIHOY S1 ININIAV IHL NOY4 ININIGIS ONIHSYM ‘GIAOHTY 38
ATILVIGIANI TIVHS AVM-30-1HOM DTN ANY HO AYIMGYOY ANY ©LNO GN2VL HO ‘GIHSYM ‘034d0NT ‘TITIIIS LNINIGTS TIV

“IONVIELNIVW V8 HOJ TBISNOISIU NOSHIY

3HL AB 143X 38 LS 5.4W8 1041HOD 3 3HL 0L 31
140434 NLIRIA ¥ "AT3LVIOIHNI O3WHON34 38 1SN ONLLLINIY GNY 'ONIHOINN-3H ONIOTIS-TH ‘ONIOVHO-3M INIWIOVIdIY
UvdTY "INONYITD DNIIMONI HHOM TIv" HOV3 U314V ONY ATIFA

(01SOY3 TI¥ "ATHIdONd G3NIYLNIYA 33 1SNM S.4Nd TONINGO LNINIG3S
3SOHL 40 SY3NY AMVANGINL SHL NIMLM 3ONVBUNLSI 3LIS 0338
) 32UV 1538 0M1NOD NOISON3

310345H1 38 TIVHS S.4M8 10U INGD LN3WIG3S ON
1503 TIv G3ZAYLS 513115 ML
‘aaznisvis (

*SZLON NOILO3dSNI ® SONVNILNIVIN S 83

“SL33HS Y130 HO/NY Sd¥ NYd 3HL NO Q3141934S SY3HY 03HNLSIA HIHLO TIV NO ONY ¥ILYM 30V4uNnS

V30 1333 05 NH1IM ¥34331S ¥O Al HE §340TS T1v HO GITIVISHI 30 TTVHS ONILINNYTE TOHLNOD NOISONI

“IN3NINY430

311 4O L9151 NOILYAYISNOD TYDO1 HOLDIASHI TVAIDINAN IHL OL dVHL MO NISYE] INIWIGIS ANV

404 (ONIAVIIG QNOD3Y) 1TING-SY NY JCIAOYd TIVHS HOLOVHINGD SH HO INYOMddY 341153034 NodN

*ALN34OYd QIDVAYQ 3H1 40 HINAMO 3HL ONY '1OM1510 NOLLYANISNOS TYo0T

ALITYJDINNW 3HL O1 AHOLIVASILYS MINNVIN LNINVIN3d ¥ NI 3TLLINLIA IH1 AB O2uIvd3Y ATILVIGIANI

38 TIVHS 30NYHOSI] VAL ¥O NISYE 40 1INS3Y ¥ S¥ Livd NI HO T10HAY NI SHNI30 LVHL IOVAVD ANY

“SHILYM 3OVINNS

3H1 3INTI0d HOMTNY. 3H1 201901 RIE30 ¥3HIO

GBIV 31 S TSN LSHOD 11y 40 303 LAY 30 TIVIS SVl HONY SHISYD NaNKI3S

“ONIN 3AI13310Md 3HL 40 1H3NFIVTA N1V G3CIAON 38 TIMA SHOISHINIQ NOISIA IHL LVHL

05 G31VAYOXZHIAO ATINZIDHANS 38 1SN SONINIT HOIBYD HO 'SSTHLIVI ONIN dVHdN ONIAVH STINHYHD

“3LF14N0D 51 NOLIVHOLSI HONS

N NY1d SHL NI G38R4OS30 INNYR 3HL NI Y3HY SR0M 3H1 15¥d 03AIANOD 36 TIVHS T3NNYHD JHL

FAOT4 35YB ANY NI 3ALLDILONA GNY NOYLDIS-SSOUD TYNIOMO S11 D1 OTHOLSIM TINNYHO IHL

O3TTHOVE A13LVIGINNI 38 TIVHS TINHYHO JAILOY ANY HONONHL DNLLLNS S3LLNLLN GNAOYON3IANN 'St
*S31SYWTVIMILYW NOLLONYISNOD ONY NOILYI 3D3A 55303 “ININIG3S 03LVINNNIDY ‘SE3A AQO00M

S3AY31'$X50H 114 OL G3LIAM LN 1N8 ONIGNIONI SHOLLONNISHO 40 3343 143X 38 TIVHS STINNVHD IV 1

"SNIL5AS M3LYMONNOND HO SH3LVRA 3YAUNS ANY HILN3 OL GIMOTIY 38 11 TIvHS
35Y2 ON NI 'SONPAYYA NY1d HL NO G3EINOS3A HINNYI JHL NI GTIGNVH 38 TIVHS H3LVM HSYM J1THONCD !

28

2 S VRIS SO/ AR SNLVUA SRV A1 3105 ¥ SRS
NOILOY 3ALLOINYO JAVIGINAI IHVL OL TN TIVA HO 3UIS NOILONHLSNOD 3HL
ONIAVI1 HOY3 310N N3AYTININIAIS 1N3ATYA O FUNTIVS 'SIN SY3 TIVASHI ATLOIHNOD OL TUNIV T
TI01L534SNI TYNES
¥ 3INGIHIS OL JOMISKI NOLLYANISNOD TYD0 HL 1OVIHOD TIVHS HOLYYI4O MOVGNY HINMO 3L SYIHY
3BUNLSI 1Y 40 NOLLVZIIAYLS IN3NYIY3d ONV SILIALLDY 39NYBHNISID HI¥Y3 TV 4O NOLLITINOI NOdN
"NOSY3S ONLVNINYIO IHL ONINNG
ATNO 31OQ 38 0L Junsna
O Y30HO NI"AT3LYII3NVI GIZNIBYLS 38 TIVHS 5dIT 3H1 40 NOISHIANOD HO TVAONIY DNRING 03aNNLSIA
'SY3HY "SdNG INZNIDYNYN 13 IYMPRIOLS NOLIONMISNGD 150d ININVINHI O1 031HIANOI MO G3A0NTY
38 1SNA SANG ININKI3S ONY NOISOU3 AUYHOAE L ‘QIAIMOV 338 SVH NOLLYZIIGYAS IL1S TYNIA ¥ILIY
"SdN8 573 IHL 30 NOISHIANONTVAORIY O1 HOIdd NOLLOIJSNI
NY HO4 151415KI NOLLYAYISNOD Y201 3HL LDYINOD TIVHS HO1VH34O HOXGNY MINMO IH ‘SYIMY.
G3BUNLSIA TTV 40 NOLVZTIGYLS ININVIYI ONY SIILIALLIY 35NYBUNLSIO HLHVE 1V 40 NOLLTTNGD NOdNn 62
“LNINLNYA30 3H1 ¥O LIMLSIO
NOILYANISNGO T¥01 3H1 AB QIAONAY dNE HIHLONY AG 030V1d3H THV ATHL WINA WO GIZTNGVLS
A1LN3NYRY34 3HY W41 OL AHYANGIML SYINY TIY TULNN HONS SY TYNOLLINNA NIVWIY TIVHS SANE S3 87
“SININIAON
H3HLO HO ‘ONIGITS ‘ONIAWNTS OL 30A TUNTIVA ONILSISIH 40 316YAVD 38 TIVHS §3d01S 114 ONY
170 TNOISOY3 UILVMI IOV ISISTH OL INIINANS ALISNIQ Y HUIM HIAEO INLYIOIANON ININVHEId
¥3HLO MO ¥IAOI INIVIIDIA AOL TVINNINIA HOINN NNIIA ¥ SV G3NIIIT 51 NOLLVZTIIRVLS INTHYHNI4
“SNOILYDIIIDIAS NOWVZTIEYLS ININYPU3d SHL HLIM 3INYONOODY NI GIZTIEVLS
38 TIVHS HY3A | NIHLIM 03 1VAILOV3Y 38 10N TIW HOIMA SY3NY 3501 ‘SNOLLYDIIDIS NOUVZIIBVLS

2

3HL'123r0Nd 3H1 40 YINVENS HO VANV ANY NI 35¥3D S3LLIAILOY 3ONVBNNLSIA HINYA MILIY ATIIVIGIWAI
“NY1d STHL 40 SONVONYLS 3H1 OL
ONIGHODOY GILINNYIA 3T TIVHS 'SONIAYYO HY1d HL NO NWOHS ISPANIHLO SY O WILYM 30V4NNS ¥ 40
1333 05 NIHLIM SY3NY 030335 ‘031v1393A 30 LON 0331 STIL4 %00H MY O0¥038 IN3134NOD NI §340T1S
103 "30VHO G3HSINI SNHOY3Y NON ATALYIOINNI O3ZIISYAS ATININYINUIA 38 TIVHS SY2Y G3QVED 11V §7
*GOH 131 G3AONddY ¥ONYLS
3H1 H1WA 3ONYOH023Y NI OI10NYH 38 TIVHS NOILON¥1ENOD DNNING 03Y31NNOONT SONRIAS ¥O Sd33S HT
“$30V4UNS NIZON HO 03LVHNLYS NO 030Y1d 38 LON TIvHS T (7
“STI OINI
Q3UVHOJHOIN! 38 LON TIVHS SIVIILYN TIBISSTINOD ATHOM HO ANDNN 'L4OS HO STVINILYN NIZOBT
“sTId
AHOLOVASILYS 40 NOLLINY1SNOD INIATHY HO HLIM TH3JU3 NI QINOM LYHL STYIMILYH TIGYNOLLOZ GO
MO NOIZHO4 ¥3HLO ¥O ‘005 ‘5100 ‘HSNYG ‘STIOILUYA HIZON4 40 30 38 TIVHS STVRIILYH T1Id It
‘SSINDIOML 01 1ON SHIAVT 30¥1d 38 TIvHS STI NIHLMVI TIV 07
°$3000 HO SLHINTUINOTY TvO0T HLM IDNYOHOIDY NI G3LOVAWCD 38
TIVHS "D13 'S1INGNOD ANV SIUNLONNLS ‘'SDNIGTING 140ddNS O G30NILNI Til4 'SNITEOYd Q3LYI3M ¥3HI0
HO 35N30ISENS ININITLLIS 3DVAdNS NOISONI 350G3M O1 0IUIND3IN SY GILIYANOD 30 TIVHS STILI TIY.
SH1430
1N3N30V1d U0SAOL ¥O NY1d 34VOSONY] OL ¥3434 'ONIMIINM ONY ONIIIIS 0L HORId 30V1d NI TI0SOL
3AVH TIVHS 031Y1393A 38 OL SY3UY 105401 40 ININIOV1d OL HOINd STIOS G3LDVAHOD NO SIHONI
4 D19 ONY SIHOHI 5 OL T 40 HL30 HANINMA Y 01 G31RIVOS 38 TIVHS OFU0S4OL 38 OL IV HOIHASYIUY 3
SONMYIQ
NY1d 3H1 NO 038RDSI0 HINNVIY 3HL NI 40 GISOJSIO 38 TIVHS SdNa WO GIAONIY LNINIGIS TIY ¢!
WILYM 35VaRNS
43U ¥ 'OITIAOHS U3HSYM 38 ININIAIS IHL TIVHS
N1 03504510 GNV AVD ¥HOM HOV3 40 GN3 JHL A8 3415

0 "IMIS FIOLS ‘HILIG 0ISGVOY ANY O
35¥D ON NI"NY1d SHL NI 03814S 30 ¥3NNVI

NOLLORYISNOD 3HL 01 TINUNIZY 38 TIVHS ¥TYM3AIS ¥O nand 1N3INIOES o1
“HOLLO3JSNI 40 InilL 3HL ¥ STYIDIIO ASNIOY
AMOLYINOIM 01 TBVIIVAY IAVN 33 NV 3IS IHL 38 A3HL

21¥0 3H1 ONY GNNO SIDN3IDMIC ANY SY TIFM SY GI13dSNI FH3M SNG 5§93 LYHL SILYD SNIMOHS 901 ¥
“034IN03Y 36 I GITIVASNI 35OHL
40 SNOILYDIIGON ¥O 'SdNG ININIOVIAIN ‘G3193dY3 SV NHO4¥Id OL TIv4 SANG 533 IHL 41 ATILVIOINNI

‘031VALLDY ONI38 01 HORid GILNINT1NI ATINS INIALNYA3A IHL HO LOMISIO

W01 3IHL NY1d $73 NY 3AYH 1 35V TLIS-340 TIV
"31iS FHL LV GIDHYHOSI] O ‘G34NNA ‘03RING ‘AINUNG
38 TIVHS STYIILYW SHIQING G35NN HO SILSYM HG STVINLVI DNIATING ON '©3S °L3 1182 ONY '1'122 "D3S
131052 300 Yd 5 1Y SNOLVINO3Y LNINIOVNYH 3USVM ONOS 5.ININ1UYA3 3HL HLIM 3ONVOHO2DV
140 035045K ¥0 Q3194934 GNY 3115 IML NONJ GIAONIY 38 TIVHS SIUSYM ONV STYINILVH ONIGINE Y 0
“INIAL14¥430 3HL 40 39130 TYNOIDTY IHL NO/GNY 1911510 NOLLYAYISNOD
Y001 3HL AJLLON ONY NOLLNTIOd ININIO3S ONY NOISON3 ¥Od TWILNLOd 3HL JZININIA OL SIOLLOVH4
INIWIOVNYM 1538 AVIIJOUY ININTTdNI TIVHS. NOLLNTI0d NoISOu3
G313 1350V HO4 T¥I1HI10d FHL OHISO SIOHYISHNIMID NIFSTHOINN ONIIIADISIA NOAN ATILVIINNI
311V HO Al HZ 38 TIVHS 534015
JUNOOLS *1324 5€ G339¥3 LON TIVHS SIHOIZH TTINIOLS "SONIMIYEIA Nwid HL NO NMOHS HINNYI

(SINOILYDOT 3HL 1V T WJHO0LS 38 TIVHS NOLLYIIOIA 4O ININHSIGYLSS 3H11 HO4 G3HINDIY UOSOL
NID38 SNOLLYH3 O ONIGENYO GNY SHINYITD 340438 350
Q39M33 ONY Q3XHYV ATHYI1D 38 LS SY3MY 3SIHL SAVIY NYTd 3HL HO NMOHS SIINYONNOS IONVENNLSIA

5
2
3
3
g
3
g
g
H
H]
¢
H
H
2
%

‘39V1S HOY3 NI G38M4IS3Q SY3NY ISOHL O1 GILIKN 38 TIVHS ONIJJILS TIOSIOL ANV ONIZENNO ‘ONHYITD
“IVRILYI TIGYNOILDIMBO ¥3HLO GNY S100Y NOLLYLIOIA
ST3U1 3A0N3Y 01 105401 40 G3dJIULS ONY ‘O3EENNO "GIHVITO 38 O IV U311 30 OL SYINY

IONT ‘STLIAL ANY SNILYYLS OL OIHd SAYO £ LSYITLV

GHY M3IAZY 4O SIONYHD ISOHL 40 TYLLINGNS HILLIMM ¥ SHINOIY AW ASNIOV ONPAIATY IH1 'SIONVHD
3SCHL 40 NOLLYININI VAT O HOIMd NY1d G3AONddY 3HL D1 SIONVHO ANY 40 OIILLON 38 TIVHS AONIOY
DNIV3IAZYS 3H1 SINLLTTV LV 3LIS 193r0Hd L Ly F18VIVAY 38 1SN (AONIOY DNIWIIAZN 3HL AQ G3LYT
ONY O3NOIS ‘034NVIS) SONMYEA O3A0YAY FHL 4O AdOD ¥ NYld ST3 03A0HJY 3HL HLM IINYVONOIIY NI

3MO0 38 TIVHS ST113 ONY 5103 Sv TIam oM o

‘S3LON TVH3NIO




840 ) smosom
FONVHINT NOILONULSNOD ¥90Y
on v
T8 143207
LON S1S3SHUNOD JOVNIVHA ¥3H10 ¥O 'SINIAND WIS
'S3IHOLK ONIEIINS M
ONBSY (oM HSYA TIVLSNI 5O GILVIAITIV S HOLLIGNOD 11NN
100405 48 T 0Napa
“SAYMOYOY NO G311SOd3A SNDE 3V LNIWIAIS 4O SINNOWY
¢ oL T3NL3Y
1Y G2AOWEH 38 TIVHS SAYMOYOY 03Ad NO GBIS0d30 INENKIZS
TIVY "3S0dHN SHL ¥O4 LIS NO O3NIV NIV 38 TTVHS JTGMO0IS
¥ MO0Y ONIOQY AB SNOISNIWIJ 031319345 3H1 OL GSNIVANVIN
A ™ 3ONVMLNT NOLLOS
FONYNIINVA
"g3sSoY¥d
- ONIZE HOLKD 40 3215 ¥O3 ATALYINGOMNY Q3715 38 01 3did
oom “030IAONS 3SIMNIHLO LON ST ¥FHNLOVANNYA AS G3IH034S
= m SY ¥3A0D 3did ¥3dOHd ONY 035N S13did 1H3AIND TWNOLLHO
MIATNII YA GITIVISNI 36 TINOHS WHZE TIBVLNNOW
W o 35NYHING NOLLONHLSHOD
w HO0M ONIELNS OL HORID W8 TYAONSY INSWISS
F] E ] TTv05 01 LON FBYLNS ¥ OL AYMOYOY WONH G3L¥3AKI 38 TIVHS 40NN T
S 1, L SONVAING 40 HLOWA TINA HEAO XOOH ONELXE ‘ONVHLIE
A - 9 X008 31114 1SOdWOD DO0Y 4O NOLLYTIVASNI 01 MO TOSHOLIAONIY 71
=] “ o L% #711v130 NOILONYLSNOD QHVANVLS SIION
m m
z 4 ATV Ao S SIVHINIONGS 1ve 3155,
|— v 3ASIS /T HONOBHL 5SVd %0% - %€ 375 3NV “Sdid HO4 YIAOD ¥3JOHS IQN0N OL AISN WHIE IWVINNOH.
- = I TE1165 SN 150R N
(7] - 7] - P
o= 0 GIIVONO13 Orv SoEa NOIIHOd SINVOHD =k M3IA NV
o X (SISYE LHOIIM AHG) %001 - %5Z ANIINOD ¥3L1VA JINYONO. — =
c % SQHvONYLS 1504M05
z 7y 3evi
< SALYNYILTY
s T18v14300v N aNd 10GNN3d 3L SHL 77
pi T9v1 NI SOUVERVLS FHL HLIWA ATEHOD GINOHS 1SOINOD 3L 40 SHALINVEYS Tvols kd IHL
4 Y
3HL 40 LNINOAMOD DINVOHONI 3HL Y TT8YL4320V LON 34Y S1oN00Hd GOOM GISSI20¥dTH
“diHD O3AR30 5YM LI HOIHW
WOM4 TYINILYP AYY 31 TTBNIS3 10N QINOHS 19N100Nd 1SOINOD 31 "NILIVI NOI3HO
3QVPENYR S0 (1HOI3M AN AB %1 >) 3344 ATBYNOSYIY 38 GTINOHS ONY SHOQO 31BYNOILIINE0
1 5535504 GINONS 15041105 I ‘31S0ANOD ATIVDIGONIY 30 TINONS 150dMOD THL
“§35HN0S UILLY ONYOO NEYBXIOOM HO GHYA Oy ‘SONIGNTHO dMNLS ‘0004 ‘THALTRONOY
L T13M 38 QINOHS 1SO4NOD
53780 CAINON 3 SWISVA S1537084 1o G35 38 AV V4R 70 G3504N05 SOMVANSGS
305 I8Ny XN VT
z |3 (Hong NT;MVIA G3NS #ivaife
H 303313 HINONHON ONY U3AVI NSAGK
2 Sav3 NI IOHAAI0d 31IS0INOD
g 7 EFTETI I Fwas o1 lon
S3unLoANT GTIANOIENS
OMLLIN 1IN W3 -
(TS — vosoLion TSINIW SdAL - NOILO310Yd IS INT ©vE ¥3L1d
N TYDrvIa 340K _____Fwosolion
SWAISAS o) SVa ¥31114 ¥31VM a3dnnd 91-¥# TIVL3d NOILLONYLSNOD QHVANVYLS
Tigsnot 91-€ # V.30 NOILONYLSNOD QUVANYLS ‘SOMYZVH SLI:VBLL 350VO AVI DNIGNOd SHIHI SAYMAYOH G3AVA HOrVA NO 357 10N 00,
swanz wakt | swnows | swiwoms | swnons | Tiousnni
i ‘SILON HY1d THL OL SNIJNODDY SOVE 035N
TR NOLLYMNOSNI TYNOLLIGQY MO VML INIWIQIS ¥O0S 1S0ANDD 11 TI¥ S TIIM SV INIWIQIS GILVINNNSY 3504510 NOLLD3ASNI SHA HALIY LTILYIGINRI
° S i S — onaits vvisa 335 114 dNnS Ton G3UVILINI 38 TIVHS SHIVd34 Q303N TIV SOV 40 ININIIVI3H 403 LIS NO
o o | s | OSN siovavaly S o w00 uas 1 UYL 30 T 410403V GHOW 4 38 TV BOVD GI000D U0 GIOVIYG LI
§ : A e o o o s o e o 1
s3tovvaiin ‘SNIANNd 'G3103130 51 N3T80HA ANY 31 “AIvQ 03L534SNI 30 TI¥HS SOVE NI 9 NIHAA HO TINJ TVH N3 030143 HO 035N ONY 031113 30 TIVHS SOV “IN3AT
g “Q3NIINDS ONY DNILYOS J4ONNY HOV3 ¥ILJV ONY SISYE ATHIZM Y NO 031034SNI 38 TIVHS SOVE ¥IL NS L3N 5
sator sam ase | man worauLs 30 TIVHS SIIVIN dring 5531 61MIAIHIBPA HINLOVINYA DAL AR OII2345 s or
5 “ON Y ONISSVd ON STIDLLMYA TV Ohilddvi) 40 T1GY4YD 38 TIVHS SOVE MILTI ‘ST 05
40 HION3MLS MY3L TYOIOZ3dHL NKINMY Y GHY ‘1S 00 40 HAONINLS 1SN HOVININ
TR = o o x| onmasonsan S19Ad 40 3031 ¥ ‘G34MY12 ATINNDIS CHY HINNLDYATNY 1 A8 G31ID34S VSE1024 40 HION3H1S TUSH3L EvHO WANNIN Y SAYH TIVHS SIHGYA SHL WANNINY 1V %
3Nvit 3L NI SOVE SHL OLN| G3LH3SHI 38 TIVHS JSOH 30HYHOSKI drind 31 *» “ATUNINVHE3A NIVN3Y
SSMIILS 4O G3LT14NO3 §1NOLYZITIGYLS LNINVIUIA LN CINIVLNIVA 38 TIVHS TaHNVHD
3 o 34075 39N03Y OL OYA IH1 ¥IONN U014 38 AYN WRIILYA SHILNTIOAHON ONY " 03AV4 5) AYMOYOM 38 TS
o oz - S¥aLImg F1BIQ0HIHON HIHLO HO NOOY NYI 1D ‘%5 DNKIIIOXI S34OTS HO4 “%S NVHL ¥ILYINO 3SYRENS OVOY 'G3NOLS S1 AVMOYOH TINN OINIVINIYA 38 TIVHS W38 NIHLNVI 03TI0H €
e a B 03 534015 NO G30¥1d 38 10N TIVHS SOVA "ALIDYaYS 3OMYHOSIQ 3SYZHONI 01 SNOLS “SNOLIYTIYASNI TIV HO4 03UIND3Y 38 TIVHS SA33 ‘dval
ied W34 NO G30¥1d 3 AV SOVE '030IAOHd 3 TIVHS H1Vd MOTd ONY ININAYTYIONN Iwos el 1on 4O NISYE INIRI3S D1 AMYANERIL 1TTNI HO4 O3UINGIY 38 LON TI¥HS NOLLSILONA 131N T
FULHEL03O ¥ 'IIGISSO LON SI SHL IH3HA "SYIHY INVISISIY NOISON3 “T1VLS "IHOV Ui = YIHY IDVNIVHA WANIOYN 'L
avaveosa evaveo3a olNo A 303AT 38 TIVHE SOV TIv13d LNOHSYM 31340ONOD EEeT)
“OloHd olohd o ‘oicH OLOHd Tonalvy 'G3HOYLLY AQYIHTY SdVH1S DNLLIN HLWA INOD SOYE SSITNN TYADR3Y 3LVINIOVS
Tadanar) ©1 SAVH1S NO 033V1d 36 TIVHS SDVE ‘G311 3V HO QW4 IAVH LvHL 350HL "LNOHSYIM ONIY 00 1S0dNOD J0 N3r MIANVId MIIA NOLLYAT 13
104 (dda) 40 INIWIOVIdIN HOJ I1EVIVAY Ld i 30 TIVHS SOVE Jrvds "ININID3S 30 Tind U a3sn INCHSYM!
Veanwvisi [SEUdokaiol BAONRLE | BGHELE | BUOMPUE | AdAL LY 3N0D3 AFHL N3H/A 035V1d3H 38 TIVHS SOVE M3L4 '030IACYd 38 TIVHS S350dNNd [Pas——
T¥S04SKI HOJ AFHINGIM AHINIHOYH HLIM Sv8 3H1 O /O SNYIR TTGVLINS ¥ T
ALNG MVIH dnd ed M NSOV 0 SNVIN IV 40 3NIL 3HL 1¥ 030335 19310 38 AV w SONIN ¥ILTE T
SHOLLYOUIDI4S ANAINIA SRBYA X305 1504100
JNKS o8 iSRSy GRMVAZH W B “ALNIBYLS ONY L1HOISH 0300V HO4 NOILYHNOIINOD
N7 %oL SSEPQMISY 3DNVLSISIY AN IVCIrYHAD ¥ NI GDHOVLS 38 AV wSONR HILTE T hwww__m
“INIWII4ANS 0S¥ SY QYINS HONN lsdose FETWIEY LSNP NITINN. “IONVINHOIY3d MAWILAO ¥OJ 3AVHO 1¥14 NO TIVISHI |
M1 QY N340 1D 30 TIVHS HS3W1 3HL 3S¥O H3LLY] L NI‘G3NO3Y ¥O G3LVIIOI ONY INVIANI LT — NIy T SHloN o =t
v202/b/6 38 AVIVHO0S 3HL ‘G3AON3Y 33 TIVHIS SIXYIS HO0S 3H1 OL ANYINGINL Y3HY 3L 0 NOLLYZIIGYIS NOdN 'L h
g oL 1434 30 TIVHS SX00S INITAJONIATO HVIA 81502 Ze9r-Q WISY JUSNIL BYHO NvId (a0 NOLLY13D3A INSNYIWH3d ¥O
3va + M3 L4V 530S I1TVOVHOIOOLOHd 'SHINON 9 ¥314V 03OVIdIH 38 TIVHS SXO0S ¥3L T4 318vaveo3aole s P '2'0.5039v1d ANYHOJNIL HIW
: v nisv WionauL zom Nz 1 g3ZIEVLS
SUNOH V43N MO ONIGHODIY 2L FOR-0 IIE L S HIOM i SINVLS HICOOM € X T X .T- 38901 WY38 NIHLNVI
Q3uv438 30 TIVHS 1A W3LIV ONY A 33 TIVHS 56005 5 CEVaNVLS WORINIY QoMI3W 1531 Atu3d0Hd
“Hvd ML A1 SHIHAIST3 GIBHISI 3NNV 3HL M G3SO ¥ TN TE o]
Sl i e N L SR (00 SCHYGNYLS ONIVIOTIO! 3H1 LT3 VAL ST TIL030 NAOW HONS JavA 38 [T —— taan) Lz I SLINOS
“$%505 Y3171 S5O OL GILLIN3d 38 1ON TIIS SIvRIL TS S9VB ¥3LTI4 3nn ¥ 1L ¥30UVT 53 3 S NI TEYIVAY 0STY)
3 iAoV ANV JHL A8 G348 OF 41 TI8YdVo 30 TIVHS AZHL ‘SHY3S J4AL L. GHILLS TTN0A HIONTHLS HOIM HLIM HAAZS wONRS Y3110
N 1930M | 5505 301 40 34015HMO0 ATILYIINAI OITIVASHI 38 AV SINYS TYINYI WYHSOHA TOHINGD HOILNTIOd TR31YH X3 1039 NIAGKHON WO 30V 30 TIVHS 59V 31T INTIOAMOY L OEHLT HILINVG 91
NOISO¥3 d30vd SHLONTY 1ON TIVHS ¥DOS ANY 3A08Y HIONIT S3lon
34015 PAMIXYA " IHINNSTTY %005 NIvel 3HL O1 5334930 5 Ly 34015 dN 1334 9 1SV3I1 1v 0I0N31A 1]
38 TIVHS X00S 3H1 40 SONI H10@ "3aVHO 13ATTONILSDA 1V 030V1d 38 TIVHS XOOS ¥3114 1SOdN0D T 3soH w“_‘(_“__h_ WIANOIIVAITI v
roscomBICRoNG T 37V 40 SGMYCHVAS 31 L33 TIVHS 150N '+ FT6V1 0 SOHVONVLS L3N TIVHS DINEY4 X005 1 50H 30uVHISI —_—
waeraciols ond HecH 29 X3UY ASSYHD 031130 TIIM GHIMIRVINGD JIVI3G NOLLY TIVASNI
20 waRwE 3o PR S annd
03661 vd ‘O8NGSANOHLS S Ee R —
A S e IOOM 2XZ —_V3HY Q33HNLSINN Sais NOLLYHO 1
%008 ¥3W WOLLIGTY
1504n03 (a30r3AN093W) w03 310M YV NOIo3s o018 ¥3gENY I
NOILONYLSNOD === SAvALS OHLLIN AN ANYEH —] 335 v L IN3WIO3S JCTETER ¥
VHaNaD A& — /wm Nz 3358 Teoimon S0t k
) P W/ SN 255754 AR (acounoram.m | '
4} < 55508 e INNHISIY
ONIINIONI ) P o vauv . %550 e Lt
aza /5 asuniso 574 (u313MvI0 42 ONY 21 g
257 ey ™ LHOIZH NI
T TGS sanv> P et 3T OHOVIS 40 K03 ST
MIINNOILO3S SHOOLHD, (B mONHEITY (SIV130 104 531ON i
: A3V OIUVHINYINGD
P oNILSHG F— B eoauL VLG 5 ek SR SR O
L 15 iAo SE NI DUV
. ¥3yY 038uNn1SI JOOM .
A V3NV GITUNLSIONN V3NV ASSYHO '031¥1IOIATIIM
5505 31713 150400 VIGIN ¥31W 03IENHOTE
57001 G39¥14 STNVLS H3000M ZL2




8408

ON OrauVHg

AYLSILNIA AUVHYIL
S$7lv1i3a 31iS ? 34S'®3

Vd ‘ALNNOD

auve
EICELET]

NolLGns3a

p20zivi6
an

va

ON 103084

MaTOOMIBLOMESYING
es0t9cEl0ls) INOHD

09691 vd 'OUNESANONIS
UVHLHAYHANS 675

NOILONYLSNOD
IvHaNaID

kd
ONMNAIANIONT
aza

avosoLion 3wosolion
TIVL3A TIVLS ONIMEYd  1IVLId 30V4HNS ONINYYM 318v.103.130
NOISN3NIO O 3HL 40 %59 O1 %05 SI N3MIQ D 3HL
* ° i &0 a =
s
—4
(H—¢ 5 -
e H MM “w%u,, s
P e o &=
i R
-
g
JTvVOS 0L LION 3¥0s oL 10N

TIVL30 TO8WAS ONDYVd VAV 1IVL3A TIVLS ONIMYYd Vav

30vdS ONDvd

squvanvis

D T T

CRCCI L ICH

~

T3

S—NoIs ONINUYd
Vav G350d0ud
(dAL) SHIIND
rZNO©305P LY
53NN 1Nvd 308,

Fvosolion
7Iv13a 84N2 31340N0D
NOILD3S SS080

RRRRARRRRARR

INIOr NOILOVHINOD

31349N0D
13N3

Sniavy
sniavd.

__vi3a___
JON3I3 AOVARId

SNOWLYDOT 150d 3H1 LV SH3LO04 3130
HIM LHOIH NI 10049 - ¥ 38 0L NN
‘SHIUNIIVANNYN ¥3d GITIVISHI 36 0L 3dAL ONIDNIS 40

230D

“NIN.T

wu roLLo8 .t —-H

A
snacros 3901 onas

Wy do1xL

NN Y- S1504 35031

V3034

HLM 35HVONO2IY

5 UMW G3LNIVd

___awsouon
JIVI3a NOIS vav
SYIUY IAVA NI SNOIS TIV
404 313854103 AN 14000t OO0
Peierrratiiy

0028 ML X | | sinIwaMINO3Y D01
TIVHS NOIS S3LLTYNIA 0SS INIANIN | | 434 HoLLYTIYASNI GHY.

ONDIYd VaY
NOIS DNDINYd

ONWOLONY | |2 SriLinon Nots

3N oL 310N
1o3rans
SHOLYIOIA
3V Hsit
)

150d AVIMYAY3YE 8 34AL

NOIS ONDIMYd

5321A30 1041NOD
SldAviiL WHOAINA

NR Y

530v4s TIEISSIIOV A vaY
&

(3ton 335) wort

©L N¥0IH0D : o

Tk Snols onbiuvd |
FneIs5300V VOv NIV || 1041000 Stamais WiOAIND
Q3A¥3SIY HO YNV FHL 40 18
HOIS 404 SNOILYDLID3dS
L FRIOANGD TIVHS SNOIS
) ‘ONDRIY TN6ISSITOV YaY

IwvosoLion

VL3A LNOMVS

m:..a
p—
o i A NG oz
TS oo Yot Taks
WITANY LIVHASY OV 1430 358102

Zim Lrdor T35 35v8 OMLSTG HoLYR

35O DMNYIM DHLSHE HOLYN

3
__SOVIUEINI ONIRVE
1IVYHdSY ONILSIX3/M3IN

OHILSIG DIN| gHI T8
35UN0D 35VB 0808 €

35HN0D FOV4UNS 214

wwoasons
T ERCH) ML ey
2249 94 Hi ntor v3s s i
3R OIS e T

T oL ton

TIV.L30 ONILNY1d 3341 sNONaId3d

OL VetHd I .| 40 1430
L 114 40 53613 A ANY3S.

9
L NOV d¥14NG 40 340N 3A0M3Y
YIVE LOOM 1O¥4 THIM IAONTY

TIHLRONS 3 -.C XOVE TING MM M &
IV 40 dOL NOY NS $5303 3rONIY

“30V¥D 3HSINJ 3A0SY T OL.1 WAL
%O KUIM TIAT1 38 TIVHS ¥¥109 / 34v1) 1008

¥2°ON 'H1430.9 35vaEns

SININIAON ¥IHLO ONV SNIGITS 151538 OL INIDIAINS
OL IN3II44NS ALISNIQ ¥ HLM ¥IAOD IALLYIIOIANON ININYYIA Y3HLO ¥O ¥3A0D IALVIIDIA X0L MHOINN WNININ ¥ SYH LI NIHVA NOLLYZIIRYLS TYNI4 GIAIINOY
AWM OL G3H3AISNOD 38 TIVHS SY3HY 038HNLSII 1TV 'NOLLI310Ud LTI GNY HOO0S LTIS JHL S¥ HONS 'STONINOD AUVHONIL IAONIY 3LIS 40 NOIVZIIBYIS IWNII NOAR 11

MY NOISOM 151534

NTVMIQIS TIVLSNI ‘G3GHN1SI 3HIM LYHL ONDIEY 40 SYIUY NI INIW3AYA TIVISNI O

SYIUY ANV ITNGVIS 6
ONIZNND J1TUONOD TIVASHI '8

“ININIAYA ONY NTYMIGIS MIN HOJ ISVE-GNS INOIS TIVISNI

'03033N 31 JOVHVO IHL 40 ¥OO JLTUINOD IHL HOS LNOHSYM JLTUONOD V IZTILLN “JOVHVO L1ONKISNED 9

v
MO TIVASHI “JOVHYD 40 NOLLYTIVLSNI HO4 YIHY 30YHO “SNY'd 3HL NO GL¥DIONI SV ONIBHNO GNY NOILD3IS INIW3AYA 40 TYAONIY HO INIHIAV
“ONIIING LONYASNOD "NOILYONNOS SNIGTING TIVISNI v

SNOLLYIND3 HLM JONVIHOIOV Nl 40 3504SK) ONY 3115-440 INVH GHY X

3AON3Y “NolLIGY HLVOIVIWY IHLIGVO €

“HY1d 3HL NO G3LYOKNI

Y vauy 40 %308 1118 TIVASHI V3HY 34140 3JOTSNAOA NY1d 3HL NO GILVDIONI SV NOILOZLONd 1T THI SHL TIVISHI T
ONTEIOLS
ANY 40 IHL AJILON TINNOSHI ILIS ININLLYIA HIHIO
ANY ONY ¥34013A30 L ALNNOD JONNON 3HL DNONY 31

¥IINAIMAS L

3ON3ND3S NOILONYLISNOD

UILVIUO MO 1€ $3d0 ANY HO 513XV IE )
‘39NINO3S IHL NI -3OVLS TYOILMO. SY OILON 14 HS3d 40 NOLLYT 3115 3HL 1V 1H3STd 38 15NN IINDISIO HIFHL O TWNOISSI0HS GISNIIN ¥
NOILYDOT ¥S0dSIa

G3N0YAY NY O1 LIS-440 TINILYIN T TV EX 35N3Y ¥04 TYRIZLVI TIGVLINS TIV TUDOOLS
‘SONMVRID NYTd SNOILYDOT TTIdH01S Vid 38 TIVHS TVINILYI T4H00LS TIV
‘G3033N 5V SNOLLYAYDX ¥31¥M3Q OL GIZMLAN 3 TIVHS dvall ININIO3S 1SOIHOD N DVA ¥IL T HILYM G3dNnd ¥
“ATH3dONd 40 3504510
ONY 3115 440 TVINILVI S530)3 TIV3AON3Y 0303 HOMIN QINISIO SV 3UIS IZIUGVLS O1 NOLLYIIDIA GINVATS I2TMN
3 TIv o4 HON3UL 0L ¥I4TY
NHOM S¥ SONINT dg ONITIVASHI SY3NY 131100 3H1 Lv ONLLBYLS G3TIVISNI 38 GINOHS SILLNIDYA UILYMNHOLS
“FONVMIN3 NOLISNNLSHOD XOON ¥ HONOYHL 3415 153rONd 31 LIX3 GNY HILNT 1SN OLIAVH1 NOLLONHLSNGD TIV
“SY3UY O3LYNOISIA NI UOSHOL TIV I1UHD01S ‘NOILVAYIX3 OL HORId SYINY BNNO ONY MYI 1D
'S¥34V 03ENNLSIA 40 NOLLVZIIBYLS AHYHOJW3L SIMINOIH HIONOT HO 54¥A ¥ MO ALIAILOY 40 NOILYSSZD
“3OV15 ININD3FANS 40 NOLLVILINI O1 ¥OMd 031314MCD 38 15NN FONINOIS NOLLINHLSNOD 3H1 40 3OVIS HOVA
‘S3LON
15141510 NOLLYAMISHOD ALNNOD SOMNON JHL 01 NOILYDLILLON 30IACHd TIVHS J3LLIMKI-0D HO
J3L1INYId ML SILNLDY 3ng MOId SAVO (c) JIWHL 15Y31 1Y GHY 5418 JOMINOD ININIA3S ILININI TIV 40 NOLLVZIIGYLS
4O HOLLYTTVLSNI NON “ATIVNOILIOGY ‘0906629 (015) LY LOIM1SI] NOLLYAUISNOD ALNNO3 JONNON 3HL 3120101 1V naLSAS
Tvo 3HL AJLLON TIVHS S3LLIALL NI GINTOANI SHOLOYHINGD TIV 'SIUIALLOY 3ONVEUNLSIT HINY3 ANY DNILUYLS 340438 SAVQ [€) I3HL 15VI1
1v 05TV "DNILITN v OHY (v14 JONINOD ININIG3S ONY 3 IHL'STMIOI440 TYAIOINN ILYRIJONAY TIV UINMOGHYY
3H1 S3UIALLOY 3SOHL NI GINTOANT SHOLIVMLNOD TIV JLIANI TIVHS HO1YHIHO 3HL 'SILLINIIY Ve 15V31 Ly QIZNGVLS

A131VIG3RNI 38 TIVHS 31IS 193r08d 3HL ‘JOINIHL IOVLS ANY HO 'ALLNLOY 3ONVENNLSID HINY3 SHL 0 NOLLYSSID AVHOAHIL HO NOILTTANOD 3HL NOdN HOILYLNINITdNI
01 HOMId 115K NOLLYANISHOD ALNNOD JONNOW IH1 AB G3AO¥ddY 38 LSNA 3ONINO3S LYHL HOM A NOLLVIAIQ “031ON JFHIHW 14303 ‘GILVILINI §1 39VIS ININDISBNS ¥
340438 031 T1dNOD 38 TIVHS 39V1S HOV3 ‘SIULINL BUHIM N1 033504 TIVHS SIILALLDY TV

S3ILIANILOV NOILONYLSNOD 30 3ON3ND3S

g

*S3LSVYM NOILONYLSNOD A3 LVdIOILNY

F1dX0LS TI0S IHL 4O VINY IHL N LNO OVINS 30 TIVHS ONY ALHIJONd
IHLNONIYW3Y 1SN 3115 3HL WOJ TI0S SS39X3 TTY "LORILSK) HOLLYANISHOD ALNNOD JOUNON IHL ONY KIINIDHI 311 A
3AOMddY 38 15NN ONY Nv1d TOHINOD NOISOYI 31¥Yd3S ¥ IAYH LSNW ILIS TYSOSIG 3HL 1D3S 13 1'452 ONY 35 13 1112 D35

3115 T0HINGS O1 39¥1d NI 3Hv SOOHIIN FUNSNI 1SN SILIALLDY FONVEHNLSIA HLNYA SHL HO4 TBISNOISIH SIVNGINGM 3HL

‘S3LON TVSOdSIA ANV ONITOAD3Y 3LSYM

‘SSYNOIAM HIINWA ONY (D Ni31L¥d T1dVAS ‘525
a3suNLSIA IZNAVLS s00R3d

4031510 315 3108

51 438010 OL | 1SNSNY GNY | NIV O 5§ HOMYW NIJWI3E ONIOIIS MUOANTd 5
31%i G3ONINNOIIN SHIUNLOVANMYI

v 4O AYH HOHONY

“JUOV M3d SHOL € LY KOTNH MYMLS HO AVH Aldd¥
*GA°DS 000} ¥3d 'ST1 05 © GIIS G YINWHO AlddY

‘04 DS 0001 ¥3d "ST105 D (¥IZNILHIS WHOAY3NN 0-0-9¢) YIZNILNI4 NIDOULIN ISVITIHMOTS A1ddY
"OA DS 0004 ¥3d ‘ST 07) © HIIIINII SISATVY 020201 A1ddY

‘G405 000} ¥3d4 'S8100% B NOLSINN TYHNLINONIOY GIZHIAING A1ddY

ALTVH

Srdvdd

(NANOTILINA HATNIOT) SSYHOIAN TYONNY %01
39534 SONAIHD ¥O 3N53J 03Y ONIJITUD %ot
305534 TIVL %09
@¥INNYO4 LOGNNId (M31V3UO HO |'t 5340T5) YINKYOJ 335

*S1 HIBOL00 DL | 1SASAY ONY | NN O 51 HOMYW NIIMLIA ONIGTIS N0 3
31v GIANINHOI3Y SHINLOVANNYI

1V NOISINI DILTVHASY-NON GIAVHAS V¥ DNISN HOTNN MYHLS HO AYH HOHONY 'S

“3HOY ¥3d SNOL £ 1V HOINW MYELS HO AVH A1ddY 'S

“GA"DS 0001 ¥3d 'S81 r D G3IIS B VIWNNOL AlddY ¥

€

T

'

‘GA 05 000} ¥3d ‘ST 05 D (HIT LY. 1S Alddy
“GA°05 0001 ¥3d ‘581071 D ¥IZNILUIS WIOYINNOD SISATVHY 020201 A1daY
"OA DS 00} ¥3d 'S81008 D INOLSIAI TVHNLINONOY GIZRIINING ATdeY

SSYHOIAY TYINHY %5
JUNLN SSYUOINTA MIONLNIN %5¥

SSYHOIAY TVINNINId K0T
8YINNNO4 100NN3d (HILLYTA HO 1 € 534015 YINWNO4 0335

“SNOILYAZY3 3QvHO HSILY
35040Nd 3H1 133N DL OSAOL 3O SIHONI B0 40 MANINIA ¥ 3D¥1d SYIUY 03LVIIOIA ONIGTIS AUNINYHHI O1 Hod

'$3UNSYAN ONIG335 VNI ¥0d

™40 AUon
o044 Ly N0 FOSADL x

oA o SN0k B 3 VIR 1
SSYHOIAN MINNY %00k

‘SFUNSYIW TOULNOD AUVHOLWIL HO4

“MO138 SNOLLYDIO3dS ONIGIIS TYNIS H3d ONIMAS NI VIV

IZMNIBYLS AUNINYWY3d N3HL ONY FUOV/SNOL € LY HOINW HLIM V3NV JZNISVLS ATRIVEOdWAL
'a314103dS SY NOSY3S ONIMONO 3HL 40 3AISINO SN0 NOLLDNALSNGD J1 *3LON

ONIQ33s




\
D D
4.'\. | YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

October 1, 2024

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: BROOKSTEAD APARTMENTS PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT
PLAN REVIEW NO. 2
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1423, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0614

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our second review of the Preliminary/Final Land
Development Plan Application for the Brookstead Apartments. The submitted information consists of the
following items.

e Letter of Transmittal prepared by Hanover Engineering, dated August 27, 2024.

e Response letter prepared by Hanover Engineering, dated August 23, 2024.

e Revised Waiver Request Letter prepared by Hanover Engineering, dated August 23, 2024.

e FEasement Closure Reports.

e Viewshed Analysis.

¢ Transportation Impact Assessment prepared by Traffic Planning and Design, Inc., dated June 7, 2024.

e Post Construction Stormwater Management Report prepared by Hanover Engineering, dated April 29,
2024, revised August 23, 2024.

¢ Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan (30 sheets) prepared by Hanover Engineering, dated April
29, 2024, revised August 23, 2024,

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, Brookstead, LLC, is proposing a land development at property located on the southeastern
corner of the S.R. 0611 and Scotrun Drive intersection.

The existing property has an area of 5.59 acres and is located within the C, Commercial Zoning District.
It is bordered by S.R. 0611 to the west, Scotrun Drive to the north, and Robinwood Terrace to the east.
The existing property includes the former Pangea restaurant with associated parking and driveway taking

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 6106252999 Kl 610625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com



1

4.\ Pocono Township Planning Commission

ﬁ Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024
Page 2 of 15

access from S.R. 0611. The 100-year floodplain of Scot Run traverses the southeastern corner of the
project site. The remainder of the property consists of wetland areas and woodlands.

The proposed development includes the construction of a four-story 64-unit apartment building with
associated parking. Access to the proposed development will be taken from Robinwood Terrace and an
emergency access is proposed via S.R. 0611. In accordance with Section 470-20.B.(1) and Schedule A

(Attachment 1), multifamily dwellings (apartment houses) are permitted within the C, Commercial Zoning
District.

The plans were accepted by the Township Planning Commission at its meeting on May 13, 2024.

Based upon our review of the above information, we offer the following comments and/or
recommendations for consideration.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1. Comment 1 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Waivers in Comments 10, 13, 26, 30, and 34 were previously requested from sections of the Subdivision
and Land Development Ordinance and were recommended for approval by the Township Planning
Commission. Waivers in Comments 23.a and 23.c are newly requested.

2. In accordance with Section 390-19.F.(6)(c), “the applicant shall be responsible for submission of
the plan and all required supporting documentation to the Monroe County Planning Commission,
the Monroe County Conservation District, PennDOT, and all other governing agencies”.
Submissions to, correspondences with, and approval from the following outside agencies shall be
provided to Pocono Township:

a. Monroe County Planning Commission

Per Section 390-19.1, “no official action shall be taken by the Board of Commissioners until
either the Township has received the comments of the Monroe County Planning Commission
or a period of 30 days has expired following transmittal of the preliminary plan to the County
Planning Commission”.

b. Monroe County Conservation District/Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection — Erosion Control Adequacy and NPDES Permit

C. Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection — Sewage Facilities Planning
Module

Per Section 390-19.J, “the Township shall concurrently make its decision on the sewage
facilities planning module, and if approval is granted, the completed sewage planning
documents shall be forwarded to the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection.
Preliminary plan approval shall be conditional upon Department of Environmental
Protection sewage planning approval.”

d. Pennsylvania Department of Transportation — Highway Occupancy Permit



=

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 3 of 15

Per Section 390-19.K, “if a highway occupancy permit shall be required for access to a
Township or state road, approval of the preliminary plan shall be conditional upon the

issuance of a highway occupancy permit by the Township and/or PennDOT, as the case may
be”.

e. Pocono Township Sewer Authority — sanitary sewer service design and capacity

f. Brodhead Creek Regional Authority — water service will-serve and sewage treatment
capacity

g. Pocono Township Volunteer Fire Company

(From Previous Comment 2 from Review No. 1) The Applicant shall provide updates on outside
agency submissions and approvals.

Comments 3 through 7 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(1)(c), the plan shall include “truck turning movement
diagrams for at least a WB-50 truck™. The fire truck turning diagram shall be provided to the Fire
Company for its review. (Previous Comment 8 from Review No. 1) The response letter
acknowledges the need for submission to the Fire Company.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(2), the submission shall include “exterior elevations of any
proposed buildings including at least the front and side elevations™. Proposed building elevations
shall be submitted for review. (Previous Comment 9 from Review No. 1) The response letter
indicates building elevations will be provided with a subsequent submission.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(6), the submission shall include “proof of legal interest in
the property, a copy of the latest deed of record and a current title search report™. A title search
report shall be completed and submitted. (Previous Comment 10 from Review No. 1) The
response letter indicates a title search report will be provided with a subsequent submission.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(8)(a), the submission shall include “completed sewage
facilities planning module(s) for land development and other required sewage planning documents
as required by the Pennsylvania Sewage Facilities Actl and PA DEP”. In addition, and in
accordance with Section 390-29.J.(8)(c), “if service by the Township, a sewer authority or a public
utility is proposed, a letter or other written certification from the Township, the authority or the
public utility stating that it will provide the necessary sewer service and verifying that its system
has adequate capacity to do so”. (Previous Comment 11 from Review No. 1) Approvals from
Pocono Township and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection shall be
received prior to plan recordation.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(10), the submission shall include “confirmation that the soil
erosion and sedimentation control plan has been accepted for review by the Monroe County
Conservation District”. (Previous Comment 13 from Review No. 1) All submissions to,
correspondence with, and permit from the County Conservation District/PADEP shall be
provided.

In accordance with Sections 390-29.J.(15) and 390-48.T.(10), where access is to a state road, a



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 4 of 15

valid state highway occupancy permit shall be obtained prior to plan recording. Confirmation that
the highway occupancy permit application has been accepted for review by the Township or
PennDOT as applicable. 4 PennDOT permit is required to remove the existing driveway and to
install the proposed 20-foot geogrid emergency access. (Previous Comment 14 from Review No.
1) All submissions to, correspondence with, and permit from PennDOT shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-29 K, the submission shall include “a community impact analysis
including the following information shall be required for land developments containing 15 or more
dwelling units or residential lots in the aggregate; all nonresidential developments (with the
exception of agricultural development) with buildings containing in excess of 20,000 square feet
of floor space in the aggregate; or development of any kind impacting 30 acres of land or more in
the aggregate”. A waiver is requested from Section 390-29.K to not be required to submit a
community/fiscal impact analysis. (From Previous Comment 15 from Review No. 1) The

Township Planning Commission recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting
held on July 8, 2024.

In accordance with Section 390-29.N, “prior to approval of the land development plan, the
applicant shall submit to the Township a land development plan engineering certification stating
that the proposed layout of proposed roads, lots, and open lands complies with the Township's
ordinances, particularly those sections governing the design of subdivision roads and stormwater
management facilities, and that all improvements will be installed in accord with the specific
requirements of this chapter or any waivers or modifications granted by the Township. This
certification requirement is meant to provide the Township with assurance that the proposed plan
is able to be accomplished within the Township's current regulations™. A note to this effect shall
be placed on the plan. (Previous Comment 16 from Review No. 1) A note to this effect shall still
be placed on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-32.B.(2), no final plan shall be signed by the Board of
Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds until proposed
developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with § 390-35 and the Pennsylvania
Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended,!!! have been accepted by the Board
of Commissioners”. All agreements shall be executed, and financial security posted prior to plan
recordation. A construction cost estimate shall be submitted for review. (Previous Comment 17
from Review No. 1) The response letter indicates a cost estimate will be provided with a
subsequent submission.

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(6)(e)[2][a], “no more than 35% of the original ground cover
within any designated steep slope area on the property may be disturbed by grading, filling or other
means. At least 65% of the original ground cover must remain undisturbed during the
establishment, alteration or maintenance the property.” The Resource Impact Table proposes
43.7% of the existing steep slopes be disturbed. A waiver is requested to permit the greater
disturbance in steep slopes. (From Previous Comment 18 from Review No. 1) The Township
Planning Commission recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on July

8, 2024.

Previous Comments 19 and 21 through 23 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 390-48.T.(11) and 390-48.T.(13)(c), all access driveways shall be



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 5 of 15

paved in their entirety. The specifications for such pavings shall be approved by the Township as
applicable for the specific use proposed in accordance with § 390-59D. Per Section 390-59.D.(5),
“the applicant shall provide computations documenting expected axle loads for parking areas to
support the pavement section selected”. The proposed parking section pavement consists of 1.5-
inch wearing course, 2.5-inch binder course, and 4-inches 24 modified stone. This pavement
section lies between the required light load and moderate load sections provided in this Section.
The applicant shall provide a calculation in support of the selected pavement section. (Previous
Comment 24 from Review No. 1) The response letter indicates the base course depth has been
revised to meet the requirements for a Moderate Load (3-inches). The Typical Paving Sections
Jor Parking Lots and Driveways on Sheet DET-I propose a 2.5-inch base course and a 3.5-inch
base course, respectively. The Sections shall be revised.

In accordance with Section 390-48.AA. “sidewalks and road crosswalks may be required where
necessary to provide proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities and
common areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-of-
way immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to
accommodate road trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be constructed
in accord with the most current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans With Disabilities Act
standards.” The developer shall discuss the need for sidewalks along the existing roadways with
the Township. It is noted that sidewalk is proposed along the southwesterly property line near an
existing bus stop on S.R. 0611, and along the 20-foot wide emergency access at its intersection
with S.R. 0611. Additional sidewalk shall be provided to provide access to the bus stop. (From
Previous Comment 25 from Review No. 1) The response letter indicates a 10-foot length of grass
at 2% is provided between the proposed sidewalk and bus stop. We do not find this as a safe and
accessible alternative to a concrete sidewalk. Concrete sidewalk meeting the requirements of
the ADA shall still be provided.

In addition, the Applicant shall discuss the need for sidewalk along the existing streets with the
Township.

Previous Comment 26 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-51, “all soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall meet
the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall comply with
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control”. The erosion and sedimentation control
plan shall be submitted for review. (Previous Comment 27 from Review No. 1) All submissions
to, correspondences with, and permits from the County Conservation District and Pennsylvania
Department of Environmental Protection shall be provided to the Township.

In accordance with Section 390-52.A.(1), “all subdivisions and land developments shall be served
by an adequate water supply and sewage disposal system; and the developer shall provide evidence
documenting said adequacy”. (Previous Comment 28 from Review No. 1) Approvals from the
Brodhead Creek Water Authority, Pocono Township, and the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection shall be received in support of the water and sanitary sewer services.

Previous Comment 29 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-52.E.(4)(f)[2], “all fire hydrants will be located on an eight-inch



22.

23.

24.

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024
Page 6 of 15

4.\ § Pocono Township Planning Commission

line or a looped six-inch line. Where a dead-end line contains a fire hydrant, the portion of the line
between the main loop and the hydrant shall be eight inches minimum diameter.” The size of the
proposed water line to the fire hydrant shall be noted on the plan. In addition, the Fire Hydrant
Detail on Sheet DET-3 specifies a 6-inch waterline and shall be revised for compliance with this
Section. (Previous Comment 30 from Review No. 1) The response letter indicates an 8-inch
lateral to the fire hydrant is now proposed and shown on the fire hydrant detail on Sheet DET-
3. The Typical Hydrant Installation Detail provided on Sheet DET-3 is different from that
provided with the previous submission and no longer specifies the lateral diameter. The detail
shall be revised to clearly specify the lateral diameter.

Previous Comments 31 through 34 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 390-55.D.(1)(a) and (c¢), street trees shall be required along all existing
streets abutting or within the proposed subdivision or land development and along access
driveways that serve five or more residential dwelling units. In accordance with Section 390-
55.D.(3)(d), “trees shall be planted at a ratio of at least one tree per 50 linear feet of frontage or
fraction thereof. Trees shall be distributed along the entire frontage of the property, although they
need not be evenly spaced.”

a. FEight (8) street trees are required along Robinwood Terrace (391-feet). Three (3) street
trees are proposed between 5-feet and 15-feet from the existing right-of-way line as
required by Section 390-55.D.(3)(a). Therefore, 5 trees are still required.

In accordance with Section 390-55.D.(2), “the street tree requirement may be waived by
the Township where existing vegetation is considered sufficient to provide effective
screening and to maintain scenic views of open space, natural features, or other valued
features”. Existing woodlands exist along Robinwood Terrace. Should the developer
consider utilizing these existing trees to meet the street tree requirement, evidence shall be
provided showing that the existing trees will meet the intent of the street tree requirement,
and a waiver will be required. (From Previous Comment 35.a from Review No. 1) A
waiver is now requested to allow three (3) proposed street trees and to utilize the existing
woodlands to satisfy the remaining number of required street trees.

The request shall be revised to reference Section 390-55.D.(1)(a).

b. Seven (7) street trees are required along the proposed access drive (195-feet total both
sides). No street trees are proposed along the access driveway and the plan shall be
revised accordingly. (Previous Comment 35.b from Review No. 1) Two (2) street trees
and 5 evergreen trees are proposed along the access drive. Five (5) additional street trees
are still required.

c. A waiver is now requested from Section 390-55.D.(3)(a) to allow five (5) of the 7 required
street trees along S.R. 0611 be located further than 15-feet from the Right-of-Way line.
(New Comment)

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(a)[2], property line and road right-of-way buffers are
required for all multifamily development.

a. A 15-foot wide medium intensity buffer is required along the eastern and southern property



7

25,

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 7 of 15

lines shared with Parcel ID No. 12.6A.2.87 (706.26-feet total), and shall consist of 15
canopy trees, 15 ornamental trees, and 15 evergreen trees. (Previous Comment 36.a from
Review No. 1) No trees are proposed. A 15-foot wide buffer of existing trees is proposed
to remain along 591-feet of the existing property lines, and an area along the southern
property line is part of the existing sanitary sewer easement where trees cannot be placed.
A riparian forest buffer is proposed to be restored along portions of the eastern and
southern property lines.

b. A 30-foot wide high intensity buffer is required along the S.R. 0611 Right-of-Way (340.81-
feet) and shall consist of 17 evergreen trees, 7 ornamental trees, and 7 canopy trees.
(Previous Comment 36.b from Review No. 1) Seven (7) evergreen trees, 7 ornamental
trees, and 7 canopy trees are proposed, therefore 10 evergreen trees are still required. It

is noted that a riparian forest buffer is proposed to be restored along a portion of the
S.R. 0611 Right-of-Way.

c. A 15-foot wide medium intensity buffer is required along the western property line shared
with Parcel ID No. 12.6A.2.3 (451.22-feet total), and shall consist of 9 canopy trees, 9
ornamental trees, and 9 evergreen trees. (Previous Comment 36.c from Review No. 1) Ten
(10) canopy trees, 6 ornamental trees, and 7 evergreen trees are proposed, therefore 3
ornamental trees and 2 evergreen trees are still required. Woodlands also exist along
87-feet of this property line.

d. A 30-foot wide high intensity buffer is required along the Robinwood Terrace Right-of-
Way (391-feet), and shall consist of 20 evergreen trees, 8 ornamental trees, and 8 canopy
trees. (Previous Comment 36.d from Review No. 1) Four (4) evergreen trees, 2
ornamental trees, and 6 canopy trees are proposed, therefore 16 evergreen trees, 6
ornamental trees, and 2 canopy trees are still required. Existing trees are proposed to
remain along approximately 255-feet of the street frontage.

Per Section 390-55.F.(3)(g), “‘existing healthy trees, shrubs, or woodlands may be substituted for
part or all of the required plants with the approval of the Township. The minimum quantities and/or
visual effect of the existing vegetation shall be equal to or exceed that of the required buffer as
determined by the Township.” (From Previous Comment 36 from Review No. 1) The developer
shall discuss the use of the existing woodlands as the required buffer with the Township.

In accordance with Sections 390-55.F.(4)(a) and (d), site element screens shall be required in all
proposed land developments around parking lots when these are located partially or fully within
100 feet of a property line or existing right-of-way. “Site elements not included in the above list
that have similar visual impact shall be screened in accord with requirements for the most similar
elements as determined by the Township.” 4 Type No. I, No. 7, or No. 9 site element screen shall
be provided between the parking lot and Robinwood Terrace and S.R. 0611. In addition, a T ype
No. I site element screen shall be provided between the parking lot and the southeastern property
line shared with Parcel ID No. 12.64.2.87.

Per Section 390-55.F.(4)(g), “existing healthy trees, shrubs, or woodlands may be substituted for
part or all of the required plants with the approval of the Township. The minimum quantities and/or
visual effect of the existing vegetation shall be equal to or exceed that of the required screen”.
(Previous Comment 37 from Review No. 1) Existing trees are proposed to remain along a



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31,

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2

October 1, 2024
Page 8 of 15

portion of the southeastern property line. The developer shall discuss the use of the existing
woodlands as the required site element screen with the Township. In addition, the parking lot
along the southeastern property is located between 55-feett and 100-feet from the property line
and a site element screen is required.

In accordance with Sections 390-55.G.(2)(c), (d), (e), and (f), “canopy trees, sometimes called
"shade trees," shall reach a minimum height or spread of 30 feet at maturity as determined by the
AAN Standards and shall be deciduous. New trees shall have a minimum caliper of 2.5 inches at
planting. “Ornamental trees or large shrubs shall reach a typical minimum height of 15 feet at
maturity, based on AAN Standards. Trees and shrubs may be deciduous or evergreen and shall
have a distinctive ornamental character such as showy flowers, fruit, habit, foliage, or bark. New
ornamental trees shall have a minimum height of six feet or one-and-a-half-inch caliper. New large
shrubs shall have a minimum height of 2.5 feet to three feet at the time of planting”. “Small shrubs
may be evergreen or deciduous and shall have a minimum height at maturity of four feet based on
AAN Standards. New shrubs shall have a minimum height of 18 inches at the time of planting.”
“Evergreen trees shall reach a typical minimum height of 20 feet at maturity based on AAN
Standards for that species and shall remain evergreen throughout the year. New evergreens shall
have a minimum height at planting of six feet to seven feet.” A waiver is requested from Section
390-55.G to allow for trees and shrubs planted in the riparian buffer to be smaller than the
requirements of this section. (From Previous Comment 38 from Review No. 1) The Township

Planning Commission recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on July
8, 2024.

Previous Comment 39 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(h), the landscape plan shall include “a schedule showing
all landscape requirements and plants proposed for each category”. The required site element
screens shall also be listed on the Landscape Details (Sheet LL-2). (Previous Comment 40 from
Review No. 1) This comment remains until the Township determines whether the existing
woodlands are acceptable to use as the required site element screen.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(k), “a detailed cost estimate shall be submitted, showing
the value of all proposed landscaping, including all labor and materials”. The construction cost
estimate shall include landscaping. (Previous Comment 41 from Review No. 1) The cost estimate
will include landscaping and will be provided with a subsequent submission.

In accordance with Section 390-57.C, “the wetland buffers required by Chapter 470, Zoning, and
Chapter 365, Stormwater Management, shall be provided and shall be shown on the plan”. A4
waiver is requested from this Section. Refer to Comment 38. (From Previous Comment 42 from
Review No. 1) The Township Planning Commission recommended approval of this waiver
request at its meeting held on July 8, 2024.

In accordance with Section 390-57.E, “where the [wetland] study shows the existence of wetland
areas, the delineated boundary shall be properly fenced to prevent encroachment. Snow fence or
other acceptable material shall be used (the use of silt fence is not acceptable). The fence shall be
properly installed, at a minimum distance of 20 feet outside the delineated boundary, prior to any
construction or issuance of building permits. No land shall be disturbed within any required buffer
area except in accord with Township requirements. The fence must be properly maintained until



32.

33.

34.

35.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 9 of 15

all occupancy permits have been issued and/or for the extent of all construction.” The existing
wetlands shall be delineated with a fence prior to construction. (Previous Comment 43 from
Review No. 1) The installation of the orange construction fence shall be included in the

construction sequence. The Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans shall be submitted for
review.

In accordance with Section 390-58.C.(1), “the proposal for common open space, installation of
recreation facilities and/or fees shall be offered for review by the Planning Commission and the
Pocono Township Park and Recreation Committee”. (Previous Comment 44 from Review No. 1)
The developer shall address its proposal for common open space and recreation facilities, or its

offer of a fee in-lieu-of.
Previous Comment 45 from Review No. 1.

In accordance with Section 390-59.B, parking spaces shall be 10-feet wide and 18-feet long. The
proposed parking spaces are 9-feet wide. A waiver is requested. The request references Section
390-55.B and shall be revised to correctly reference Section 390-59.B. (From Previous Comment
46 from Review No. 1) The Township Planning Commission recommended approval of a waiver
request from Section 390-55.B at its meeting held on July 8, 2024. The recommendation of
approval should be revised to reference Section 390-57.B.

In addition, the Revised Waiver Request letter shall also be revised to reference the correct
section.

In accordance with Section 390-60, a “traffic impact study shall be submitted to the Township, as
part of a preliminary plan and final plan for any subdivision or land development application
expected to generate more than 250 new trips per day; for residential subdivisions or land
developments containing 15 or more dwelling units or residential lots in the aggregate; or all
nonresidential developments (with the exception of agricultural development) with buildings
containing in excess of 20,000 square feet of floor space in the aggregate; development of any kind
impacting 30 acres of land or more in the aggregate™. The required traffic impact study shall be
submitted for review. (Previous Comment 48 from Review No. 1) A Transportation Impact
Assessment (TIA) has been submitted, and indicates that the proposed development, at full
build-out, will generate 24 new trips during the AM Peak Hour and 25 new trips during the PM

Peak Hour.
The following improvements are proposed:

e Provide a stop sign to control traffic exiting the project site onto Robinwood Terrace.

® The proposed emergency access driveway onto S.R. 0611 will be classified as a Minimum
Use Driveway for PennDOT permitting.

o The emergency access driveway onto S.R. 0611 will be signed and gated for emergency
access only.

The following tables list the Levels of Service at each intersection in the existing condition and
during the 2026 Opening Year in both the Weekday AM and PM Peak Hours. The Level of
Services ranges from A, being the best condition, and F, being the worst condition.



)/

S.R. 0611 and Scotrun Drive

Pocono Township Planning Commission
Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 10 of 15

Weekday AM Peak Hour Weekday PM Peak Hour j
Movement Existing 2026 Opening Year | Existing | 2026 Opening Year
Base Projected Base Projected
WB LR B B B B B
NB TR A A A A A A
SB L B B B B B B
SBT A A A A A A
LOS A (0.3) A (0.3) A (0.5) A(0.2) A(0.2) A (0.3)
Scotrun Drive and Robinwood Terrace
Weekday AM Peak Hour Weekday PM Peak Hour |
Movement Existing 2026 Opening Year | Existing | 2026 Opening Year
Base Projected Base Projected
EB TR A A A A A A
WBLT A A A A A A
NB LR A A A A A A
LOS A (0.0) A (0.0) A (2.2) A(0.1) A (0.1) A (0.8)

Robinwood Terrace and Proposed Site Driveway

Weekday AM Peak Hour Weekday PM Peak Hour j
Movement Eoclstins 2026 Opening Year | Existing | 2026 Opening Year
Base Projected Base Projected
EB LR -- -- A - -- A
NBLT - -- A - -~ A
SB TR - - A -- -- A
LOS -- -- A (6.2) -~ - A (2.9

When comparing the 2026 Opening Year to the Existing condition, the Overall Level of Service

remains at A or B. Small increases in delay occur, however not enough of an increase (10

seconds or more) to reduce the Level of Service.

The following are additional comments related to our review of the TIS:

a. The Saturday Peak Hour Levels of Service shall be provided for each intersection.

b. In accordance with Section 390-60.C.(4), “the traffic impact study shall include, but not
necessarily be limited to, an analysis of expected traffic generation to, from and upon
surrounding roads within a radius of two miles from the proposed development site,
particularly showing a.m. and p.m. peak hours of existing traffic flow during a normal
business day, in comparison with what is anticipated after the proposed development is
Sully completed, and, if applicable, upon the completion of each stage. Estimated peak hour
trip generation shall be based on procedures set forth in the most recent editions of the ITE

Trip Generation Manual. Existing traffic flows shall be based on actual counts."

The

Swiftwater Hotel is located within 2 miles of the Brookstead Apartments project site. The
Applicant shall confirm whether the Swiftwater Hotel is included in the TIA.



4.\ Pocono Township Planning Commission

ﬁ Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
y October 1, 2024
Page 11 of 15

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Waivers in Comments 36, 38, and 42 were previously requested from sections of the Stormwater
Management Ordinance and were recommended for approval by the Township Planning Commission.

36. In accordance with Section 365-8.L, “roof drains and sump pumps shall discharge to infiltration
or vegetative BMPs wherever feasible. Roof drains should not be connected to streets, sanitary or
storm sewers or roadside ditches in order to promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation of
stormwater. Considering potential pollutant loading, roof drain runoff in most cases will not
require pretreatment.” A4 waiver is requested to permit roof drains to connect to the proposed
storm sewer pipe. (From Previous Comment 49 from Review No. 1) The Township Planning
Commission recommended approval of this waiver request at its meeting held on July 8, 2024.

37. In accordance with Sections 365-8.M, 365-10.E, and 365-11.A.(2)(d), pretreatment shall be
provided prior to discharge to surface or groundwater. Water quality devices shall be provided to
treat stormwater prior to entering the proposed underground basins and infiltration trench.
(Previous Comment 50 from Review No. 1) The response letter indicates water quality devices
are not required. This comment remains until the Monroe County Conservation District is

satisfied with the proposed design meeting the water quality requirements and the NPDES
permit is issued.

38. In accordance with Section 365-10.1(6)(b)[1], permitted activities/development within the
wetland buffer include “stormwater conveyance required by the municipality or other body or
agency having jurisdiction; buffer maintenance and restoration; the correction of hazardous
conditions; stream crossings permitted by DEP and passive unpaved stable trails shall be permitted
within the wetland buffer. No other earth disturbance, grading, filling, buildings, structures, new
construction, or development shall be permitted within the wetland buffer.” The proposed
building, retaining wall, and grading are proposed within the wetland buffer. A waiver is
requested to allow the proposed disturbance of the wetland buffer. (From Previous Comment 51
Sfrom Review No. 1) The Township Planning Commission recommended approval of a waiver
request from Section 365-10.1.(6)(b) at its meeting held on July 8, 2024. The recommendation
of approval should be revised to include Subsection [1].

In addition, the Revised Waiver Request letter shall also be revised to reference the correct
section.

39. Previous Comment 52 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

40. In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(8)(c), “the area of the [stream] buffer altered by activities
permitted in accordance with § 365-10I(8)(b) shall be minimized to the greatest extent practicable,
as determined by the municipality. In no case shall more than 20% of the cumulative stream buffer
on the subject parcel be altered by the activities permitted in accordance with § 365-10I(8)(b). This
20% disturbance shall include both the disturbance created by the applicant and any subsequent
owner of the parcel or a portion of the parcel developed by the applicant (i.e., lot owner). Storm
sewer is proposed within the stream buffer as shown on the plan. The Resource Impact Table on
Sheet PRI-1 shall be revised to also present the disturbed area in percent. (From Previous
Comment 53 from Review No. 1) The Resource Impact Table on Sheet PRI-1 shall be revised
to also include the stream buffer.



£

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

L,

I\ § Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024
Page 12 of 15

Previous Comments 54 and 55 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 365-13.B, “all calculations consistent with this chapter using the Soil
Cover Complex Method shall use the appropriate design rainfall depths for the various return
period storms according to the region in which they are located as presented in Table B-1 in
Appendix AL of this chapter. If a hydrologic computer model such as PSRM or HEC-1 is used
for stormwater runoff calculations, then the duration of rainfall shall be 24 hours. The NRCS "S"
curve shown in Figure B-1, Appendix A of this chapter, shall be used for the rainfall distribution.”
A waiver is requested to utilize the NOAA Atlas data for rainfall depths. (From Previous
Comment 56 from Review No. 1) The Township Planning Commission recommended approval
of this waiver request at its meeting held on July 8, 2024.

In accordance with Section 365-13.D, times-of-concentration for overland flow shall be calculated
using the methodology presented in Chapter 3 of Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds, NRCS,
TR-55 (as amended or replaced from time to time by NRCS). Times-of- concentration for channel
and pipe flow shall be computed using Manning's Equation.

a. A time of concentration calculation in support of the time of concentration path shown for
Pre Offsite POI-2.  (Previous Comment 57.a from Review No. 1) The time of
concentration path has been removed from the plan. The path shall be shown and a
calculation in support of the 6 minute time of concentration utilized in the peak flow
calculation shall be provided.

b. Inthe time of concentration calculation for POST UGB-1 (Hyd. No. 1) and when compared
to the plan, the slope of the sheet flow is high. (From Previous Comment 57.b from Review
No. 1) Segment A of the sheet flow travels across Scotrun Drive which has a slope of
approximately 5%. The time of concentration calculation utilizes a slope of 15% along
Segment A and shall be revised.

. The time of concentration path and calculation shall be extended to the high point of the
Post UGB-4 drainage area. (Previous Comment 57.c from Review No. 1) The time of
concentration path has been extended in plan view, however the calculation has not been
updated. The time of concentration calculation shall still be revised.

In accordance with Section 365-13.E, “runoff curve numbers (CN) for both existing and proposed
conditions to be used in the Soil Cover Complex Method shall be obtained from Table B-2 in
Appendix A of this chapter”. The land uses associated with each CN value shall be provided to
confirm the correct CN values have been utilized.

a. A CN value calculation shall be provided in support of Hyd. No. I for Post UGB-1, Hyd.
No. 2 for Post UGB-2, and Hyd. No. 4 for Post UGB-4. (From Previous Comment 58.b
Jrom Review No. 1) It appears the CN value utilized for Post UGB-1 is low. In addition,
the area and CN value utilized for Post UGB-4 are not consistent with the values
provided in the CN calculation chart. The hydrographs shall be revised.

Previous Comment 59 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 365-15.A and 365-19.B.(2), for all regulated earth disturbance
activities, erosion and sediment control BMPs shall be designed, implemented, operated, and



47.

48.

49.

/4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 13 of 15

maintained during the regulated earth disturbance activities (e.g., during construction) to meet the
purposes and requirements of this chapter and to meet all requirements under Title 25 of the
Pennsylvania Code and the Clean Streams Law. Various BMPs and their design standards are
listed in the Erosion and Sediment Pollution Control Program Manual (E&S Manual), No. 363-
2134-008, as amended and updated. The erosion and sedimentation control plan shall be
submitted for review. (Previous Comment 60 from Review No. 1) All submissions to,
correspondences with, and permits from the County Conservation District and Pennsylvania
Department of Environmental Protection shall be provided to the Township.

Previous Comment 61 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(20), the plan shall include “the location of all erosion and
sediment control facilities”. The erosion and sedimentation control plan shall be submitted for
review. (Previous Comment 62 from Review No. 1) The response letter indicates the erosion and
sedimentation control plan will be provided with a subsequent submission.

Previous Comments 63 and 64 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND STORM SEWER DESIGN COMMENTS

50.

51.

52,

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

Previous Comments 65, 66, and 69 from Review No. 1 satisfied.
Previous Comments 66 and 70 through 73 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

The invert elevation at FES B5-3 is low when compared to the existing and proposed grading and
shall be revised. (New Comment)

Inlet B4-22A shall be shown in the Main Driveway Profile on Sheet DWP-1. (New Comment)

References to SC-740 chambers are shown in the profiles on Sheets DWP-1, DWP-2, DWP-3,
SWP-1, SWP-2, and SWP-3. The profiles shall be revised accordingly. (New Comment)

The Chamber Type and 100-Year Storm Elevations for UGB-1, UGB-2, and UGB-3 listed in the
BMP 6.4.3 Underground Basin Detail on Sheet PCSM-5 shall be revised for consistency with the
stormwater chamber type and the calculated 100-year water surface elevation. (New Comment)

The drainage area to inlet B5-1 shall be labeled on Sheet D-2. (New Comment)

On Sheets D-2, D-3, and D-4, a woods line is shown across the drainage area to UGB-4 and Inlet
B4-29 and across the proposed driveway. This does not appear correct, and the plan shall be
revised accordingly. (New Comment)

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

38.

59.

Prior to Final Plan recording, Record Note 13 on the Cover Sheet (Sheet CS-1) shall be completed
with the date of the Stormwater Management Agreement. (Previous Comment 74 from Review
No. 1) This shall be addressed prior to plan recording.

Previous Comment 75 from Review No. 1 satisfied.



61.

62.

63.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2

October 1, 2024
Page 14 of 15

Record Note 20 on the Cover Sheet (Sheet CS-1) shall be revised to include the 50-year post to
the 10-year pre. (Previous Comment 76 from Review No. 1) Record Note 20 shall be revised to
reference the B-1 Stormwater Management District with the applicable peak rate reductions.

Previous Comments 77 through 79 from Review No. 1 satisfied.
A school bus stop is proposed within the project site. The proposed location shall be discussed
with the school district. (Previous Comment 80 from Review No. 1) The response letter

acknowledged this comment.

Previous Comments 81 through 92 from Review No. 1 satisfied.

PLAN REVISION COMMENTS

64.

65.

The Parking Calculations on Sheet CS-1 note the number of provided parking spaces is 128,
however our counts have determined 130 parking spaces are proposed. The number of parking
spaces shall be confirmed, and the Parking Calculations shall be revised accordingly. (New
Comment)

The list of Waiver Requests on Sheet CS-1 shall include dates of approval once received. (New
Comment)

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with
the intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the number and nature of
the comments in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to
approval of the Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

If you should have any questions regarding the above comments, please call me.

\‘l.

\\ Sincerely,

D \/c

Jor\S. Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/meh

CC:

Jerrod Belvin, Manager — Pocono Township

Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer

Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor

Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP

Anthony Maula, Brookstead, LLC — Applicant

Salvatore J. Caiazzo, P.E., Hanover Engineering — Applicant’s Engineer



£

§ Pocono Township Planning Commission
.' Brookstead Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 2
October 1, 2024

Page 15 of 15

Kristina Heaney, District Manager — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\RO614\Correspondence\Review Letters\Brookstead.Plan.Review No. 2.docx



N\
NN
4. '\. ' YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

October 1, 2024

Patrick Briegel, Director of Public Works
Pocono Township

112 Township Drive

Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: TANNERSVILLE POINT APARTMENTS LAND DEVELOPMENT
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REVIEW NO. 2
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1358, T&M PROJECT NO. POCS-R0007

Dear Mr. Briegel:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have completed a review of the proposed sanitary sewer system for
the above-referenced project. The following information was submitted for our review:

¢ Sanitary Sewer Comment Response letter from Keystone Consulting Engineers dated August 23, 2024;

¢ Sewage Planning Module Package Resubmission;

e Penn DOT HOP Plans, (9 sheets) prepared by Keystone Consulting Engineers dated July 24, 2023
(missing Sheets 2 & 3);

e Preliminary/Final Warner Road Sanitary Sewer Pump Station (7 sheets) dated May 11, 2023 (missing
Sheets 5-7);

e Major Subdivision Plan (Preliminary/Final), Land Development Plan (Preliminary/Final), Tannersville
Point Apartments set prepared by Keystone Consulting Engineers, 59 sheets, dated May 24, 2024, last
revised September 5, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, Tannersville Point, LLC is proposing a proposed 280-unit apartment complex including
associated required improvements. The site is located along Warner Road, immediately Northeast of Interstate
80. The site is located in the central sewage service area. However, Township sewage facilities have not been
extended to the parcel.

The development proposes to connect to central water supplied by BCRA and central sanitary sewer served
by Pocono Township. The site is located in the Pump Station 5 service area. The proposed development will
connect to the sewer system through the construction of new proposed Pump Station Number 6, which will be
dedicated to Pocono Township. Based on our review of the documents provided, the development will require
281 EDUs, or 69,407 gpd, one for each apartment plus one for the club house. The tapping fee for this capacity
will be $1,053,750. The system does have capacity to serve this development.

Based on our review of the submitted information and our previous review letter dated July 9, 2024, we offer
the following.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 6106252999 Il 6106252969 [ tandmassociates.com



™/ /4

Mr. Patrick Briegel

Tannersville Point Apartments

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan — Sanitary Sewer Review #2
October 1, 2024

Page 2 of 6

SEWAGE PLANNING COMMENTS

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

13.

16.

All uses must have sewage allocation. The proposed sewage utilization for the club house must be
determined and added to the proposed sewage allocation. (Previous Comment) The project narrative

must be revised to state the flows, being 1 EDU per apartment plus 1 EDU for the club house totaling
69,407 gpd.

Previous Comment satisfied.
A water supply letter must be included with the Package. (Previous Comment)
A letter from BCRA for WWTP Sewage Capacity must be provided. (Previous Comment)

A letter from Pocono Township must be provided certifying available capacity. This letter can only be
provided after capacity is reserved for the required sewage flows. (Previous Comment)

The sewage planning letter checklist must be completed by the Applicant. Once the checklist is
complete and the Board of Commissioners pass a Resolution approving the sewage planning, the
checklist must be signed by the Township. (Previous Comment)

The completion checklist must be completed and signed by the Township once the package is in order.
(Previous Comment)

The Transmittal Letter must be signed by the Township once the package is in order. (Previous
Comment)

The Resolution for Plan Revision must be passed and signed by the Board of Commissioners.
(Previous Comment)

Previous Comment satisfied.
Previous Comment satisfied.

Component 3, Section G.1. must be completed and signed by Pocono Township. Additionally, the
number of connections shall be 6, and the total number of EDUs shall be adjusted to reflect the needs
of the club house. (Previous Comment) The number of EDUs has been revised as requested. The
section will need to be signed by the Township.

Component 3, Section G.2.a., the latitude and longitude of the BCRA WWTP must be added. (Previous
Comment) The location still must be added to this Section.

Component 3, Section G2.b., BCRA shall sign the section for WWTP capacity. (Previous Comment)
Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.



4 I§'§. Mr. Patrick Briegel

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23,

Tannersville Point Apartments

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan — Sanitary Sewer Review #2
October 1, 2024

Page 3 of 6

Previous Comment satisfied.
Component 3, Sections J.3.b. & c. shall be signed by Pocono Township. (Previous Comment)
Component 3, Section J.4. shall be completed by BCRA. (Previous Comment)

Component 3, Section P.2. is checked “YES”; therefore, Public Notice is required by the Applicant
and must be include in the package. (Previous Comment) The public notice must be added to the SPM
Package once complete. '

Previous Comment satisfied.

Component 4A must be signed by the Township Planning Commission. (Previous Comment) Note
that the applicant must coordinate with the Planning Commission to be placed on the agenda as a
SPM review to have the form signed.

Component 4B must be signed by the County Planning Commission. (Previous Comment)

SEWER SYSTEM PROCEDURES MANUAL & RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMENTS

24.

25,

26.

27.

28.

The project appears to have a swimming pool. Pools have backwash systems that discharge to sanitary
systems. Section 3.1 of the Rules and Regulations, states “No Person shall discharge, or shall cause or
allow to be discharged, into the Sewer System any storm sewer, surface water, artesian well water,
spring water, ground water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, building foundation drainage, cellar
drainage, untreated swimming pool drainage, condensate, de-ionized water, noncontact cooling water
or drainage from roof leader connections.” The total volume of pool backwash and the discharge rate
must be identified and a treatment system of the backwash, such as a settling tank, must be provided.
(Previous Comment) The response letter states the information regarding the swimming pool will
be provided with the revised Sewage Planning Package, however; the response did not address
pretreatment. In this case, pretreatment could be handled by the use of a baffled settling tank prior
to discharge to the sanitary sewer system. Additional information must be provided by the design
engineer.

Section 4.01 Connection Process — The Applicant shall provide a connection permit application, as
appropriate for this project and consistent with the Township Rules and Regulations. (Previous
Comment) The response letter states that the application will be provided under separate cover.

A Reservation of Capacity must be submitted for approval. (Previous Comment) The response letter
States that the reservation of capacity will be submitted under separate cover. It is noted that the
Township will not be able to approve the Sewage Planning Module until after the reservation of
capacity is complete.

The required PennDOT HOP shall be provided prior to plan approval for the sewer main. (Previous
Comment)

The required Part IT Water Quality Permit for the pump station shall be provided prior to plan approval.
(Previous Comment)



Mr. Patrick Briegel

Tannersville Point Apartments

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan — Sanitary Sewer Review #2
October 1, 2024

Page 4 of 6

TECHNICAL COMMENTS

29. PennDOT HOP Plans:

B e pao o

1.

Sheets 2 & 3 of the HOP plan set shall be provided. (Previous Comment) The sheets are still
missing from the resubmitted plan set.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

A construction detail shall be provided for the connection to the Township’s gravity sewer
manhole. The connection should be coordinated with the Wawa project to ensure no conflicts
with any new utilities and/or new pavement occurs.(Previous Comment) The provided detail
shall be updated to state “Protecto 401 Ceramic lining shall be provided for all DIP piping
proposed in the manhole.”

Previous Comment satisfied.

30. Warner Road Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Plans:

o

e o

B e

Sheets 5-7 shall be provided.

The plan set shall be revised to identify this pump station as Pump Station No. 6.

The pump station control, architectural, and electrical system designs shall be added to the
plans.

The layout of the paved area appears larger than needed for the project and should be
reassessed. Certain areas may remain a grass if not typically required for routine access.

The grading behind the building appears to be in error and should be revised.

Grading spot elevations and existing topography shall be added to the plans for review.

The required sanitary sewer easement shall be added to the plans.

The water service curb stop and lateral shall be relocated to cross the ROW line between the
driveway and the existing utility pole, not under the proposed driveway.

The proposed fence shall be revised to be an 8" high security fence.

Construction details shall be provided within the plan set for review.

A security gate of no less than 14” in width shall be added to the plans.

The feature that appears to be a gate near the control building shall be labeled in the plan view.

. The forcemain appears to show fittings for bends in the main. The main is to be constructed

with HDPE; therefore, the design engineer should consider long radius bends in place of ductile
iron fittings.

The pump station shall be provided with a 4” bypass connections by the means of a normally
closed plug valve, check valve, and male cam lock connection with cap.

The pump station wet well shall be provided with a 4” vent with an active carbon filter.

The location of the proposed float tree shall be added to sheet 4 and shall be provided at 90
degrees to the influent line, offset from center.

The 1.5” PVC drain line between the wet well and the valve pit shall be removed and a
12”x127x6” deep sump shall be provided off set to the access door.

Ladder access to the valve pit shall be provided.

Pipe stands shall be provided at the flange on the 90-degree elbow leading to pumps 1 and 3.



=

®E 2L ED

<

Mr. Patrick Briegel

Tannersville Point Apartments

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan — Sanitary Sewer Review #2
October 1, 2024

Page 5 of 6

The Pump Schedule is empty. The pump information shall be added to the plans.

The wet well concrete fillets shall be dimensioned on the wet well details.

Transducer operational set points shall be added to the plans.

Pump Station hydraulic calculations shall be provided.

The wet well plan view shall be updated to show the proposed pumps with rails to confirm
adequate clears for the pumps.

The central cross piping calls for a 6”°x6x67x4”, but it appears that this should be all 4” piping.
The design engineer shall review and revise accordingly.

The valve vault plan view shall be updated to show a 4” check valve in the vault, leading to a
4” direct bury plug valve outside the vault, then to a 4” male cam lock with cap connecting to
the proposed blind flange.

aa. The type of pipe seal for the vaults shall be provided.

(Previous Comment) The response letter states that the comments will be addressed under separate

cover.

31. Land Development Plans:

opo o

= e

NG

= wn

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Sheet 3, Overall Lot Line Adjustment plan shall be revised to include the required sanitary
sewer easement for the pump station and the gravity line from the pump station to Warner
Road. The remainder of the gravity lines shall remain privately owned by the owner of the
parcel. (Previous Comment) The response letter states that a blanket easement will be
provided. The pump station and the sewer main will be dedicated to Pocono Township. An
easement specific to those proposed facilities must be provided by legal description and
shown on the plans.

Sheets 8-10, and 21-25 shall be revised to include the sanitary sewer easement. (Previous
Comment) The response letter states that a blanket easement will be provided. The pump
station and the sewer main will be dedicated to Pocono Township. An easement specific to
those proposed facilities must be provided by legal description and shown on the plans.
Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

. Sewer Lateral Inspection Tees shall be provided at all lateral locations crossing sanitary sewer

easement lines. (Previous Comment) The Test Tees must be provided.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Detailed review of the sanitary sewer profiles will be provided as part of the Land Development
Plan Review. (Previous Comment)

Previous Comment satisfied. .

The sanitary profile sheets shall be revised to provide plan and profile view on the same sheet.



',/I/

Mr. Patrick Briegel

Tannersville Point Apartments

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan — Sanitary Sewer Review #2
October 1, 2024

Page 6 of 6

(Previous Comment) The plan view has been provided; however, the stationing must be
added to the plan view for reference.

Previous Comment satisfied.

Previous Comment satisfied.

. The sewer lateral detail shall be revised to indicate a 6” sewer lateral for the buildings.

(Previous Comment) The various details for the sewer laterals still indicate either 4” or 6”.
The plans need to be revised to depict only the use of 6” laterals for this project.

The Standard Manhole detail frame and cover detail shall be revised to state that the words
“Pocono Township” only on manholes within the proposed sanitary sewer easement. (Previous
Comment)

On Profile Sewer PS6-4 to PS6-16 areas of proposed sewer are in areas of excessive fill.
A note shall be added to the profile sheet that any area under the sanitary line and
manholes shall be inspected by the Township Engineer and shall be compacted to 98 %
density certified by a qualified third geotechnical engineer. (New Comment)

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to approval

of the Plans.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

If you should have any questions regarding the above comments, feel free to contact our office.

Sincerely,

2 g

Tt

Michael E. Gable, P.E.
Sanitary Sewer Engineer

MEG/arm

ce: Jerrod Belvin — Pocono Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Tannersville Point, LLC — Applicant
Alan Fornwalt, P.E. — Keystone Consulting Engineers, Inc.
David Horton, P.E. - BCRA
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCS\RO007\Correspondence\Review Letters\Tannersville Point Sewer Review No. 2.docx



P —
K{ .-= CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS
H Y i 5012 Medical Center Circle, Allentown, PA 18106 | 610-395-0971 | www.KCEinc.com
KEYSTONE Bethlehem | Allentown | Kresgeville
CONSULTING
ENGINEERS

CW 23-003
September 4, 2024

Planning Commission
Pocono Township

112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

Re:  Tannersville Point Apartments
Lot Line Adjustment (Consolidation) and Land Development
Waiver Request Letter
12.7.1.28-2 & 12.7.1.28-3 Warner Road, Tannersville, PA

Dear Board Members:

On behalf of Tannersville Point LLC, the following waivers are requested for consideration on the above
referenced project:

1. SALDO 290-35.K: [Preliminary/Final Plan Submission Procedure] A separate
submission is required for a preliminary plan from the final plan submission.

Waiver: Due to final plan submission requirements being included in the preliminary/final
plan submission set, a waiver from processing a separate preliminary plan is requested.

2. SALDO 390-48.T.(13)(b): [Driveway Width] Access drive entrances into all
nonresidential and nonagricultural use properties shall be no less than 24 feet in width,
shall not exceed 36 feet in width at the road line, unless provided with a median divider,
and shall be clearly defined by curbing. The curbs of these driveway entrances shall be
rounded with a minimum radius of 20 feet from where they intersect a road.

Waiver: A driveway with a width of 40.25 feet is proposed at the right-of-way line in lieu
of the required 36 feet maximum. This is the resultant geometry differs from the required
radii and driveway width required by PennDOT and design vehicle.

3. Section 390-48.T.(14): [Concrete Aprons] Concrete aprons shall be provided for all
access drives with concrete sidewalks. Concrete aprons shall be a minimum of six inches
of Class AA concrete (a twenty-eight day minimum compressive strength of 3,500 PSI and
six-percent air entrapment by volume) and shall be structurally reinforced with six-inch-
by-six-inch gauge welded wire fabric on four inches of 2A aggregate.

Celebrating 50 Years Of Service



Tannersville Point Apartments CW 23-003
Warner Road, Tannersville, PA September 4, 2024
Waiver Request Letter

Waiver: Asphalt paving is proposed with the driveway in place of a concrete apron for
durability and consistency within the driveway. Painted crosswalks are provided for
pedestrian crosswalk visibility, where applicable.

4, Section 390-50.D.(4): [Stormwater Basin Depth] The maximum water depth, measured
from the invert of the lowest outlet orifice to the peak one-hundred-year water surface
elevation, shall not exceed five feet.

Waiver: The stormwater control (rate and volume) facility is designed as a modular
concrete vault underground and has a depth of 9.32 feet, as defined. However, this facility
will be underground and inaccessible to the residents of the community and public.

5. Section 220-8.C.: [Limit of Slopes] Edges of newly created slopes shall be a minimum
of five feet from property lines, ultimate/future right-of-way lines of streets and easements
to permit the normal rounding of the edge without encroachment on the abutting
property, right-of-way, or easement.

Waiver: The graded slopes along the frontage of the property and where the stormwater
discharge pipe tie into the neighboring parcel are graded up to the right-of-way/property
line and beyond for adequate grading tie-ins.

6. Section 365-8.L.: [Connection of Roof Leaders] Rains Roof drains and sump pumps
shall discharge to infiltration or vegetative BMPs wherever feasible. Roof drains should
not be connected to streets, sanitary or storm sewers or roadside ditches in order to
promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation of stormwater. Considering potential
pollutant loading, roof drain runoff in most cases will not require pretreatment.

Waiver: Roof drains are connected directly to the underground stormwater collection
system to avoid surface flow over paved sidewalks, driveways and parking areas to avoid
icing during the cold weather months.

£ Section 365-13.B.: [Stormwater Calculations] All calculations consistent with this
Chapter using the soil cover complex method shall use the appropriate design rainfall
depths for the various return period storms according to the region in which they are
located as presented in Table B-1in Appendix A" of this Chapter. If a hydrologic computer
model such as PRSM or HEC-1 is used for stormwater runoff calculations, then the duration
of rainfall shall be 24 hours. The NRCS “S” curve shown in Figure B-1, Appendix A of this
Chapter, shall be used for the rainfall distribution.

Waiver: The Stormwater Management Report utilizes rainfall values from NOAA Atlas 14,
Volume 2, Version 3, location Tannersville, PA for consistency.

Page 2 of 4



Tannersville Point Apartments CWw 23-003
Warner Road, Tannersville, PA September 4, 2024
Waiver Request Letter

8.

10.

11.

12.

Section 390-50.CC: [Pipe Size] Pipes shall be installed at such depth and in such manner
as dictated by the site; and no pipe shall be installed that is less than 15 inches in diameter
with a minimum 0.5% slope for cross drainage.

Waiver: All pipe sizes utilized are a minimum of 15 inches in diameter except for roof
leaders which are 12 inches in diameter. There is no need for the roof leader pipes to be
larger than 12 inches for the flow and are adequately sized to clean as necessary.

Sections 390-25.B.(4) and 390-29.E.(4): [Plan Size] The sheet size shall be no larger
than 24 inches by 36 inches, unless permitted by the Planning Commission.

Waiver: To permit a plan size of 30"x42" in lieu of the maximum permitted size of 24"x36". This
request is needed due to the size and layout of the property and proposed improvements. It is a
large plan set even with the larger plan size of 30"x42" and the match lines and splits with this
plan size are legible and cohesive. Smaller plan size creates additional match lines which make the
plan very hard to follow. Overall plan sheets with a scale of 1"=60" are provided along with plans
with scale of 1"=40" along with a key map in the upper right hand corner to increase legibility. The
subdivision (lot consolidation) plan does not have separate plans less than 1"=50" scale plans as
the plan is legible.

Sections 390-25.G.(1)(c), 390-25.G.(19), and 390-29.).(1)(c): [Design Vehicle] A
turning movement diagram for a WB-50 truck shall be provided.

Waiver: The maximum design vehicle for this project is the Township Ladder Fire Truck
and an SU-30 Box Truck for deliveries. The development is an apartment complex and
larger vehicles are not needed nor are desired.

Section 390-50.D.(3): [Stormwater Basin Geometry] Whenever possible, the side
slopes and basin shape shall conform to the natural topography. When such design is
impracticable, the construction of the basin shall utilize slopes as flat as possible to blend
the structure into the terrain.

Waiver: The basin is an underground modular concrete structure which is completely out
of sight and has no need to blend with the terrain. The area on top of the structure will be
completely usable for passive recreation.

Section 390-48.AA: [Frontage Sidewalks] Sidewalks across frontage of the parcel;
Crosswalks. Sidewalks and road crosswalks may be required where necessary to provide
proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities and common
areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-of-
way immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to
accommodate road trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be

Page 3 of 4



Tannersville Point Apartments CW 23-003
Warner Road, Tannersville, PA September 4, 2024
Waiver Request Letter

constructed in accord with the most current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans
with Disabilities Act standards.

Waiver: A sidewalk is provided along the roadway on frontage of the parcel. However, it
is not practical to have a sidewalk extend along the frontage to the limit of the parcel near
the bridge which carries Warner Road over 1-80. The topography and guiderail along

PennDOT's roadway (Warner Road) is not conducive to a sidewalk or a tie-in point to the
roadway.

If you should have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,

KEYSTONE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.

Are 2

Alan R. Fornwalt, P.E.

pc: John Maione, Sr. — Tannersville Point LLC
Jay Cooperman — Tannersville Point LLC

W:\2023\CW23-003 Tannersville Point Apartments Land Development, Revised Land Dev Proposal for 8 Apt Bldgs, Tannersville, PA\CW23-003 doc\24-09-04 Waiver Request Letter
Tannersville Point Apartments.docx

Page 4 of 4



AN\s
D
4. '\. YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

June 26, 2024

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: SIMPSON MINOR SUBDIVISION 519-520 POST HILL ROAD
FINAL MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN COMPLETENESS & REVIEW NO. 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1426, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0750

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed a completeness review of the above referenced
project. The submitted information consists of the following items.

Pocono Township Land Development Application.

Property Deed, Tax Parcel No. 12.6.1.7.

Closure Summary, Lots 1 and 2.

Minor Subdivision Plan entitled “Subdivision of Lands of Donald Simpson™, prepared by Barry
[sett & Associates, Inc., dated May 16, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant is proposing a minor subdivision of a property located at 519-520 Post Hill Road, between
Laurel Lane and Post Hill Court. The property is located within the R-1, Residential Zoning District.

Existing Parcel 12.6.1.7, consists of 19.05 acres and is bisected by Post Hill Road. The existing lot contains
multiple dwellings, one (1) on the east side of Post Hill Road and two (2) on the west.

The submitted plan proposes to subdivide the parcel along Post Hill Road, creating Lot 1 to the east with
1.75 acres and an existing house. The remainder of the parcel to the west of Post Hill Road would be Lot
2 with an area of 17.30 acres and two (2) existing dwellings. No construction is proposed.

Based upon our review, we recommend the Planning Commission accept the Minor Subdivision Plan for
review.

Due to the minimal project scope, we have also completed our first review of the Minor Subdivision Plan.
We offer the following comments and/or recommendations for your consideration.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 36106252999 [l 610.625.2969 [T tandmassociates.com



A Pocono Township Planning Commission
I'\. Simpson Minor Subdivision 519-520 Post Hill Road
Completeness and Minor Subdivision Plan Review #1
June 26, 2024

Page 2

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

N

Per Section 470-8, Lot Area is defined as “the computed area contained within the lot lines, excluding
space within all road rights-of-way and within all permanent drainage easements, but including the
areas of all other easements, as required by Chapter 390, Subdivision and Land Development™. The
plan shall be revised to provide the proposed gross and net areas of Lots 1 and 2 including and
excluding the right-of way of Post Hill Road, respectively.

In accordance with Section 470-17.C.(1) and Attachment 2, the required minimum lot area in the R-
1, Residential Zoning District is 2 acres. The plan proposes 1.75 acres for Lot 1. This creates a non-
conforming lot which requires a variance from the Zoning Hearing Board.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

3.

In accordance with Section 390-18.E, “no official action shall be taken by the Board of Commissioners
until either the Township has received the comments of the Monroe County Planning Commission or
a period of 30 days has expired following transmittal of the preliminary plan to the County Planning
Commission™. A submission to the Monroe County Planning Commission shall be made with proof of
submission provided to the Township.

In accordance with Section 390-27.A.(3), “the survey shall not have an error of closure greater than
one in 10,000 feet and shall include a boundary closure report™. Boundary closure reports for the net
areas of proposed Lots 1 and 2 shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(4), the plan shall contain the “Name, address, license number,
original seal and original signature of the qualified professional (See definition in Article II.)
responsible for the preparation of the minor subdivision plan.” The seal and signature of the listed
surveyor must be added to the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(4), “Reference monuments and/or lot markers shall be shown
on the plan and shall be placed as required by § 390-49 of this chapter.” See Comments 17 and 18.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(15), the plan shall include the “building setback lines™. The
building setback lines are shown, however they shall also be labeled and dimensioned on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(16), the plan shall include “the name and number and pavement
width and right-of-way lines of all existing public roads and the name, location and pavement width
and right-of-way lines of all other roads within or abutting the property”. The pavement and right-of-
way widths along Post Hill Road shall be dimensioned on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(26), the plan shall include any existing or proposed areas of
wells and subsurface sewage disposal fields. The existing wells and sewage disposal systems on each
proposed lot shall be shown and labeled on the plan.



N
O
10.

11.

13

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Simpson Minor Subdivision 519-520 Post Hill Road
Completeness and Minor Subdivision Plan Review #1
June 26, 2024

Page 3

>4

v

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(26), the plan shall include “A location map at a scale of one
inch equals 800 feet for the purpose of locating the property being subdivided.” A location map shall
be added to the plan sheet.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(28), “signature blocks for recommendation by the Planning
Commission and for the approval of the Board of Commissioners shall be provided including a space
for the date of recommendation/approval.” The required signature blocks will be provided to the
surveyor.

. In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(29), “signature blocks for the Township Engineer and Monroe

County Planning Commission shall be provided.” The required signature blocks will be provided to
the surveyor.

. In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(29), the plan shall include a “Certificate of ownership and

acknowledgment of the plan, in the form provided by the Township, which shall be accurately
completed, signed by the owner of the property, dated and notarized.” The required certificate
language will be provided to the surveyor.

In accordance with Section 390-27.B.(32), the plan shall include a “Certificate of accuracy and
compliance, in the form provided by the Township, dated and signed by the registered professional
land surveyor responsible for the plan and embossed with his or her seal.” The required certificate
language will be provided to the surveyor.

Per Section 390-27.B.(33), the applicable “items and notes shall be on all final plans when applicable,
in the form of protective and/or restrictive covenants™. The surveyor shall add the applicable items
and notes from this section to the plan.

Table 390-48-1. Identifies the required right-of-way width of Local Roads to be 50 feet. The required
50-foot right-of-way for Post Hill Road shall be added to the plan in addition to the existing 33-foot
right-of-way which is currently depicted. It is noted that no right-of-way has been offered for
dedication; however, it must be shown on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-48.H.(2), “Where a subdivision or land development abuts or contains
an existing municipal road of inadequate right-of-way width, the building setback shall be shown on
the plans measured from a line which would satisfy the right-of-way requirements for the classification
of the abutting road.” Building setback lines for Lots I and 2 shall be revised to reflect the required
50-foot right-of-way of Post Hill Road.

Per Section 390-49.A.(4), “Monuments shall be set at all outbound locations where permanent
monuments did not exist at the time of the perimeter survey unless site conditions preclude the
installation and the missing monument shall be noted on the final plan. Existing monuments shall not
be removed.” Two (2) monuments are required to be set along the outbound of proposed Lot 2.

Per Section 390-49.B.(4), “Markers shall be set at each existing and proposed lot corner. If it is
impossible or impractical to set a survey marker precisely on the corner, then survey markers may be
established on the line of the lot and offset a distance from the actual comner. Such distance shall be so
noted on the final plan.” Markers are required to be set at the new lot corners at Post Hill Road.



Pocono Township Planning Commission

Simpson Minor Subdivision 519-520 Post Hill Road
Completeness and Minor Subdivision Plan Review #

June 26, 2024

Page 4

/4

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

20. The Township Land Development Plan (LDP) No. 1426 shall be placed in the lower right-hand
corner of all plan sheets and provided on all subsequently submitted documents.

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with
the intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the number and nature of
the comments in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to
approval of the Minor Subdivision Plan.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Surveyor shall provide a letter, addressing
item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

[f you should have any questions, please call me.
Sincerely,
@(/&

resslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/arm

cc: Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Township Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
John Zorn — Barry Isett & Associates, Applicant’s Surveyor
Donald Simpson — Owner/Applicant
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO\R0750\Correspondence\Review Letters\Simpson Minor Subdivision Plan Acceptance and Review No.l.docx



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
COUNTY OF MONROE
POCONO TOWNSHIP
ZONING HEARING BOARD

In the matter of: : No. 8 0f 2024

DONALD SIMPSON,

Applicant
Property:

519 Post Hill Road, Henryville,
Pocono Township, Monroe County, PA
Parcel ID #: 12.6.1.7
Map #: 12-6373-02-79-1318
Zoning District: Low Density Residential
(R-1) :  REQUEST FOR VARIANCE

Official Notification of the Decision of the
Zoning Hearing Board

MEMORANDUM OF FINDINGS IN UNCONTESTED MATTER

Because this application was uncontested, the Pocono Township Zoning Hearing Board
(“Board”) will issue only a memorandum of its findings in lieu of a written decision in accordance
with § 908(9) of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code (“MPC”). See 53 P.S. § 10908(9).
The complete record of this proceeding, including the stenographic notes of testimony and all
exhibits, is incorporated by reference.

A quorum of the Board consisting of Gary Gallerie, Dee Ackerman, and Blaine Fardella
convened on September 27, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the Pocono Township Municipal Building at a
duly advertised public hearing to consider the application of Donald Simpson (“Applicant”) for a

variance from § 470-17(C)(2) and Attachment 2 (R-1 District Lot, Yard and Height Requirements)



of the Pocono Township Zoning Ordinance. Those Sections require lots improved with a single
family dwelling in the Low Density Residential (R-1) district to have a minimum lot area of 2 acres.
Applicant wants to subdivide his 19.050 acre lot into 2 lots using Post Hill Road as the boundary
between the new lots. This proposed subdivision would result in one lot being 1.627 acres
(exclusive of the right-of-way), which is smaller than the 2-acre minimum size.

Applicant and his wife, Sheri Simpson, own the subject property, which is located at 519
Post Hill Road, in Henryville, Pocono Township, Pennsylvania (“Property”). The Property is
located in the R-1 zoning district.

The Property is currently improved with dwellings on both the 16.989 acre portion to the
west of Post Hill Road and on the 1.627 acre portion to the east. Except for lot size requirement
at issue here, both of the proposed lots are otherwise in compliance with Pocono Township
regulations.

Variances are available if the provisions of a zoning ordinance inflict unnecessary hardship
on a landowner. See 53 P.S. § 10910.2(a). In granting a variance, a zoning hearing board
recognizes that the property in question violates the ordinance, but the violation is permitted
because of some special unique hardship. See Haverford Twp. v. Spica, 328 A.2d 878 (Pa. Commw.
Ct. 1984). When granting a variance, a zoning hearing board may attach any reasonable
conditions and safeguards that it deems necessary to implement the purposes of the MPC and
the zoning ordinance.

The MPC requires the following findings to be made, where relevant, to grant a variance:

(1) That there are unique physical characteristics or conditions,
including irregularity, narrowness, or shallowness of lot size or

shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions
peculiar to the particular property, and that the unnecessary



hardship is due to those conditions and not the circumstances or
conditions generally created by the ordinance.

(2) That because of the property’s unique physical circumstances or
conditions, there is no possibility that the property can be
developed in strict conformity with the provision of the zoning
ordinance, and that the authorizations of a variance is therefore
necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.

(3) That the unnecessary hardship has not been created by the person
seeking the variance.

(4) That the variance, if authorized, will not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood or district in which the property is
located, not substantially or permanently impair the appropriate
use or development of adjacent property, and not be detrimental
to the public welfare.

(5) That the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum
variance that will afford relief and will represent the least
modification possible of the regulation in issue.

53 P.S. § 10910(a).

The Pocono Township Zoning Ordinance requires substantially identical findings to justify
a variance. See Township of Pocono Code of Ordinances, § 470-116.E.1(a)-(e).

The “unnecessary hardship” that is the basis of the variance sought must be one unique
to the particular property, as distinguished from one arising from the impact of the zoning
regulations on the entire district. In re Michener’s Appeal, 115 A.2d 367 (Pa. 1955). The unique
nature must stem from the physical circumstances or conditions of the property. 53 P.S. §
10910.2(a)(1).

In considering a request for a variance, the Board is mindful that there are two types of
variances. There are “dimensional” variances where the applicant seeks relief from lot size, open
area, yard, or similar measurable requirements, and “use” variances where the applicant seeks

permission to use the property in a manner that is prohibited by the zoning ordinance. Because



use variances encroach on the legislative powers of the municipal governing body, they are
granted much less frequently than dimensional variances. See O’Neill v. Zoning Bd. of Adjustment,
254 A.2d 12 (Pa. 1969).

Dimensional variances are governed by a more lenient standard first articulated by the
Pennsylvania Supreme Court in Hertzberg v. Zoning Hearing Board of Adjustment of the City of
Pittsburgh, 721 A.2d. 43, 47-48 (Pa. 1998)(declaring that “the quantum of proof required to
establish unnecessary hardship is indeed lesser when a dimensional variance, as opposed to a
use variance, is sought”). In Hertzberg, the Supreme Court expanded the factors that a zoning
hearing board may consider to justify the grant of a dimensional variance to include:

the economic detriment to the applicant if the variance was denied, the
financial hardship created by any work necessary to bring the building into

strict compliance with the zoning requirements and characteristics of the
surrounding neighborhood.

Id. at 50.

More recently, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court revisited the Hertzberg standard to
clarify the type and amount of evidence necessary to prove the existence of an unnecessary
hardship. In Marshall v. City of Philadelphia, 97 A.3d 323, 330 (Pa. 2014), the Supreme Court
noted that it “has repeatedly made clear that in establishing hardship, an applicant for a variance
is not required to show that the property at issue is valueless without the variance or that the
property cannot be used for any permitted purpose.” Instead, multiple factors are to be taken
into account when assessing whether unnecessary hardship has been established. /d. Those
factors include: (1) the physical features of the property are such that it cannot be used for a

permitted purpose; (2) the property can be conformed for a permitted use only at a prohibitive



expense; or (3) the property has no value for any purposes permitted by the zoning ordinance.
Id.

The Board finds that the Property has unique physical characteristics—most significantly,
the fact that it is bisected by Post Hill Road—that create an unnecessary hardship. The Applicant
did not create this condition: Post Hill Road was constructed decades before Applicant purchased
the property and the road’s construction created the “orphan” lot on the eastern side. In
addition, Applicant did not previously subdivide the eastern portion of the lot to create the
undersized “lot.” In fact, Applicant testified that, although the eastern portion of the lot was at
one time much larger, it was subdivided by his predecessors in title decades before 2003 when
Pocono Township first adopted its Zoning Ordinance. Because Applicant’s subdivision merely
seeks to formalize the existing conditions—with the lot lines following the boundaries of Post Hill
Road—the Board finds that there is no adverse impact on the neighborhood.

Under the more lenient standards appropriate for dimensional variances, the Board finds
that Applicant’s variance request should be granted. If granted, the variance would not impair
the appropriate use or development of adjacent property, nor would it be detrimental to the
public welfare. The variance requested by Applicant is the minimum variance that will afford
relief and will represent the least modification possible of the lot size requirement at issue here.

Based on these findings, the Board issues the following Order:



ORDER

Applicant’s request for a variance from § 470-17(C)(1) and Attachment 2 (R-1 District Lot,
Yard and Height Requirements) of the Pocono Township Zoning Ordinance is hereby GRANTED.
Applicant may proceed with a subdivision in which his proposed Lot 1 is 1.746 acres (gross) and
1.627 acres (net) in accordance with the Minor Subdivision — Preliminary/Final Plan that Applicant
submitted as part of his Application. This Board’s Order grants the requested variance only;

Applicant must obtain final subdivision approval from the Board of Commissioners.

VOTE
Name : Present Aye Nay
Gary Gallerie L]
Dee Ackerman O
Blaine Fardella ]

FOR THE ZONING HEARING BOARD:

o et W

Todd W. Weitzma@w, Solicitor

Date of written notification: September 27, 2024

NOTICE OF APPEAL RIGHTS

This constitutes the final written decision of the Zoning Hearing Board. Any aggrieved party
may appeal this decision in writing filed with the Court of Common Pleas of Monroe County
no later than 30 days from the date of this written notification. The Zoning Hearing Board
reserves the right to supplement this decision as necessary after review of the transcript of
the proceedings.




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| certify that | served the attached Decision of the Pocono Township Zoning Hearing Board

upon the following and in the manner indicated:

Applicant:

Zoning Officer:

Pocono Township Solicitor:

Dated: September 27, 2024

Donald Simpson

116 Learn Lane
Henryville, PA 183332
<poconodon@gmail.com>

Pocono Township Municipal Building
112 Township Drive

Tannersville, PA 18372

By email to: <zoning@poconopa.gov>

Leo V. DeVito, Jr., Esquire

Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P.

38 West Market Street

Bethlehem, PA 18018-5796

By email to: <leodevito@broughal-devito.com>

TODD W. WEITZMANN, ESQ.
Weitzmann, Weitzmann & Huffman, LLC
700 Monroe Street

Stroudsburg, PA 18360

(570) 421-8550

Solicitor for the Pocono Township
Zoning Hearing Board



N\
A SN
. I'\. . YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

October 9, 2024

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: BROOKDALE SPA -2436 BACK MOUNTAIN DRIVE
PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW NO. 1
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1425, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0680

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed a review of the Preliminary/Final Land Development
Plan Application for Brookdale Spa. The submitted information consists of the following items.

e Pocono Township Land Development Application.

Professional Services Escrow Agreement.

Waiver Requests.

Brookdale Spa Four Step Design Process Narrative dated August 30, 2024.

Community and Fiscal Impact Analysis for the Brookdale Spa prepared by RKR Hess, dated August

2024,

Special Warranty Deed dated October 29, 2020.

e Overall Boundary Closure.

e Overall Gross Boundary Closure prepared by RKR Hess, dated August 29, 2024.

o Wetland Report for Brookdale Spa prepared by Rooted Environmental Consulting, dated May 24,

2024.

Phase II Environmental Site Assessment prepared by LaBella Associates, dated May 8, 2018.

WB-62 Turning Movement Plan prepared by RKR Hess, 1 sheet, dated August 30, 2024.

Parking Lot Lighting Plan prepared by entegra, 1 sheet, dated August 19, 2024.

Brookdale Spa Plans and Elevations prepared by Ramona Albert Design, 3 sheets, undated.

Employee Housing Plan and Elevation prepared by Schoonover & Vanderhoof Architects, LLC, 2

sheets, dated August 25, 2024.

e Maintenance Building Plan prepared by Gary Jr., | sheet, dated June 21, 2024.

e PNDI Receipt dated January 3, 2024.

e Supplemental Stormwater Infiltration Report for Brookdale Subdivision — Lot 2, prepared by Geo-
Technology Associates, Inc., dated August 15, 2024.

e Geotechnical Engineering Report for Brookdale Subdivision — Lot 2, prepared by Geo-Technology
Associates, Inc., dated August 29, 2024.

e Sewer Pump Station Design prepared by RKR Hess, dated August 2024.

o Traffic Analysis Spa Report prepared by Benchmark Civil Engineering Services, Inc., dated August
2024.

e Erosion & Sediment Control (E&S) Module 1 prepared by RKR Hess, dated August 30, 2024.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 [ 6106252999 [l 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com



Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024

Page 2 of 20

Post Construction Stormwater Management (PCSM) & Conveyance Calculations Module 2 prepared
by RKR Hess, dated August 30, 2024.

e Sewer Pump Station Design prepared by RKR Hess, dated August 2024.

o MCPC Checklist and Receipt dated August 30, 2024.

o Brookdale Spa Land Development Plan set prepared by RKR Hess, 41 sheets, dated August 30, 2024.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, Brookdale Enterprises, LLC, has submitted a plan proposing the Brookdale Spa Land
Development on the southern side of Back Mountain Road, west of the intersection of Dyson and Brookdale
Roads. The existing property, Lot 2 of the Brookdale Subdivision, is located within the RD, Recreation Zoning
District and consists of a single parcel (Tax ID No. 12/11/1/32-4). The property has an area of 31.59 acres and
consists of mostly woodland areas with steep slopes, the Scot Run watercourse, and wetlands.

The site is proposed to be developed with a Nordic style Spa which consists of outdoor thermal and
hydrothermal amenities as well as a 2-story 35,000 s.f. building with traditional spa services, restaurant,
reception area, retail spaces, and locker rooms. The plans also propose a 2-story 50-bed employee housing
building and a maintenance building. The previously submitted narrative states that the spa can accommodate
400 to 525 people and will have up to 55 staff members. Spa services are booked for 4-hour sessions. The
plans propose 340 parking spaces, including 9 handicap spaces, 3 bus parking spaces, and 4 off-street loading
spaces. Access to the development will be via a driveway taking access from Back Mountain Road. An
existing driveway access at the west end of the property is proposed to remain, but not be improved. The plan
also depicts above ground and underground stormwater management facilities.

The project is proposed to be served by on-lot water and central sewage disposal. The proposed sewer system
consists of a gravity collection system which conveys flows to an onsite pump station. This pump station, with
a 5 Hp grinder pump, will discharge through a 4" HDPE force main to the existing Brookdale Resort
Wastewater Treatment Facility. The project narrative indicates a total flow from domestic sources of 18,550
gpd.

In accordance with Section 470-19.B.(1)(b) and the 470 Attachment 1 Zoning Use Schedule Commercial
indoor and outdoor recreational and entertainment uses, including restaurants, are permitted in the RD District.

The project site is located within Districts A and B-1 Stormwater Management District of the Brodhead-
McMichaels Watershed. The receiving water is the Pocono Creek, which has a Chapter 93 classification of
High-Quality, Cold-Water Fishery with Migratory Fishes (HQ, CWF/MF).

The Land Development Plan was accepted for review by the Pocono Township Planning Commission at its
meeting held on September 9, 2024.

The following comments are planning related and reflect the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and
Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance. A technical review including comments related to the
Township Stormwater Management Ordinance will be provided under separate cover.

Based on our review of the above information, we offer the following comments and/or recommendations for
your consideration.



=

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024

Page 3 of 20

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

]

Per Section 470-19.C(2)(d), the yard requirement for wells is 15 feet. The dimension of the proposed
and future wells from the property line shall be labeled on the plan to demonstrate compliance.

Per Section 470-77.B., Restaurants, “No part of the subject property shall be located within 200 feet
of any residential district.”” The subject tract does abut a residential (R-1) zoning district; however,
the closest portion of the proposed main building is approximately 384 feet from the residential district.
We recommend the Applicant request an official determination on this matter from the Zoning Officer.

In accordance with Section 470-121, no building, structure, or sign shall be erected, constructed,
moved, demolished, added to, or structurally altered, nor shall any use of any land, building structure,
or sign be changed or expanded, without a zoning permit therefor issued by the Zoning Officer. No
such permit shall be issued except in conformity with the provisions of this chapter; and:

a. The applicant supplying satisfactory evidence, where applicable, that the property and the
proposed use thereof in compliance of the Sewage Facilities Act of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by the Pennsylvania Department
of Environmental Protection.” A/l approvals required by the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection shall be provided to the Township.

b. The applicant supplying, where applicable, stormwater management plans approved by the
Pocono Township Board of Commissioners in accordance with the applicable Pocono
Township stormwater management ordinances, and an erosion and sedimentation control plan
approved by the applicable governmental body or agency charged with that responsibility, with
respect to any proposed construction, excavation, or other earthmoving activity. A/l associated
stormwater management plans, erosion control plans and approvals shall be provided.

All proposed signs shall conform to the requirements of Article VII of the Zoning Ordinance and must
receive approval by the Township Zoning Officer prior to erection. A/l proposed signage must be
submitted to and approved by the Township Zoning Olfficer.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Per Section 390-17.B., “An application for final plan approval can be submitted only when the
following conditions have been met: (1) The subdivision has previously been granted an unconditional
preliminary plan approval in accord with § 390-16 of this chapter or all conditions established by the
Township for the preliminary plan approval have been fulfilled by the applicant, excluding any outside
agency approval or permits.” The application indicates this is a Final Plan submission; however, a
waiver would be required to permit a Preliminary/Final Land Development application and approval.
We recommend the applicant request a waiver for the Preliminary/Final Land Development
application.

In accordance with Section 390-29.E.(3), “The survey shall not have an error of closure greater than
one in 10,000 feet and shall include a boundary closure report.”™ A closure report has been submitted
for the gross area; however, a closure shall be submitted for the net area of the parcel as well.



10.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024
Page 4 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(2), the improvements plans shall include “existing and proposed
lot lines, lot areas, full lot grading, driveway locations and elevations, and any existing easements and
rights-of-way.” The portions of the property lines between the existing and ultimate rights-of-way
must be dimensioned on the plan sheets.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(4), the improvements plan shall include “information indicating
available and safe sight stopping distances for all driveways, access drives, roads, etc., which must be
in compliance with the most current version Pennsylvania Department of Transportation
specifications.” The required information shall be shown on the plans.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(d), the following note is required on the land development
plans: "Well and sewage disposal systems shall be constructed in accordance with recommended
standards of the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection." The note shall be added to
the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(f), the following note is required on the land development
plans: “The Planning Commission and the Commissioners have not passed upon the feasibility of any
individual lot or location within a lot being able to sustain any type of well or sewage disposal system.™
The required note shall be added to the plans.

[n accordance with Section 390-29.J.(7), Supporting documents and information, “Water supply
information. In the case of individual on-lot wells, information documenting water table depth and
potential for affecting the groundwater supply. In the case of community systems:

(a) A statement from a professional engineer of the type and adequacy of any community water
supply system proposed to serve the project.

(d) Privately owned central system. A statement setting forth the proposed ownership of the system
and responsibility for operation and maintenance.

(e) A copy of any application for any permit, license or certificate required by DEP or the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission for the construction and operation of any proposed
central water supply system. Land development plan approval shall be conditioned on the
issuance of said permits by PA DEP and/or PA PUC.”

The required information shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(9), supporting documents to be submitted include “A list of any
public utility, environmental or other permits required and if none are required, a statement to that
effect. The Township may require a professional engineer's certification of such list.” In addition, and
in accordance with Section 390-29.J.(19), “All required state or federal environmental and other
permits.” The Design Engineer shall submit the required list of required permits/approvals to the
Township. The following outside agency approvals are required:

a. Monroe County Planning Commission

b. Monroe County Conservation District/Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection
— NPDES Permit

c. Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection — Sewage Facilities Planning Module,
Water Supply Permit



13.

16.

-/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024

Page 5 of 20

d. PADEP/USACE — Ch. 105 Small Projects Joint Permit

e. Pocono Township Fire Department

[n accordance with Section 390-29.J.(10), the Applicant shall provide “Confirmation that the soil
erosion and sedimentation control plan has been accepted for review by the Monroe County
Conservation District. (See also §390-51.)" Submissions to, correspondence with, and permit from the
Monroe County Conservation District shall be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-30, ** As-built plans shall include the information required by this §390-
30 and additional information may be required on a case-by-case basis.” As-built plans shall be
submitted when construction is complete as outlined in this Section. A note requiring an as-built plan
per Section 390-30 of the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance shall be provided on the plan.

In accordance with Section 390-32.B and Section 390-41, no final plan shall be signed by the Board
of Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds until:

All improvements required by this chapter are installed to the specifications contained in Article VI of
this chapter and other Township requirements and such improvements are certified by the applicant's
engineer; or

Proposed developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with §390-35 and the
Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended, have been accepted by the
Board of Commissioners.

The Applicant shall submit a construction cost estimate for the proposed site improvements in order
to determine the required escrow amount for the developer’s agreement. 4 developer's agreement and
performance guarantee will be required prior to plan recordation.

In accordance with Section 390-38.A and Section 390-38.B, the developer shall provide to the
satisfaction of the Board of Commissioners, and prior to final plan approval, evidence of the provision,
including a plan, for the succession of ownership and responsibility for the operation and maintenance
of development improvements.” The required documentation and agreement(s) shall be provided to
the Township.

In accordance with Section 390-38.C.(3), “Any improvements which will remain private. In the case
where roads, drainage facilities, a central sewage treatment system or central water supply, or any other
improvements are to remain private, the developer shall provide for the establishment of an escrow
fund in accord with §390-35A to guarantee the operation and maintenance of the improvements. Said
fund shall be established on a permanent basis with administrative provisions approved by the Board
of Commissioners. The amount of said fund shall be 15% of the construction cost of the system as
verified by the Township Engineer. The maintenance and operation of the improvements and the
administration of any required maintenance fund account shall be clearly established as the joint
responsibility of the owner(s) of each structure or dwelling unit served by such system. Such
responsibility and the mechanism to accomplish same shall be established by deed covenants and
restrictions which shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Commissioners.™ An operation and
maintenance agreement and guarantee shall be required for the stormwater management facilities,
sewage system, and water supply.



19.

8]
o

[N®)
W

Pocono Township Planning Commission

ﬁ Brookdale Spa - 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024
Page 6 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-46.A., “Protection of vegetation from mechanical injury. Where
earthwork, grading, or construction activities will take place in or adjacent to woodlands, old fields or
other significant vegetation or site features, the Township may require that the limit of disturbance be
delineated, and vegetation protected through installation of temporary fencing or other approved
measures. Such fencing shall be installed prior to commencing of, and shall be maintained throughout,
the period of construction activity.” The Erosion & Sediment Control Plans shall be revised to show
tree protection fence along the limit of disturbance lines and/or along the dripline of the trees to be
preserved and included within the Construction Sequence.

In accordance with Section 390-46.C., “Protection of vegetation from excavations. When digging
trenches for utility lines or similar uses, disturbances to the root zones of all woody vegetation shall be
minimized. If trenches must be excavated in the root zone, all disturbed roots shall be cut as cleanly as
possible. The trench shall be backfilled as quickly as possible.” This shall be noted on the Erosion &
Sediment Control Plans.

Per Section 390-46.D.(1), “Except as approved on the preliminary plan, no topsoil shall be removed
from the site and shall be retained on the site as necessary for proper site stabilization.” A note to this
effect must be added to the plans.

In accordance with Section 390-48.H.(1), “wherever there exists a dedicated or platted portion of a
road or alley along a boundary of the tract being subdivided or developed the remainder of said road
or alley shall be platted to the width required by this chapter based on the classification of the road
within the proposed development.” As noted in the Sketch Plan review, Back Mountain Road is a
Collector Road. Minimum design standards are a 60" right-of-way, 20’ travel way, and 28" cartway
with shoulders. The plans appear to show a 60 proposed ultimate right-of-way, a 19" existing travel
way, and a 20.6 " existing cartway. Therefore, the plans shall be revised to reflect the required travel
way and cartway along the property frontage to meet the ordinance requirements.

Per Section 390-48.S., Clear sight triangles. “At all road intersections and all land development
driveways/accesses, a triangular area shall be graded and/or other sight obstructions removed in such
a manner as not to obscure vision between a height of two to 10 feet above the center-line grades of
the intersecting roads.” Clear sight triangles shall be shown on the plan and restrictions noted.

In accordance with Section 390-48.T.(2), “Sight distance requirements for all driveways and access
drives intersecting a state, Township or private road shall be in accordance with the Pennsylvania Code,
Title 57, Transportation, Chapter 441 "Access to and Occupancy of Highway by Driveways and Local
Roads," last edition. All sight distance obstructions, including, but not limited to, embankments and
vegetation, shall be removed by the applicant to provide the required sight distance.” While the Site
Plan does show a “Sight Distance " label, it does not identify whether it is required or provided. Both
the required and provided sight distances shall be added to the plans and labeled accordingly.

In accordance with Section 390-48.T.(9), “Driveways and access drives shall intersect roads as nearly
as possible at 90°, but in no case less than 75° or greater than 105°.” The angle of the intersection of
the access drive with Back Mountain Road shall be indicated on the plans.

In accordance with Section 390-48.T.(13)(a), “The access drive within the legal right-of-way of the
public road, or for a distance of at least 20 feet from the edge of the cartway, whichever is greater, shall



30.

31

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024
Page 7 of 20

not have a grade in excess of 4%. The grade of any access drive shall not exceed 10%.™ 4 profile shall
be added to the plans must demonstrate compliance with this requirement.

Per Section 390-48.T.(13)(b), “Access drive entrances into all nonresidential and nonagricultural use
properties shall be no less than 24 feet in width, shall not exceed 36 feet in width at the road line, unless
provided with a median divider, and shall be clearly defined by curbing. The curbs of these driveway
entrances shall be rounded with a minimum radius of 20 feet from where they intersect a road.” Radii
dimensions must be added to the driveway entrance at Back Mountain Road as required by the
ordinance. Additionally, the “road line” is defined as being at the right-of-way line; therefore, the
proposed driveway is 50 feet wide at that point and does not meet the ordinance requirement. A waiver
request has been submitted. The justification states that the width is required to accommodate the
turning movements for a WB-62 truck.

Per Section 390-48.T.(14), “Concrete aprons shall be provided for all access drives with concrete
sidewalks.” A concrete apron must be provided for the driveway at Back Mountain Road.

Per Section 390-48. W.(1), “Cuts and fills. The maximum slope of any earth embankment or excavation
shall not exceed one foot vertical to three feet horizontal unless stabilized by a retaining wall or
cribbing, except as approved by the Board of Commissioners for special conditions.” /¢ is noted the
proposed embankments along the access drive and throughout the site are shown to be 2:1. A waiver
has been requested to permit the 2:1 slopes. The justification states that erosion control matting will
be provided and the stability of the slopes will be documented in a geotechnical report. The submitted
geotechnical report indicates that slopes greater than 3H:1V will require additional engineering
evaluation, therefore, the “additional engineering evaluation” supporting the waiver request must be
provided.

Per Section 390-48.AA., “Sidewalks; crosswalks. Sidewalks and road crosswalks may be required
where necessary to provide proper pedestrian circulation or to provide access to community facilities
and common areas. Sidewalks, where required or provided, shall be located within the road right-of-
way immediately adjacent to the curbs, except as may be approved by the Township to accommodate
road trees or other landscaping. Sidewalks and road crosswalks shall be constructed in accord with the
most current PennDOT RC67M standard and Americans with Disabilities Act standards.”™ Sidewalks
are required to be provided along Back Mountain Road.

Per Section 390-49.A.(4), monuments shall be set at all outbound locations where permanent
monuments did not exist at the time of the perimeter survey unless site conditions preclude the
installation and the missing monument shall be noted on the final plan. The Plans must be revised to
reflect the required monuments at each change of direction along the outbound of the property.

In accordance with Section 390-49.B.(4), “Markers shall be set at each existing and proposed lot
corner. If it is impossible or impractical to set a survey marker precisely on the corner, then survey
markers may be established on the line of the lot and offset a distance from the actual corner. Such
distance shall be so noted on the final plan.” The plan shall be revised to provide the required markers
at each proposed corner of the property.

Per Section 390-50.D.(5), “Embankment slope. The maximum slope of the earthen detention basin
embankments shall be four horizontal to one vertical.” The proposed basins show interior side slope
grades of 3:1 (33%) and exterior side slopes of 2:1 (50%). A waiver has been requested to permit the



4i\§ Pocono Township Planning Commission

34.

(8]
W

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024

Page 8 of 20

2:1 slopes. The justification states that evosion control matting will be provided and the stability of
the slopes will be documented in a geotechnical report. The submitted geotechnical report indicates
that slopes greater than 3H:1V will require additional engineering evaluation; therefore, the
additional engineering evaluation” supporting the waiver request must be provided.

Per Section 390-50.D.(12)(c), “The anti-seep collars shall extend a minimum of two feet beyond the
outside of the principal pipe barrel.” The design currently shows the projection to be 1.5 feet. This
must be revised to the required minimum of 2 feet.

Per Section 390-50.D.(12)(d), *The maximum spacing between collars shall be 14 times the minimum
project of the collar measured perpendicular to the pipe.” The collar spacing for the 36" pipe out of
Basin 4 exceeds the 14 times dimension and must be revised accordingly.

Per Section 390-50.D.(12)(e), “A minimum of two anti-seep collars shall be installed on each outlet
pipe.” The 36" pipe out of Basin 4 only has I collar proposed and must be revised to show the two
collars required.

Per Section 390-50.D.(13)(a), “All outlet pipes through the basin berm shall be reinforced concrete
pipe with watertight joints.™ The plan shall identify the requirement for watertight joints.

In accordance with Section 390-50.D.(15), “All detention/retention basin embankments shall be placed
in a maximum of eight-inch lifts compacted to a minimum of 95% of modified proctor density, as
established by ASTM D-1557. Prior to proceeding to the next lift, the compaction shall be checked by
the Township Engineer or a certified soils engineer. Compaction tests shall be run on the leading and
trailing edge of the berm along with the top of berm.” A note regarding the compaction testing
requirement shall be added to the plans outlining these requirements.

In accordance with Sections 390-51.A. and B., “All soil erosion and sedimentation control plans shall
meet the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall comply
with Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of Environmental Protection
regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control”, and, “Preliminary plan approval shall be
conditioned on all required approvals and permits from the Monroe County Conservation District
and/or PA DEP.” The proposed site disturbance is greater than one (1) acre, therefore an NPDES
Permit is required. A copy of the NPDES Permit and letter of determination of erosion and sediment
control adequacy shall be provided to the Township, as well as any correspondence between the
Applicant and Monroe County Conservation District and PADEP.

Per Section 390-52.A.(2), “All suppliers of non-municipally owned, centralized water and/or sewer
services shall be organized in such a fashion as may be required by the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission and the Developer shall provide for operation, maintenance, and continuity of services in
a manner which is acceptable to the Township.” The O&M requirements and ownership/maintenance
plan for the water and sewage facilities must be provided to the Township, including any certificate of
public convenience firom the PUC.

Per Section 390-52.B., “Well setbacks. All wells shall comply with the setback requirements of the
Township in any Well Ordinance[1] or in Chapter 470, Zoning. Proposed well locations shall be shown
on the plan to confirm compliance.” The plans show a proposed well and a future well. The required
well setbacks must be shown on the Plans.



41.

43.

44,

45.

46.

48.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024
Page 9 of 20

Per Section 390-52.E.(1), “Project supply. If an approved public water supply is not accessible and
water is to be furnished on a project basis, the applicant shall, upon submission of the subdivision or
land development plan, submit written evidence that he has complied with all Township and state
regulations, and that the proposed system to be installed meets the requirements of the PA PUC, PA
DEP, and any other applicable regulations.™ The required documentation must be provided for the on-
lot water supply.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(a), “Wells shall be sited, drilled and tested under the direct supervisor of a
registered professional engineer and/or a professional hydrogeologist.” Drilling logs, testing, and
installation oversight of the well drilling and testing must be provided.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(b), “Wells shall be located away from potential source of pollution on a
reserved area of not less than 2,500 square feet in size.”™ The reserved areas for the proposed and future
wells must be defined on the plans.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(c), “The capacity of the well(s), as certified by a professional engineer, shall
be sufficient to produce at least 110 gallons per capita per day and/or 400 gallons per day for each
residential dwelling unit to be served. Adequate capacity of any well(s) to service industrial or
commercial establishments shall be documented by the applicant to the satisfaction of the Township
and the Township Engineer.” The design engineer is required to provide documentation that the wells
can provide adequate capacity for the proposed commercial development.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(d), “Wells shall be pump tested utilizing a controlled step-draw down test to
establish the specific capacity of each well and to establish a long-term pumping rate. The well shall
be pumped at the above determined long-term pumping rate for a sufficient period of time for
stabilization to occur and the recovery noted. In no case shall a pumping rate greater than the recharge
rate be allowed.” The required pump testing results must be provided.

Per Section 390-52.E.(3)(f), “Documentation of the effect of the projected area-wide drawdown of the
water table may be required by the Township if the anticipated pumping of groundwater warrants such
documentation.™ 1t is unclear what other existing wells may exist on the neighboring properties that
could be affected by the proposed wells. The design engineer shall identify other wells and the effect
of the new well(s) within the potential drawdown area.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(d), “The design and installation of any central (public or community) water
supply system shall be subject to the approval of the Township, the PA DEP and other regulatory
bodies having jurisdiction. Any such system shall be further subject to satisfactory provisions for the
maintenance thereof. Standards and materials for the construction of any central water supply system
shall meet or exceed those requirements described in the "Public Water Supply Manual of the
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection" and shall be subject to the approval of the
Township.™ The design engineer shall provide an operational and maintenance plan prepared by a
PA Licensed Water Supply Operator.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(e), “In all subdivisions and land developments served by a central water
system, the following water pressure and gallonage requirements shall apply: [2.] Commercial or
industrial use a minimum working pressure of 30 pounds per square inch shall be provided at each
commercial or industrial building connected to the water supply main. Where a building wishes to



49.

50.

51.

53.

-/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024

Page 10 of 20

/4

connect to a central water system, a study shall be made to determine if there is adequate water supply
in the system to supply the building and use.” The required study of the distribution system must be
submitted for review.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(D[1], “Fire hydrants suitable for the coupling of equipment serving the
Township shall be installed as specified by the Insurance Services Office of Pennsylvania and shall
comply with applicable fire company standards. Location of hydrants shall be approved by the
Township.” Proposed fire hydrants must be shown on the plans and approved by the Fire Company.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(f)[6], Commercial or industrial use.

[a] For purposes of fire protection in commercial and industrial uses, the system shall be capable of
providing fire-flow and flow duration based on the type of use, hazard, and construction as
specified in the Pennsylvania Uniform Construction Code as amended from time to time; however,
the fire flow shall not be less than 1,500 gallons per minute.

[b] A reduction in the required fire flow by 50% may be permitted when all buildings within a
development are provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with the
International Fire Code as adopted by the Pennsylvania Uniform Construction Code as amended.

Documentation that the required fire flows can be met must be provided to the Township.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(g)[3], “If wells are to be utilized as a part of the proposed water supply
system, the number of wells, the pumping capacity of each well, the number of hours per day that each
well pump operates, the depth of each well, depth of water table in each well, diameter of well casing,
draw-down rated capacity of each well, the maximum sustained yield from the well test together with
a copy of the well test data all shall be supplied with the proposed study.” The required well test
information shall be submitted to demonstrate compliance.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(g)[7], “For any new commercial or industrial use, a minimum pressure of 30
pounds per square inch shall be provided which shall meet all potable water supply requirements for
the intended use in addition to providing fire-flow water requirements for a minimum duration of two
hours of not less than 500 gallons per minute at residual pressures of 30 pounds per square inch. Fire
hydrants for either residential, commercial, or industrial development shall be spaced every 600 feet
within the proposed development.” Documentation that the required fire flows can be met must be
provided to the Township.

Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(g)[8], “The water supply study shall demonstrate that all potable water
required for the subject subdivisions and/or land developments shall meet the water quality standards
as established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, originally listed as the National
Interim Primary Drinking Water Regulations, EPA Document No. 570/9-76-003, and as further
amended in the Federal Register, Wednesday, December 24, 1975, through Wednesday, August 27,
1980, and including the National Secondary Drinking Water Regulations as listed in the Federal
Register, Thursday, July 19, 1979. In addition, any known carcinogens which have been identified as
of the date of this chapter, and which might be identified after the date of this chapter, shall be identified
in any and all testing procedures of the proposed public water supply and water supplies exceeding the
established carcinogenic levels shall not be utilized for domestic purposes.™ New source water quality
testing shall be provided for all wells.



4i\§ Pocono Township Planning Commission

'. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1

October 9, 2024

Page 11 of 20

54. Per Sections 390-52.E.(4.)(1)[1] and [4], “Distribution mains of the overall system shall be connected
into loops so that the supply may be brought to the consumer from more than one direction.” and
“Water mains shall be configured to form a loop system to enhance the continual supply of fresh
water.” The required loop must be added to the water system.

55. Per Section 390-52.E.(4.)(i)[20][a], “Water mains shall be a minimum diameter of eight inches except
at the end of a permanent cul-de-sac, unless another size is required for fire flow or other criteria. A
six-inch main may be used when it serves not more than 20 dwelling units and only one fire hydrant.”
The plans depict two separate 8" water lines for fire and domestic use. We recommend the size of the
domestic line be reconsidered. Providing potable water at a flow rate which is able to flush the 8" line
is likely not possible from a system this small. Provided there is adequate distribution capacity of a
smaller diameter water mains, as justified by appropriate analysis, a waiver from this provision would
be required.

56. Per Section 390-52.E.(4.)(i)[22], “Pipe bedding and backfill shall be installed in accordance with the
pipe manufacturer's recommendations.” The plans propose PennDOT 24 stone, which is a bedding
typical of DIP or RCP Pipe, not PVC. The bedding shall be AASHTO 57 or similar clean crushed
stone. Type 24 as shown is acceptable for the backfill.

57. Per Section 390-52.E.(4)(k), “If the proposed subdivision or land development will utilize groundwater
as the source of potable water, a hydrogeology study shall accompany the preliminary plan.” The
required study shall be provided.

58. Per Section 390-52.E.(5), “Flow rates. Distribution systems serving commercial or industrial
developments shall provide for a minimum flow rate of at least 2.5 times the projected average daily
flow rate or a minimum flow rate in accordance with the standards of the National Fire Underwriters
Association, whichever is greater.” A model of the distribution system shall be provided to demonstrate
that the required flows can be provided.

59. Per Section 390-52.E.(6), “Water resources impact study. A water resources impact study shall be
required for all residential developments involving 12 or more lots and any nonresidential development
proposing to withdraw 4,000 or more gallons of water per day over a thirty-day period.” The required
hydrogeologic study and calculations shall be provided in a format to meet this requirement since the
anticipated water usage is over 4,000 gpd.

60. In accordance with Section 390-52.G.(1)(b)[2], “Minimum cover over the top of the sewer shall be 4
1/2 feet unless special construction precautions such as cast-iron pipe or concrete encasement are
specified and approved.” The following locations along the proposed sanitary sewer appear to have
less than 4 % feet of cover and must be revised accordingly: STA 16+27 and STA 14+35.

61. In accordance with Section 390-52.G.(1)(b)[8], “Sewers shall be located a minimum of 10 feet
horizontally from any obstruction such as a building. Sewers must be a minimum of 10 feet from a
water main or 18 inches (measured from top of sewer to bottom of water main) under the same. When
a sanitary sewer line crosses above or under any other pipeline with separation of less than 18 inches,
the sanitary line will be provided with concrete encasement that extends 10 feet on either side of the
pipe being crossed.” Concrete encasement locations must be shown on the plans and profiles where
the minimum separation distances are not achieved.



63.

64.

66.

67.

68.

69.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024
Page 12 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-52.G.(1)(b)[9], “Material. All gravity sewer mains shall be [a] Ductile
iron pipe and shall conform to ASTM A764 or [b] Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) SDR 35 pipe for up to 14
feet depth; SDR 26 for up to 18 feet depth; SDR21 for up to 20 feet depth, and shall conform to ASTM
D3034.” We recommend the applicant request a waiver to utilize HDPE pipe for the force main.

In accordance with Section 390-52.G.(1)(c)[3], “Manholes shall have a drop of 0.2 foot between the
inlet and outlet.” The plans shall be revised to provide the minimum 0.2-foot drop through the sanitary
manholes.

In accordance with Section 390-52.G.(1)(c)[6], “In all manholes, the pipes entering and leaving the
structure shall be oriented so that the flow angle is not more than 90°. The proposed pipe angles at
sanitary MHs 10 and 17 shall be labeled on the plans to demonstrate conformance with this
requirement.

In accordance with Section 390-55.B.(1), “Preservation of existing vegetation. Each mature tree, tree
mass, or woodland on the site shall be designated "TO REMAIN" or "TO BE REMOVED" and shall
be shown on the plan™ in accordance with the criteria in this section. Additionally, Section 390-
55.B.(1)(a) states “All subdivisions and land developments shall be laid out in such a manner as to
minimize the removal of healthy trees and shrubs on the site. Mature trees (six inches or greater dbh)
shall be preserved insofar as possible; and special consideration shall be given to major specimen trees
(12 inches or greater dbh). The plan shall show the location of major specimen trees in areas of the site
proposed for development, and the edge of existing woodlands.” The plan shall be revised to identify
any specimen trees and to clearly show the disposition of existing vegetation on the site. This
information should be provided on an existing features/demolition plan.

Pursuant to Section 390-55.B.(2), “Protection of existing vegetation. Existing vegetation designated
"TO REMAIN" in accord with Subsection B(1)(c), above, shall be identitied in the field prior to any
clearing and shall be physically protected throughout the construction process. A temporary physical
barrier, such as a snow fence, shall be erected a minimum of one foot outside the dripline on all sides
of individual trees, tree masses, or woodlands prior to major clearing or construction. The barrier shall
be placed to prevent disturbance to, or compaction of, soil inside the barrier and shall remain until
construction is complete. The barrier shall be shown on the landscape plan.” Tree protection fencing
shall be shown along the “proposed” treeline. A detail of the fencing shall also be added to the plans.

Per Section 390-55.B.(6), “Clear sight triangles. All landscaping shall comply with the sight distance
requirements of this chapter, including intersections of public streets and access drives of commercial,
industrial, and multifamily developments.” The clear sight triangles shall be shown on the landscaping
plan.

In accordance with Section 390-55.C.(2)(a), “One planting island shall be provided for every 10
parking stalls.” For a parking area of 340 spaces, thirty-four (34) planting islands are required. The
plan shall include a Compliance Chart tabulating the requirements compared to what is provided on
the plans.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(e), “Planting islands shall be a minimum of nine feet by 18 feet in dimension,
underlain by soil (not base course material); mounded at no more than a 3:1 slope, nor less than a 5:1
slope; and shall be protected by curbing or bollards. Each planting island shall contain a minimum of



70.

71.

73.

74.

76.

N Pocono Township Planning Commission
'\. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024
Page 13 of 20

one shade tree plus shrubs and/or ground cover sufficient to cover the entire area.” The plan shall
dimension the widths of the proposed parking islands. Additionally, the specified “rock mulch/rock
ground cover” is not listed in Appendix A as an acceptable ground cover. The applicant should discuss
this with the Township.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(f), “All planting strips shall be a minimum of eight feet wide. Strips shall run
the length of the parking row, underlain by soil (not base course material), shall be designed to
encourage the infiltration of stormwater insofar as possible, and shall be protected by curbs, wheel
stops, or bollards. Planting strips shall contain plantings of street-type shade trees at maximum intervals
of tree per 30 feet, plus shrubs and/or ground cover, as approved by the Township, to cover the entire
area.” The width of the planting strip between the parking aisles at the front of the building shall be
dimensioned.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(g), “The placement of light standards shall be coordinated with the landscape
plan to avoid a conflict with the effectiveness of light fixtures.” Several light standards shown on the
Landscape plans conflict with the proposed landscaping. The plans shall be coordinated and revised
as necessary to avoid conflict.

Per Section 390-55.C.(2)(h), for parking lots with 10 or more stalls, “Plants shall comply with the
requirements of §390-55G of this chapter. The use of plants selected from the List of Acceptable Plants
in §390-55H is required.” A proposed shrub, Bog Rosemary, is not on the list of acceptable plants. A
waiver has been requested to utilize the Bog Rosemary due to its resistance to deer browsing.

Per Section 390-55.D.(1)(a), “Street trees shall be required along all existing streets abutting or within
the proposed subdivision or land development.” Street trees are required along Back Mountain Road.

Per Section 390-55.D.(3)(d), “Trees shall be planted at a ratio of at least one tree per 50 linear feet of
frontage or fraction thereof. Trees shall be distributed along the entire frontage of the property,
although they need not be evenly spaced.” Street tree requirements shall be calculated based on the
actual frontage of the property with no exclusions for access drives. The calculations and the required
number of trees shall be provided on the Landscaping Plan.

Per Section 390-55.E.(3), “Basin grades. Minimum grades inside stormwater basins shall be 1% unless
infiltration is an integral part of the design; and maximum side slopes of the basin shall be 33% (3:1
slope).” The proposed basins show interior side slope grades of 3:1 (33%,), exterior side slopes of 2:1
(50%), and flat bottoms. A waiver request has been submitted to permit steeper side slopes with
erosion control matting and a flat bottom to provide for infiltration and evapotranspiration. In part,
the justification states that erosion control matting will be provided and the stability of the slopes will
be documented in a geotechnical report. The submitted geotechnical report indicates that slopes
greater than 3H:1V will require additional engineering evaluation. The “additional engineering
evaluation” supporting the waiver request must be provided.

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(c) and Table 390-55-1, “The width and quantity and type of
plants required shall be determined by the intensity of the proposed land use and the adjacent land use,
vacant land, or zoning district, according to Table 390-55-1." Buffer calculations must be provided
on the Landscaping Plan. The calculations/tabulation shall include the property line lengths, the
intensity of the buffer, and the required and provided number of plants for each buffer area.



71.

78.

79.

80.

1.

83.

84.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024
Page 14 of 20

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(3)(f)[4], " A variety of tree species is required”. The plan shall
demonstrate compliance with the required maximum percentage of any one species.

In accordance with Section 390-55.F.(4)(c), “The type of site element screen required shall be
determined by the site element and the adjacent existing land use or zoned use in the case of vacant
land, according to Table 390-55-2." Site element screens and calculations must be provided on the
Landscaping Plan for the detention basins and the sewage pump station.

In accordance with Section 390-55.G.(2), plants shall meet the requirements of this section “Plant
specifications”. Planted material shall meet the minimum size requirements of this section. The
landscaping plan shall be revised accordingly as necessary.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1., “Landscape plans shall be prepared by a landscape architect
licensed and registered to practice by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or other person deemed
qualified by the Township.”™ The landscape plans shall be signed and sealed by the landscape architect
who prepared them.

Per Section 390-55.1.(1)(a), “Existing features. The location and character of existing buildings; mature
trees standing alone; location and elevation of major specimen trees (12 inches or greater dbh) in any
area of the site proposed for development; outer limits of tree masses and other existing vegetation;
and the location of floodplain, wetlands, and other natural features that may affect the location of
proposed streets, buildings, and landscape plantings.” The applicant is requesting a waiver from
showing this information on the plans.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(f), the final landscape plan shall include “Location of all
proposed landscaping, including required street trees, stormwater basin landscaping, parking lot
landscaping, property line buffers, and site element screen landscaping.”™ The Landscape Plan C.L.01
reflects 2 grey bars in the southwest corner of the site with the label “Buffer Required’. The buffer
plantings must be shown.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(h), the final landscape plan shall include A schedule showing
all landscape requirements and plants proposed for each category.” The schedule shall be added to the
landscape plan and completed for each required landscape category.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(k), “A detailed cost estimate shall be submitted, showing the
value of all proposed landscaping, including all labor and materials.” The required cost estimate for
the project shall include the proposed landscaping.

In accordance with Section 390-56.A.(4)(a), “Lighting plans shall be submitted for reviews and
approval of any installation of lighting in connection with a land development application for any use
identified in Subsection A(2) of this section. Lighting plans shall include the following:

[1] A site plan, complete with all structures, parking spaces, building entrances, traffic areas (both
vehicular and pedestrian), vegetation that might interfere with lighting, and adjacent uses that
might be adversely impacted by the lighting, containing a layout of all propose fixtures by
location and type.



Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024
Page 16 of 20

proposed within the study area. We recommend this Analysis be provided to PennDOT for evaluation
with respect to the timing of the traffic signals recently installed at 611/Brookdale Road.

SANITARY SEWER AND PUMP STATION COMMENTS

90.

91.

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

99.

100.

The plan detail for the pump station shows the total depth of the structure to be 10° while the narrative
states 9. The documents must be revised for consistency.

Control specifications shall be provided for a run time meter, pump alteration, pump safe relays, and
an autodialer for pump station failures.

The proposed meter shall be specified and data sheets provided.

The plan and control panel shall provide for an audible and visual alarm within line of sight of the
pump station.

The material type, i.e., DR9 HDPE, shall be added to the plan view and profile of the force mains.

The grinder pump specification provides marginal pump capacity to maintain scour velocity. Since
grinder pumps are known to lose capacity over time, we would recommend a flow rate of no less than
80 gpm with the proposed 4™ force main.

The backwash of the pool system is reported to be 5,600 gpd. The peak rate of the backwash must be
determined and demonstrated that it does not overwhelm the connected pump station. Further, pool
backwash is known to have a much stronger waste than traditional sewage. The organic loading
capacity of the WWTP, both in total daily load and concentration, must be analyzed to demonstrate it
can handle the proposed combined waste.

The size of the sewer laterals for the building connections must be provided. For commercial uses, the
size shall be no smaller than 6.

The lateral from the main building shall tie directly into the sewer main with a wye, not into MH 10.

The size of the stub for the pool backwash system from the MH connecting to MH 11 must be provided.
Additionally, this manhole shall be provided with a unique number for identification.

The light post immediately upslope of MH 11 appears to be set over the sewer main and must be
relocated.

The construction details of the proposed grease trap must be provided.

The force main crosses under Scot Run, a regulated water course. A Chapter 105 stream encroachment
permit is required for this crossing.

Per the Domestic Wastewater Facilities Manual, Section 27.2, the pipe material under the stream must
be cast or ductile iron, or be concrete encased. The applicant must consult with the PADEP to determine
if the proposed variation from the standard is acceptable for the use of HDPE directional boring being
proposed.



107.

108.

109.

110.

I11.

114.

115.

116.

117.

1 18.

119.

™~/ 4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024

Page 17 of 20

Notation shall be added to the sewer plans that state “Force main boring must be monitored in real time
to verify the location of the force main both horizontally and vertically during boring activities.

At least one cleanout location should be provided in the midpoint of the force main.

Anti Seep collars should be provided on the sanitary sewer line upslope of Manhole 21 and the sewage
pump station because of the proximity of the infiltration basin immediately upslope.

The proposed 3™ HDPE line shown along Dyson Road should have shut off valves proposed on the 37
lateral stubs.

A Township Road occupancy permit must be obtained for the road crossings in Brookdale and Dyson
Roads.

Tees and isolation valves shall be provided along Boulder Drive on both the 4™ and 3™ lines to allow
for potential extension to connect to the Township’s sewage collection system if desired in the future.

Lot 2 (this project) and Lot 3 are separate legal parcels. An easement on Lot 3, to benefit Lot 2, must
be provided to allow for the installation and future maintenance of the force mains.

An easement through the Brookdale Resort property for the connection and future maintenance of the
force main to the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility must be provided.

Notation shall be added to the Site Plan stating the ownership and maintenance responsibilities of the
force main and sewage pump station and the requirement for an operational plan to be prepared which
includes the operation and maintenance responsibilities, schedules, and emergency contacts. This shall
be provided to the Township prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

Copies of agreements allowing for the connection to and treatment of sewage through the existing
Brookdale Resort Wastewater Treatment Facility for this project must be provided to the Township.

Details of the connection to the headworks of the WWTP shall be provided.

The hydraulic capacity of the headworks shall be provided demonstrating that the additional peak flows
do not cause overload of the WWTP during peak flow conditions from all connected users.

The sewer profiles show multiple drop manholes. It is recommended that the design engineer review
the plans to eliminate as many drop manholes as possible.

All drop manholes shall be specifically labeled in the profile view.
Isolation valve construction details for the force mains shall be provided utilizing plug valves.
The sewer notes provided on plan sheet C.DU.01 provides references to Township Sewage system

standards. This system is not connecting to nor is regulated by Township sewer system rules and
regulations. The notes should be revised accordingly.



w

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive
Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1
October 9, 2024

Page 18 of 20

120.  The manhole details shall be revised to provide for bedding under the manholes with PennDOT 2A
stone to limit ground water migration under and around manholes.

I121. A construction detail for the proposed drop manholes shall be provided showing exterior drop with full
concrete encasement.

122, Figure 12¢, 4° Dia. Deep Manhole Profile, refers to Notes 5-7 on Figure 12.f The figure and
corresponding notation could not be found in the plan set.

WATER COMMENTS

123. The plans identify a water treatment, storage, and pump system within the maintenance building.
Information related to this treatment must be provided to the Township for review.

124, The location of the water storage tank to provide fire protection services must be shown.

125, The fire flow demand must be established.

126.  This project will require a Township permit for the well(s) prior to construction per Code Chapter 439.
The location and construction of the proposed well(s) must comply with Township ordinances.

127. The project will require a water supply permit under PA Code, Title 25, Chapter 109.

128.  The plan appears to indicate that there will be a dedicated fire protection system. Notation shall be
added stating the fire protection system, including the fire protection water main, shall be constructed,
tested, and operated in compliance with the NFPA.

129.  Potable water mains crossing under any storm or sanitary lines shall have concrete encasement. The
encasement shall be added to the plans and profiles.

130.  The water main trench detail shall be revised to indicate that 5° of cover is required over the fire

protection main in compliance with NFPA.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

131.

134.

135.

The Township Land Development Plan (LDP) No. 1425 shall be placed in the lower right-hand corner
of all plan sheets and provided on all subsequently submitted documents.

Legends shall be added to all plan sheets depicting line and hatching types.

Wetlands and wetland marker numbers per the wetlands report shall be added to the Existing
Resources/Demolition Plan Sheet C.EX.01.

We recommend an overall site plan be added to the set for clarity of the proposed improvements.

The Site Plans contain a dark line parallel to and offset 25 feet from the existing title line (centerline
of the road). It is unclear as to what this line is and it must be labeled.



136.

138.

139.

140.

141.

144.

145.

146.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

ﬁ ~Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. |
October 9, 2024
Page 19 of 20

The proposed grading shown on the Site Plans does not match that shown on the PCSM plans. All
proposed grading shall be consistent throughout the plan set.

Additional information regarding the existing 15" private access easement (PB 59 PG79) shall be
provided to the Township.

The parking space access aisles between the handicapped parking spaces shall be marked.
Landscape island dimensions shall be added to the Site Plans.

The separate Turning Movement Plan shows a WB-62 entering and exiting the site and the loading
dock at the main building. A fire truck shall also be run to demonstrate accessibility to the back of the
building from the western parking lot as well as any required circulation route for the truck.

The plans shall identify the trash collection/dumpster areas. The trash truck circulation shall be verified
through a turning movement plan.

Bus navigation to and from the bus parking spaces shall be demonstrated on a turning movement plan.

It was represented at a Planning Commission meeting that the existing gravel driveway along a portion
of the southwestern side of the site will remain to provide emergency access to the rear of the
Maintenance and Employee Housing buildings. The Turning Movement Plans shall also demonstrate
vehicular accessibility for this gravel driveway.

The graphic scale on Sheet C.EX.01 is incorrect. It scales 1.7°=80" on the printed plans.

The following discrepancies are noted with respect to the Overall Gross Area closure report and Plan
Sheet C.S.01:

a. Segment #4: The course and length do not match between the report and the plan.

b. Segment #8: The course does not match between the report and the plan.

c. Plan Sheet C.S.01 also does not match Plan Sheet C.EX.01 on these courses.

The linework for the proposed maintenance building lateral profile on Sheet C.UT.04 is missing from
the profile and must be added.

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with the
intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the number and nature of the
comments in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to approval
of the Preliminary/Final Land Development and Subdivision Plan.

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.



/"Noi% Pocono Township Planning Commission

| Brookdale Spa — 2436 Back Mountain Drive

Preliminary/Final Land Development Plan Review No. 1

If you should have any questions regarding the above, please call me.

Sincerely,

Jon S\{resslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/arm

cc: Jerrod Belvin — Pocono Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
Brookdale Enterprises, LLC — Applicant
Nate Oiler, P.E. — RKR Hess, a division of UTRS, Inc.
Kristina Heaney — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. — T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO'R0680\Correspondence'\Review Letters\Brookdale Spa Prelim.Final LD Plan Review No. 1.docx

October 9, 2024
Page 20 of 20



Phone: 570-517-3100
Fax: 570-517-3858
mepe@monroecountypa.gov
www.monroecountypa. gov

701 Main Street, Suite 403
Stroudsburg, PA 18360

MONROE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

September 5, 2024

Jerrod Belvin, Manager

Pocono Township Municipal Building
112 Township Drive

PO Box 197

Tannersville, PA 18372

Re:  Monopine Tower
Land Development Plan
Pocono Township
MCPC Review #149-24

Dear Mr. Belvin:

The above cited plan was reviewed by Eric Koopman, Lead Senior Planner, and Nathan Oiler, P.E., of RKR
Hess, a division of UTRS, Inc., on behalf of the Monroe County Planning Commission. You will find their
comments enclosed.

All comments are preliminary and will be acted upon by the Planning Commission at its regular meeting on
October 8, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the Monroe County Planning Commission. This action is in keeping with the
Planning Commission’s review policy and allows the municipalities and other interested parties to respond to
the review comments before the Planning Commission’s public meeting.

If these comments are not amended and are found to be acceptable by the Board at the next meeting, they
should be considered to be approved as enclosed.

[f you have any questions or if we can be of further service to you, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely yours,

sl b

Christine Meinhart-Fritz
Director

CMF/ebk

cc: Cassidy Robinson PE



Phone: 570-517-3100
Fax: 570-517-3858
mepc@monroecountypa.gov
WWW. IMONIoecountypa.gov

701 Main Street, Suite 405
Stroudsburg, PA 18360

TO: Christine Meinhart-Fritz, Director
FROM: Eric Koopman, Lead Senior Planner
DATE: September 5, 2024

SUBJECT:  Monopine Tower
Land Development Plan

Pocono Township
MCPC Review #149-24

This 51.50 acre site is located on the westerly side of Sky View Drive, approximately 700 feet south
of its intersection with Crescent Lake Road. The plan proposes to construct a 150’ cellular tower and
pad site, gravel parking area, access drive, stormwater controls, and various other site improvements.
The site is currently developed and contains a single-family residential dwelling and several
accessory structures. No additional water supply or sewage disposal systems are proposed for the
cellular tower and the site is located in a Low Density Residential (R-1) zoning district in which the
proposed use is permitted as a special exception.

The above mentioned land development plan has been reviewed on the basis of generally accepted
planning principles and environmental concerns. The following comments are offered:

1. The proposed project requires special exception approval. The plan states that ‘conditional
use’ approval had been granted on December 8, 2023, however no supporting documentation
regarding conditional or special exception use approval was included with the submitted
materials. The Township should confirm the approval status for this special exception land
use.

2. The applicant is requesting numerous waivers from the Township Subdivision and Land
Development Ordinance (SALDO). Given the number and scope of such requested waivers,
it is recommended that the feasibility of site development and the necessity of such requests
be carefully considered before granting any approvals.

3. Cellular towers are subject to numerous additional standards as per §470-52 of the Township
Zoning Ordinance. This includes providing various documentation and standards concerning
colocation, design, setbacks, and other regulations. No narrative or supporting
documentation concerning this section of the ordinance was provided, and the Township
should ensure that all additional standards are met by the project.

4. The Tax ID indicated on the MCPC Review Checklist is incorrect. The correct Tax ID is
12.16.1.24.



Page Two

Monopine Tower

Land Development Plan
Pocono Township
MCPC Review #149-24

10.

11.

12.

14.

15.

16.

This site contains wetland and floodplain areas. While a 50° wetland buffer is delineated for
some of these areas, it is not delineated for all wetlands on the site, including some in close
proximity of the proposed tower pad site. The Township should ensure that any construction
activities are consistent with stormwater ordinance provisions.

The area of disturbance is to be just under one acre. The Township should confirm with the
Monroe County Conservation District that a NPDES permit will not be required.

No open space is to be provided, nor does the applicant propose a fee-in-lieu of recreation
and open space areas. A waiver has been requested from the requirements of §390-58
“Common open space, recreation fees, and fees in lieu”. The Township should carefully
consider this request before granting any approvals.

No lighting or landscaping is proposed for this project. Waivers have been requested
concerning landscaping. The Township should carefully consider such a request.

The MCPC Checklist indicates that the cell tower is to be 150 in height, while the plan
details the tower as being 155 in total. Actual tower height and consistency with maximum
height permitted should be confirmed.

An eight foot tall perimeter chain-link fence is being proposed. It should be noted that the top
of the fencing is to feature barbed wire, and the Township should determine if this is
acceptable.

The tower appears to utilize camouflage to resemble a tree at the upper portions of the
structure. The Township should carefully review details of this camouflage to ensure the
design is aesthetically attractive and visually consistent with the surrounding area.

It should be noted that additional water supply and sewage disposal systems are not being
proposed for this project.

. It is recommended that the Township collaborate with the Fire Department in order to review

the development along with the fire safety measures being proposed.

It should be noted that the Pennsylvania Natural Diversity Inventory (PNDI) review was not
submitted by the owner/developer. Potential impacts are unknown.

The proposed project does not affect any areas of importance identified in the Monroe
County Natural Areas Inventory, 1991 and the Updated Inventory, 1999.

The proposed project does not affect any of the historic areas identified in the Monroe
County Historic Preservation Plan, 1980.



Page Three

Monopine Tower

Land Development Plan
Pocono Township
MCPC Review #149-24

17. According to the Hamilton, Stroud, and Pocono Township, and Stroudsburg Borough
Regional Comprehensive Plan Update, 2022, the plan is consistent in terms of addressing the
need for improved cellular/broadband coverage.

18. The proposed project is generally consistent with the Monroe County Comprehensive Plan,
December 2014, with respect to enhancing infrastructure within the County.

19. The recommendations made by Nathan Oiler of RKR Hess, A Division of UTRS, Inc. in his
review, dated August 28, 2024, are concurred with.

It is recommended that approval of this plan be conditioned upon the above listed comments being
satisfactorily addressed, the plan achieving compliance with applicable Township ordinances, and
the Township Engineer’s review.

This review is subject to the approval of the Monroe County Planning Commission at its next
regularly scheduled meeting.



RCRHESS

A DIVISION OF \‘;‘l UTR5~

August 28, 2024
Project No. 10230.246

Monroe County Planning Commission
Monroe County Administrative Center
701 Main Street, Suite 405
Stroudsburg, PA 18360

ATTENTION:  MS. CHRISTINE MEINHART-FRITZ, DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY LAND DEVELOPMENT PLANS — MONOPINE TOWER
PROPERTY OWNER: DONALD & NORMA BEATY
APPLICANT: SBA TOWERS X, LLC.
POCONO TOWNSHIP

Dear Ms. Meinhart-Fritz:

The project site is located on a 51.7 acre site at 1124 Sky View Drive, Scotrun, PA. The site currently contains an
existing residence, a pavilion, an outhouse and a existing shed, all proposed to remain. An existing gravel drive
currently provides access from Sky View Drive. The project proposes installing a new 150 foot monopine
cellphone tower with a pad foot print of 7,056 S.F. Site improvements include one parking space and
improvements to the existing gravel drive.

We have reviewed a twenty-eight (28) page set of Preliminary Land Development Plans prepared by LaBella
Assaociates located in Dunmore, PA.

This submittal was reviewed in accordance with generally accepted engineering and planning practices and the
guidelines established by the Monroe County Planning Commission. We offer the following comments based on the
information submitted:

ZONING AND COMPATIBILITY WITH SURROUNDING USES

1. The project is in the R-1, Residential Zoning District. A communication tower is permitted as a special
exception in this zoning district. Approval from the Zoning Hearing Board for special exception will be
required.

2. The Pocono Township Ordinance requires a substantial amount of supplemental information for
Communication Tower Application. This information includes items such as a letter of commitment to
shared use of the tower, FAA notices, analysis confirming the proposed antenna could not be collocated on
an existing tower agreements for governmental use of the tower and a written agreement to remove the
tower if not in use and financial security for the cost of removal. None of the required information was
provided with the submission to the Planning Commission.

3. The proposed monopine tower is located in the middle of the site, providing the 150 foot setback required.
The properties to the north of the proposed monopine tower are located in the R-1 zoning district. The
property to the northeast is currently undeveloped. The property to the northwest has an existing building
located over 1000 feet from the tower site. The property is adjoined by Sky View Drive to the east. The

112 North Courtland Street e East Stroudsburg, PA 18301 e P: 570.421.1550 ¢ F: 570.421.6720
www.rkrhess.com



Monopine Tower Pocono Twp LD MCPC Review
August 28, 2024

Page 2 of 3 RG(RHESS

A DIVISION OF \‘;‘l UTRS

property to the west is located in the R-1 zoning district and is currently undeveloped. The property to the
south is located in the CD zoning district and is currently undeveloped.

4. An analysis of compliance with zoning requirements such as setbacks, parking has been provided in the

application indicating the proposed development complies with zoning requirements for communication
tower as a special exception use.

LOT ACCESS, LAYOUT AND PARKING

5. Vehicular access to the project is proposed to be provided by one full access driveway, from Sky View

Drive, a private road. The existing gravel drive is proposed to be extended 235 feet to reach the proposed
tower.

6. The plans provide a parking analysis that indicates that there will be one parking space provided.
7. A lighting plan has not been provided.

WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER DISPOSAL
8. According to the provided plans, no water or sanitary sewer service are proposed.

9. The local fire company should review truck access to the site and fire protection provisions.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

10.  The limit of earth disturbance is proposed to be 0.98 acres. It should be confirmed by the MCCD that an
NDPES permit will not be required for the project.

11.  Stormwater is proposed to be conveyed through inlets and 18” HDPE piping to a proposed stormwater
detention/infiltration basin located to the east. The maintenance responsibility for the storm water facilities
is indicated on the plans to be the responsibility of SBA Towers.

12. A stormwater management report has been provided. Test pit locations are shown on the plans and
infiltration reports were provided for the design of the detention/infiltration basin. Runoff from the site will
discharge into Dry Sawmill Run, a tributary to Pocono Creek, a High Quality-Cold Water Fishery, Migratory
Fished (HQ-CWF, MF) located to the north.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS AND OTHER COMMENTS

13.  The site does not lie within the FEMA 1% chance floodplain limits as depicted on the latest (FIRM) Flood
Insurance Rate Map.

14.  There are wetlands shown on the project site. These wetlands are shown on the plans to the east and south
of the proposed monopine tower and are outside of the limit of earth disturbance. Wetland buffers are
provided for some wetlands but not all wetlands, including wetlands near the site. Wetland buffers are
required for all wetlands.



Monopine Tower Pocono Twp LD MCPC Review
August 28, 2024

Page 3 of 3 RG(RHESS

A DIVISION OF \‘;‘l UTRS

15. The MCPC checklist indicates that there are no steep slopes on the project site.

16.  The MCPC checklist indicates that are no hydric soils on the project site, however wetland areas have been
delineated.

17. A landscape plan was not provided in the submission. The Township should verify that a landscape plan is
not required.

18. A Pennsylvania Natural Diversity Index (PNDI) search was not provided. The MCPC checklist indicated that
a PNDI search results indicated that there are no “known impacts” in the project area.

19.  The applicant has provided a list of Zoning Variances and waivers, these waivers include land
development plans, parking, residential driveways, and landscape. These should be reviewed by the

Township to confirm that these waivers meet the intent of the ordinance based on the specific conditions
on this site.

20. It appears the top of the tower is designed to resemble a tree. The plans should clarify this detail.

21, Allcertifications must be executed on the plans prior to final approval.

22. Compliance with Township Building Codes and ADA requirements should be confirmed.

We recommend these comments be accepted and forwarded to the Township for consideration prior to action on
the plan applications.

Respectfully submitted,

R.K.R. Hess, A Division of UTRS, INC.

/ /
il %
v hl

/
/ { { Y
P | \ -
/[ -

Nathan S. Qiler, P.E.
Director of Land Development Engineering Services

P:\PA\Monroe Co\_Authorities\MCPC\MCPC Reviews 2024\10230.246 Monopine Tower LDP Rev\Project Info\Review Ltr\Monopine Twr Pocono Twp LDP-
MCPC Review.docx



P One Oxford Centre
OS & 301 Grant Street, Suite 3010
Pittsburgh, PA 15219
SC heu_ 412-227-8887 Main
PC. 412-227-9065 Main Fax
ATTORNEYS AT LAW www.postschell.com

Philip J. Sbrolla

psbrolla@postschell.com
412-506-6377 Direct
412-227-9065 Direct Fax
Matter No.: 202671

October 7, 2024

(via email)

Krisann MacDougall
Pocono Township

112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

Re:  Monopine Tower Project
Pocono Township, Monroe County
SBA Towers X, LLC.

Dear Ms. MacDougall:

I am writing to formally grant an additional time extension for the review period of the project
located at 1124 Skyview Drive in Pocono Township. We believe that an extension of the review
period would allow for a more comprehensive assessment of the project and a more informed
decision-making process. Therefore, we kindly request an extension of an additional sixty (60)
days to complete and address the Pocono Township comment letters dated May 7, 2024 and August
15, 2024 as well as the waiver requests submitted in August 26, 2024.

We assure you that we are committed to providing all necessary information and cooperating fully
with the Township throughout this process. We believe that the extension will ultimately
contribute to a more thorough and satisfactory review of the project.

Additionally, we want to inform Pocono Township that AiroSmith Development, Inc. and LaBella
Associates are no longer the design professionals of record for this prject. Moving forward B&T
Group and DaSERV LLC will be serving as the design professionals seeing this project through
to completion. The contact information for both entities is noted below:

B&T Group

James McNicol
Jjmcnicol@btfrp.com
6119 Bermuda Dr.
Flemming Island 32003
(904) 654-0653

ALLENTOWN HARRISBURG LANCASTER MT.LAUREL PHILADELPHIA PITTSBURGH WASHINGTON, D.C. WILMINGTON
A PENNSYLVANIA PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

28065445v1



(via email)
October 7, 2024
Page 2

DaSERV LLC
Kevin O’Keefe

kokeefe@daservllc.com
(215) 651-6193

Should you have any questions regarding the above, or if you require any additional information,
please feel free to contact our office at (412) 506-6377 or at psbrolla@postschell.com

Very truly yours,

Philip J. Sb;olla

PJS/jm

Cc: Juliana Mahlmeister
James McNicol

Kevin O’Keefe

Lisa Pereira, Esq.

Amy Montgomery
Jerrod Belvin

28065445v1



N
W

YOUR GOALS. OUR MISSION.

August 15, 2024

Pocono Township Planning Commission
112 Township Drive
Tannersville, PA 18372

SUBJECT: 1124 SKY VIEW DRIVE MONOPINE TOWER
PRELMINARY LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW NO. 2
POCONO TOWNSHIP, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
POCONO TOWNSHIP LDP NO. 1424, T&M PROJECT NO. POCO-R0660

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Pursuant to the Township’s request, we have performed our second review of the Preliminary Land
Development Plan Application for the 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower. The submitted information
consists of the following items.

e Transmittal letter prepared by LaBella Associates, PC dated July 30, 2024.

Response letter prepared by LaBella Associates, PC dated July 30, 2024.

Sixteen (16) Requests for Modification (Waiver Requests).

Option and Land Lease Agreement

Special Warranty Deed for Parcel 12/112989, DB2099 PG9436.

e Recorded Minor Subdivision Plan for Anna Marie Williams, Trustee prepared by RKR Hess
Associates, dated November 2, 1993, last revised December 10, 1993.

o Infiltration Testing Report for TP-1 dated June 24, 2024.

e Boundary Closure Report dated June 2, 2023.

o Legal Descriptions for “Proposed 30° Wide Non-Exclusive Access & Utility Easement (As
Surveyed)”, “Proposed (100°x100°) Exclusive SBA Lease Area (As Surveyed)”, and “Proposed
Stormwater Easement™.

e Preliminary Wetland Delineation Report prepared by Terracon Consultants, Inc., dated March 26,
2024, last revised July 24, 2024.

e Final Survey with Lease, Easements, and Tree Information prepared by Northeast Tower Surveying,
Inc. dated April 2, 2023, last revised July 28, 2024.

e Erosion & Sediment Pollution Control and Stormwater Management Narrative prepared by LaBella
Associates, PC dated March 2024, revised July 2024.

e Preliminary Land Development Plan (28 sheets) prepared by LaBella Associates, PC last revised July
12,2024.

T&M Associates, 74 W Broad Street, Suite 300, Bethlehem, PA 18018 I 6106252999 [l 610.625.2969 [ tandmassociates.com



A Pocono Township Planning Commission
'} 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 2 of 19

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Applicant, SBA Towers X, LLC, is proposing to construct a 150-foot monopine communications
tower on property owned by Donald and Norma Beaty at 1124 Sky View Drive in Scotrun. The subject
property consists of approximately 51.77 acres located in the R-1, Low Density Residential Zoning
District.

The property currently is wooded with an existing house, pavilion, outhouse, and a few small storage
sheds, all of which are shown to remain. The proposed development consists of the construction of a new
12-foot-wide gravel access drive, a detention/infiltration basin, and a fenced 80°x80" compound area
consisting of the monopole and current and future lease areas.

Communication Towers are permitted by Special Exception within the R-1 Zoning District. A Special
Exception was granted by the Zoning Hearing Board in a decision dated December 8, 2023.

The project site is located within the B-1 Stormwater Management District of the Brodhead-McMichaels
Watershed. The receiving water is the Dry Sawmill Run, a tributary to the Pocono Creek, which has a
Chapter 93 classification of High-Quality, Cold-Water Fishery with Migratory Fishes (HQ, CWF/MF).

Based upon our review of the above information and our previous review letter dated May 7, 2024, we
offer the following comments and/or recommendations related to the proposed development.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMMENTS

1. Per Section 470-8, Antenna Height, “The vertical distance measured from the base of the antenna
support structure at grade to the highest point of the structure, including any antennas attached
thereto or forming a part thereof. If the support structure is on a sloped grade, then the average
between the highest and lowest grades shall be used in calculating the antenna height.” The plans
show the monopine tower to be 150 feet in height with a 5-foot lightning rod on top of the tower.
It is noted that this is consistent with what was represented on the revised Special Exception
application information submitted to the Township on October 3, 2023. (Previous Comment 1)
the plans now depict a different monopine tower than what was represented previously. The
plans still show an overall height of 155 feet, but with no lightning rod. It is unclear as to what
is located within the additional 5 feet above the 150-foot mounting height of the antennas. This
must be clarified to determine if it is still in compliance with the height limitations.

o

Previous Comment 2 satisfied.

(O8]

Per Section 470-34.B. “Handicapped parking. Handicapped accessible parking shall be provided
in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, as it may be amended from time to time.”
The applicant shall address the need for parking for the site. (Previous Comment 3) The Act
requires ADA accessible parking for a parking facility containing even one (1) parking space
unless certain provisions are met. It is unclear if the applicant is meeting these provisions or is
simply not providing an ADA space. This shall be clarified and documented on the plans.



™/ /4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15,2024

Page 3 of 19

Per Section 470-34.C.(1), “All parking areas and all access drives for commercial or industrial
uses shall have an all-weather surface constructed as specified in Chapter 390, Subdivision and
Land Development.” Refer to Comments 34 and 54 below. (Previous Comment 4) A waiver
request has been submitted for the all-weather surface requirement; however, this is a Zoning
requirement which would require a variance for relief.

SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

Note that the Applicant is requesting waivers from SALDO requirements as discussed in Comments

6,7,8,11, 18, 33, 34, 36, 37, 38, 48, 51, 52, 54, and 56.

3.

In accordance with Section 390-29.E.(3), “The survey shall not have an error of closure greater
than one in 10,000 feet and shall include a boundary closure report.” A4 boundary closure report
shall be submitted. (Previous Comment 5) The design engineer’s response letter states, “A
Boundary Closure Report was included with the original submission. It has been included in
this submission as well.” The submitted closure report does not appear to match any lot or
easement areas depicted on the plans. A boundary closure report for the subject property must
still be submitted.

In accordance with Sections 390-29.D. and 390-29.G., “Existing resources and site analysis. For
all land developments, an existing resources and site analysis shall be prepared to provide the
developer and the municipality with a comprehensive analysis of existing conditions, both on the
proposed development site and within 500 feet of the site. Conditions beyond the parcel boundaries
may be described on the basis of existing published data available from governmental agencies,
and from aerial photographs. The Planning Commission shall review the plan to assess its
accuracy, conformance with municipal ordinances, and likely impact upon the natural and cultural
resources on the property. The information required in Subsections (1) through (12) shall be
included. The Existing Resources and Site Analysis plan shall be prepared and submitted in
accordance with the requirements of this Section.” An existing resources and site analysis has not
been provided. The Title Sheet C-00 lists this as being a requested waiver. Any waiver request
shall include “provisions for the minimum modification necessary as an alternate to the
requirements” and “justification for the modification including the full grounds and facts of
unreasonableness or hardship” in accordance with Section 390-78. (Previous Comment 6) A
waiver has been requested for this analysis.

In accordance with Sections 390-29.D. and 390-29.H., a resource impact and conservation analysis
is required. A resource impact and conservation analysis has not been provided. The Title Sheet
C-00 lists this as being a requested waiver. Any waiver request shall include “provisions for the
minimum modification necessary as an alternate to the requirements™ and “justification for the
modification including the full grounds and facts of unreasonableness or hardship " in accordance
with Section 390-78. (Previous Comment 7) A waiver has been requested for this analysis.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(4), the improvements plan shall include “information
indicating available and safe sight stopping distances for all driveways, access drives, roads, etc.,
which must be in compliance with the most current version Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation specifications.” The required information shall be shown on the plans for the



¥

10.

11.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 4 of 19

access drive. (Previous Comment 8) A waiver from showing this information has been
requested; however, the information has been provided on the plan.

Per Section 390-29.1.(8), the improvements plan shall include “location of all percolation tests as
may be required under this chapter, including all failed test sites or pits as well as those approved.
All approved sites shall be clearly distinguished from unapproved sites.” The testing locations
must be shown on the plans. (Previous Comment 9) The location of the testing performed for
the infiltration basin must be shown on the plans.

Per Section 390-29.1.(13.)(a.), the improvements plan shall include “locations of existing and
proposed utility easements.” A/l existing and proposed utility easements shall be shown on the
plans. If none exist or are proposed, that shall be noted. (Previous Comment 10) The response
letter states, “Proposed utility easements are shown on the Site Layout Plan, C-05"; however,
while they are labeled, they are not clearly shown and are difficult to differentiate from the other
linework on the plan. The proposed easements shall be clarified.

Per Section 390-29.1.(14.), the improvements plan shall include “location of proposed shade trees,
plus locations of existing vegetation to be retained.” Also refer to Comment 46 below. (Previous
Comment 11) A waiver is being requested from this requirement.

Previous Comment 12 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-29.1.(32)(m), the plan shall contain “A listing of any
subdivision/land development waivers or modifications, zoning variances, special exceptions
and/or conditional uses that have been granted, including the date of the order of the Pocono
Township Zoning Hearing Board or Board of Commissioners granting the same.” The Special
Exception must be added to the list on the Cover Sheet. (Previous Comment 13) The response
letter states, “The conditional use approval from the Township has been listed on the title sheet
along with the date of approval.” The approval was for a Special Exception, not a Conditional
Use. The note shall be revised accordingly. Additionally, the waiver list includes Section
390.29.D.3; however, a waiver request has not been submitted for this specific section.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(1)(c), the plans shall include WB-50 turning movement
diagrams and/or diagrams for the largest anticipated vehicle. The land development plans must
address this requirement. (Previous Comment 14) The ordinance section specifically requires
“Truck turning movement diagrams for at least a WB-50 truck.” The response letter states that
a pickup truck turning movement has been added to the plans. The plan shall be revised to show
the turning movement diagram for at least a WB-50 truck as required.

Previous Comment 15 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(9), supporting documents to be submitted include “A list of
any public utility, environmental or other permits required and if none are required, a statement to
that effect. The Township may require a professional engineer's certification of such list.” In
addition, and in accordance with Section 390-29.J.(19), “All required state or federal
environmental and other permits.” The Design Engineer shall submit the required list of required
permits/approvals to the Township. The following outside agency approvals are required:



17.

18.

19.

[\
!\)

A Pocono Township Planning Commission
ﬁ 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15,2024
Page 5 of 19

a. Monroe County Planning Commission
b. Monroe County Conservation District — E&S Plan
c. Pocono Township Fire Department

(Previous Comment 16) The response letter acknowledges the comment.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(10), the Applicant shall provide “Confirmation that the soil
erosion and sedimentation control plan has been accepted for review by the Monroe County
Conservation District. (See also §390-51.)" Submissions to, correspondence with, and permit from
the Monroe County Conservation District shall be provided. (Previous Comment 17) The
response letter acknowledges the comment.

Per Section 390-29.J.(13), the Applicant shall provide “A landscaping plan documenting
compliance with §390-55." Also refer to Comment 46 below. (Previous Comment 18) A waiver
has been requested to the requirement to provide a landscaping plan.

Previous Comment 19 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-29.J.(18), the Applicant shall provide “Steep slope information as
required to document compliance with this chapter.” Also refer to Comment 24 below. (Previous
Comment 20) The response letter states, “Steep slope information has been updated to show
steep slopes throughout the entire subject property.” However, there has been no update to the
steep slope information on the plans that were submitted for review. The steep slopes legends
on Sheets C-02 and C-03 also do not indicate what slopes are being depicted.

In accordance with Section 390-32.B and Section 390-41, no final plan shall be signed by the
Board of Commissioners for recording in the office of the Monroe County Recorder of Deeds
until: :
All improvements required by this chapter are installed to the specifications contained in
Article VI of this chapter and other Township requirements and such improvements are
certified by the applicant's engineer; or

Proposed developer's agreements and performance guarantee in accord with §390-35 and the
Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968 as amended, have been accepted
by the Board of Commissioners.

The Applicant shall submit a construction cost estimate for the proposed site improvements in
order to determine the required escrow amount for the developer's agreement. A developer's
agreement and performance guarantee will be required prior to plan recordation. (Previous
Comment 21) The response letter acknowledges the comment,

Previous Comment 22 satisfied.
In accordance with Section 390-38.C.(3), “Any improvements which will remain private. In the

case where roads, drainage facilities, a central sewage treatment system or central water supply,
or any other improvements are to remain private, the developer shall provide for the establishment



AN\

lﬁ 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Pocono Township Planning Commission

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15,2024
Page 6 of 19

of an escrow fund in accord with §390-35A to guarantee the operation and maintenance of the
improvements. Said fund shall be established on a permanent basis with administrative provisions
approved by the Board of Commissioners. The amount of said fund shall be 15% of the
construction cost of the system as verified by the Township Engineer. The maintenance and
operation of the improvements and the administration of any required maintenance fund account
shall be clearly established as the joint responsibility of the owner(s) of each structure or dwelling
unit served by such system. Such responsibility and the mechanism to accomplish same shall be
established by deed covenants and restrictions which shall be subject to the approval of the Board
of Commissioners.” An operation and maintenance agreement and guarantee shall be required
for the stormwater management facilities. (Previous Comment 23) The response letter
acknowledges the comment.

In accordance with Section 390-43.A.(6)(e), “Steep slopes. The purpose of steep slope regulations
is to conserve and protect those areas having steep slopes from inappropriate development and
excessive grading; to prevent potential dangers caused by erosion, stream siltation, and soil failure;
and to promote uses in steep slope areas that are compatible with the preservation of existing
natural features, including vegetative cover by restricting grading of steep slope areas.” Steep
slopes are defined as being 20% or greater and shall be identified on the plan accordingly.
Additionally, the restrictions and requirements of this section shall be addressed. (Previous
Comment 24) The response letter states, “Steep slope information has been updated to show
steep slopes throughout the entire subject property as well as percentages of steep slope areas
for pre and post construction.” As previously noted, there has been no update to the steep slope
information on the plans that were submitted for review. Additionally, we are unable to locate
the referenced percentages. The plans shall be revised to address the requirements of this
Section including delineation, disturbance limitations, and steep slope easements.

In accordance with Section 390-46.A., “Protection of vegetation from mechanical injury. Where
earthwork, grading, or construction activities will take place in or adjacent to woodlands, old fields

- or other significant vegetation or site features, the Township may require that the limit of

disturbance be delineated, and vegetation protected through installation of temporary fencing or
other approved measures. Such fencing shall be installed prior to commencing of, and shall be
maintained throughout, the period of construction activity.” The Existing Features & Demo Plans
(Sheets C-04 and ES-01) shall be revised to show tree protection fence along the limit of
disturbance lines and/or along the dripline of the trees to be preserved. Wooden stakes with survey
ribbon, as currently depicted, is not an acceptable measure. (Previous Comment 25) The
response letter states, “The plans have been revised to reflect a temporary protective fence
(orange construction fencing) around the entire Limit of Disturbance.” However, the fence
must be located to encompass the entire limit of clearing/LOD. There are wooded areas
designated to be cleared that have not been included in the LOD. The plans shall be revised to
place the fence along the actual limit of clearing/LOD.

Previous Comment 26 satisfied.

Previous Comment 27 satisfied.



(V5]
(U8

A Pocono Township Planning Commission
'\. 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 7 of 19

Per Section 390-48.F., “Existing access. Existing private roads or private rights-of-way proposed
to provide access to a subdivision and/or land development shall meet all the requirements of this
§390-48 or shall otherwise be improved to such standards.” Sky View Drive is an existing private
road but is not a “private access road” since it serves more than three lots. Therefore, additional
information must be provided to demonstrate that it meets the requirements of §390-48 for a
“Local Road”. (Previous Comment 28) The response letter states, “The road that is being used
to access the site was created as a result of a settlement following litigation. A copy of that Order
was previously identified and provided to the Township. It is the applicant’s position that the
road is in compliance with that settlement. It is unclear the authority, if any, that Pocono
Township would have to mandate any modifications to said Order of Court regarding the subject
road.”

It appears the Applicant is refencing the Court Order which is found in Deed Book Volume
1647 Page 977. That Order states in paragraph 4., “The road across the Ruehlman property
shall be designed and located in accordance with the professional judgement of RKR Hess
Associates. Said design and location must meet the requirements of Pocono Township for
acceptance as a township road. No construction shall commence on the road until the township
has approved same.” Nothing in this Order prohibits the road from being upgraded in the future
as may be required because of a new subdivision or land development taking access from it.
The current application requires access from a road (whether it be public or private) meeting
Pocono Township “Local Road” specifications. Information must be provided by the Applicant
to demonstrate that Sky View Drive from Crescent Lake Road to the property line of Parcel ID
12.16.1.24. meets “Local Road” design and construction specifications.

Per Section 390-48.S., “Clear sight triangles. At all road intersections and all land development
driveways/accesses, a triangular area shall be graded and/or other sight obstructions removed in
such a manner as not to obscure vision between a height of two to 10 feet above the center-line
grades of the intersecting roads.” Clear sight triangles shall be shown on the plan at the access
drive and restrictions noted. (Previous Comment 29) Clear sight triangles have been labeled on
the plans, but the actual triangle is not shown on Sheet C-08. The clear sight triangles shall be
shown.

Previous Comment 30 satisfied.
Previous Comment 31 satisfied.
Previous Comment 32 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 390-48.T.(12)(d), “For driveways exceeding 250 feet in length and
where the grade of a driveway, at any point, exceeds 8%, a minimum of one off-road parking space
shall be required. The off-road parking space shall be located before the grade of the driveway, at
any point, exceeds 8% and shall be outside the driveway access aisle and outside the public right-
of-way. Such off-road parking spaces shall be a minimum of nine feet by 18 feet.”™ The required
off-road parking space shall be provided. (Previous Comment 33) A waiver has been requested
Sor the requirement of off-road parking spaces.



5

35.

37,

38.

43.

44.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15,2024

Page 8 of 19

Per Section 390-48.T.(12)(g), “The driveway shall be constructed with a base of stone compacted
to six inches and a surface of a minimum of one-and-one-half-inch superpave bituminous wearing
course or approved equal.” The driveway shall be paved in accordance with the ordinance
requirements. (Previous Comment 34) A waiver has been requested from the requirement to
pave the driveway.

Previous Comment 35 satisfied.

[n accordance with Section 390-49.A.(4), “Monuments shall be set at all outbound locations where
permanent monuments did not exist at the time of the perimeter survey unless site conditions
preclude the installation, and the missing monument shall be noted on the final plan. Existing
monuments shall not be removed.” The plans shall be revised to provide the required monuments
at each change of direction along the outbound of the property. It appears there are three (3)
outbound corners which require the monuments to be set. (Previous Comment 36) A waiver has
been requested from the requirement to set monuments on the outbound of the property.

Per Section 390-50.D.(5), “Embankment slope. The maximum slope of the earthen detention basin
embankments shall be four horizontal to one vertical.” The plan proposes the embankments to be
graded at 3 tol and shall be revised accordingly. (Previous Comment 37) A waiver has been

requested to permit 3:1 slopes instead of 4:1 on the basin embankments.

Per Section 390-50.D.(8), “In order to ensure proper drainage on the basin bottom, a minimum
grade of 2% shall be maintained for areas of sheet flow.” The basin bottom appears to be flat and
is labeled as a detention/infiltration basin. We would support a waiver to this requirement since
a flat bottom is required for infiltration. The applicant will need to request the waiver. (Previous
Comment 38) A waiver has been requested for the flat basin bottom.

Previous Comment 39 satisfied.
Previous Comment 40 satisfied.
Previous Comment 41 satisfied.

Per Section 390-50.D.(12), Anti-seep collars are required. The plans shall be revised to show anti-
seep collars meeting the requirements of this section. (Previous Comment 42) While the plans
have been revised to provide an anti-seep collar, the ordinance requires a minimum of two anti-
seep collars be installed on each outlet pipe. The plans shall be revised accordingly.

Per Section 390-50.D.(13)(a), “All outlet pipes through the basin berm shall be reinforced concrete
pipe with watertight joints.” (New Comment) The plans shall be revised to specify the required

pipe type.

Per Section 390-50.D.(14)(a), “Perforated risers. A perforated riser shall be provided at each outlet
of all detention basins during construction for sediment control.” A riser meeting the requirements
of this section must be added to the plans. (Previous Comment 43) The response letter states, “A
detail of the emergency OCS with perforation is included with the plans.” We are unable to
locate the required perforated riser on the revised plans.



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

'§. 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024
Page 9 of 19

Per Section 390-D.(15), “Embankment placement. All detention/retention basin embankments
shall be placed in a maximum of eight-inch lifts compacted to a minimum of 95% of modified
proctor density, as established by ASTM D-1557. Prior to proceeding to the next lift, the
compaction shall be checked by the Township Engineer or a certified soils engineer. Compaction
tests shall be run on the leading and trailing edge of the berm along with the top of berm.” (Vew
Comment) A note to this effect shall be added to the plans.

Per Section 390-50.D.(17), “A cutoff trench (keyway) of impervious material shall be provided
under all embankments that require fill material. The cutoff trench shall be a minimum of eight
feet wide, two feet deep and have side slopes of one-to-one.” A keyway shall be shown where fill
is required for the basin berm. A detail for the keyway shall also be provided. (Previous Comment
44) The “Key Trench Detail” on Sheet C-09 must be revised to identify the dimensions of the
key trench.

In accordance with Sections 390-51.A. and B., “All soil erosion and sedimentation control plans
shall meet the specifications of the Monroe County Conservation District and PA DEP, and shall
comply with Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 25, Chapter 102, Department of
Environmental Protection regulations for soil erosion and sedimentation control”, and,
“Preliminary plan approval shall be conditioned on all required approvals and permits from the
Monroe County Conservation District and/or PA DEP.” A copy of the letter of determination of
erosion and sediment control adequacy shall be provided to the Township, as well as any
correspondence between the Applicant and Monroe County Conservation District. (Previous
Comment 45) The response letter acknowledges the comment.

Per Section 390-55., “A landscape plan meeting the requirements of this section shall be prepared
for all land developments and major subdivisions; and no land development or major subdivision
shall be finally approved until all landscaping has been installed or guaranteed in accord with this
chapter.” A landscape plan must be submitted for review. A landscape plan has not been
submitted. The Title Sheet C-00 lists this as being a requested waiver. Any waiver request shall
include “provisions for the minimum modification necessary as an alternate to the requirements”
and “justification for the modification including the full grounds and facts of unreasonableness or
hardship” in accordance with Section 390-78. (Previous Comment 46) A waiver has been
requested from the requirements of providing a landscape plan.

Pursuant to Section 390-55.B.(2), “Protection of existing vegetation. Existing vegetation
designated "TO REMAIN" in accord with Subsection B(1)(c), above, shall be identified in the
field prior to any clearing and shall be physically protected throughout the construction process.
A temporary physical barrier, such as a snow fence, shall be erected a minimum of one foot outside
the dripline on all sides of individual trees, tree masses, or woodlands prior to major clearing or
construction. The barrier shall be placed to prevent disturbance to, or compaction of, soil inside
the barrier and shall remain until construction is complete. The barrier shall be shown on the
landscape plan.” Tree protection fencing shall be shown along the “proposed” treeline. A detail
of the fencing shall also be added to the plans. (Previous Comment 47) The response letter states,
“The plans have been revised to reflect a temporary protective fence (orange construction
fencing) around the entire Limit of Disturbance.” However, the fence must be located to
encompass the entire limit of clearing/LOD. There are wooded areas designated to be cleared



50.

51.

54.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

B 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024
Page 10 of 19

that have not been included in the LOD. The plans shall be revised to place the fence along the
actual limit of clearing/LOD.

Per Section 390-55.B.(6), “Clear sight triangles. All landscaping shall comply with the sight
distance requirements of this chapter, including intersections of public streets and access drives of
commercial, industrial, and multifamily developments.” The clear sight triangles shall be shown
on the landscaping plan. (Previous Comment 48) Clear sight triangles have been labeled on the
plans, but the actual triangle is not shown on Sheet C-08. The clear sight triangles shall be
shown.

Per Section 390-55.D.(1), “Street trees shall be required.” No proposed landscaping has been
shown on the submitted plans. The Title Sheet C-00 lists this as being a requested waiver. Any
waiver request shall include “provisions for the minimum modification necessary as an alternate
to the requirements” and “justification for the modification including the full grounds and facts
of unreasonableness or hardship " in accordance with Section 390-78. (Previous Comment 49) A
waiver has been requested from Section 390-55 for the requirement of providing a landscape
plan.

In accordance with Section 390-55.1.(2)(k), “A detailed cost estimate shall be submitted, showing
the value of all proposed landscaping, including all labor and materials.” The required cost
estimate for the project shall include the proposed landscaping. (Previous Comment 50) A waiver
has been requested from providing a detailed cost estimate.

Previous Comment 51 satisfied.
In accordance with the Section 390-58 Common Open Space, Recreation Areas, and In-Lieu Fees:

a. Section 390-58.B.(1), “This §390-58 shall apply to any subdivision for which a preliminary
plan or a combined preliminary/final plan and any land development for which a plan is
submitted after the effective date of this §390-58.”

b. Section 390-58.C.(1), “The proposal for common open space, installation of recreation
facilities and/or fees shall be offered for review by the Planning Commission and the
Pocono Township Park and Recreation Committee.”

c. Section 390-59.F., “Fees. If the Board of Commissioners and the applicant agree that a
proposed subdivision or land development will pay fees-in-lieu of dedicating open space,
this fee shall be as established by the Township Fee Schedule, which may be updated by
resolution of the Board of Commissioners.™

d. Section 390-58.K., “Timing of nonresidential fees. Fees required by this §390-58 for any
nonresidential subdivision or land development shall be paid prior to the recording of the
final plan of a subdivision or land development, as applicable.”

The plans do not propose any open space to be dedicated to the Township, therefore, the Applicant
shall pay the applicable in-lieu fees, as required by Section 390-58. Should it be determined that
open space is required and a fee in-lieu-of will be provided, that fee will be $§1,372.00 (0.98



55.

56.

-/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 11 of 19

disturbed acres * $1,400.00). (Previous Comment 52) A waiver has been requested from
providing in-lieu fees.

Previous Comment 53 satisfied.

Per Section 390-59.C.(1), “Except for areas that are landscaped and so maintained, all portions of
required parking and loading facilities shall be graded, surfaced with asphalt and drained to the
extent necessary to prevent dust, erosion, or excessive water flow across streets or adjoining
properties.” The proposed turn around and parking area is shown to be gravel on the submitied
plans. The parking shall be paved per the ordinance requirements. (Previous Comment 54) A
waiver has been requested from providing an asphalt surface for the parking area.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE COMMENTS

57.

58.

Per Section 365-8.F., “Areas of existing diffused drainage discharge shall be subject to any
applicable discharge criteria in the general direction of existing discharge, whether proposed to be
concentrated or maintained as diffused drainage areas, except as otherwise provided by this
chapter. If diffused drainage discharge is proposed to be concentrated and discharged onto adjacent
property, the applicant must document that adequate downstream conveyance facilities exist to
safely transport the concentrated discharge, or otherwise prove that no erosion, sedimentation,
flooding or other impacts will result from the concentrated discharge.” The plans propose to
concentrate stormwater runoff through the detention basin and discharge it onto an adjacent
property. We do not think that the applicant has the rights to install a discharge pipe, grade, and
install rip-rap within Sky View Drive as depicted on the plans. Basin discharge should be made
on the applicant’s own property to the west of the proposed driveway and should be diffused via a
level spreader. (Previous Comment 55) The response letter states, “Adjoining parcel being
discharged to is owned by same property owners of project.” The Applicant’s statement is not
true. The Applicant is proposing a concentrated point of discharge via a new pipe, grading, and
installation of rip-rap within Sky View Drive at a point where Sky View Drive is owned by others
and to which the Applicant has yet to demonstrate a right to access. The Applicant must
demonstrate that they have the legal right to make improvements to this private roadway or
otherwise redirect the basin outlet discharge in a different direction. Should the Applicant be
able to demonstrate a right to make improvements on this private drive, we still question why
this is being done. It would be better to route the discharge from the proposed basin via sheet
flow from a level spreader into the existing drainage swale on the owner’s own property.

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(6)(b), Wetland buffer delineation. “A fifty-foot buffer,
measured perpendicular to and horizontally from the edge of the delineated wetland, shall be
maintained for all wetlands, with the exception of the Cranberry Bog, where the buffer shall be 75
feet measured perpendicular to and horizontally from the edge of the Cranberry Bog. In addition,
where the 300 feet of land adjacent to the edge of a delineated wetland has an average upland slope
greater than 5%, the minimum buffer width shall be increased by four feet for each percent of slope
at or above 5%, subject to a maximum cumulative buffer of 100 feet.” (New Comment) The
revised plans now reflect three (3) additional wetland areas that were identified in the wetland
report. The required wetland buffer must be shown on the plans. Additionally, subsections [1]
and [2] regarding the permitted and prohibited activities within the wetland buffer shall be
addressed by the design engineer.



59.

60.

61.

/7

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 12 of 19

In accordance with Section 365-10.1.(8)(a), Stream buffer delineation. “A fifty-foot buffer,
measured perpendicular to and horizontally from the top-of-bank on all sides of any stream, shall
be maintained on all sides of any stream, with the exception of the Pocono Creek, where the buffer
shall be 75 feet, measured perpendicular to and horizontally from the top-of-bank on all sides of
the Pocono Creek. In addition, where the 100 feet of land adjacent to the edge of a stream has an
average upland slope greater than 5%, the minimum buffer width shall be increased by four feet
for each percent of slope at or above 5%, subject to a maximum cumulative buffer of 100 feet.”
(New Comment) The wetland report indicates the presence of a watercourse through wetland
WL2. This watercourse shall be depicted on the plans along with its required buffer.
Additionally, Sections (8)(b) and (8)(c) regarding the permitted and prohibited activities within
the stream buffer shall be addressed by the design engineer.

In accordance with Section 365-11.A.(2), “Infiltration BMPs intended to receive runoff from
developed areas shall be selected based on suitability of soils and site conditions and shall be
constructed on soils that have the following characteristics:

(a) A minimum depth of 24 inches between the bottom of the BMP and the limiting zone.

(b) An infiltration and/or percolation rate sufficient to accept the additional stormwater load
and drain completely as determined by field tests conducted by the applicant's design
professional.

(c) The recharge facility shall be capable of completely infiltrating the recharge volume within
three days.”

The required soil testing and associated calculations must be provided to support the BUP design.
(Previous Comment 56) While a single infiltration test appears to have been performed, the
plans must depict where that test was located.

In accordance with Section 365-13.B, “All calculations consistent with this chapter using the Soil
Cover Complex Method shall use the appropriate design rainfall depths for the various return
period storms according to the region in which they are located as presented in Table B-1 in
Appendix ALl of this chapter. If a hydrologic computer model such as PSRM or HEC-1 is used
for stormwater runoff calculations, then the duration of rainfall shall be 24 hours. The NRCS "S"
curve shown in Figure B-1, Appendix A of this chapter, shall be used for the rainfall distribution.”
The Stormwater Management Report utilizes rainfall values from NOAA Atlas 14, Volume 2,
Version 3, location Scotrun, PA. We would have no objection to the Applicant requesting a waiver
from this Section to utilize the rainfall data from NOAA. (Previous Comment 57) The response
letter acknowledges the comment; however, no waiver has been requested.

Previous Comment 58 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 365-14.D, “*Storm sewers must be able to convey proposed conditions
runoff from a fifty-year design storm without surcharging inlets™. Since the stormwater
management BMP is required to be designed for the 100-year storm, the design engineer shall
also ensure that all stormwater intended to reach the basin does so in the 100-year storm event,
even if not conveyed through the storm pipes. Tailwater calculations shall be provided for the
pipe run from Inlet #1 into the basin. (Previous Comment 59) The tailwater elevation of the
basin in the 100-year storm must be included in the storm sewer conveyance calculations for
pipe P-1 from Inlet #1.



64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

™/ /4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 13 of 19

Previous Comment 60 satisfied.

In accordance with Sections 365-17 and 365-19.A.(4), “for any of the activities regulated by this
chapter, the preliminary or final approval of subdivision and/or land development plans, the
issuance of any building or occupancy permit, or the commencement of any earth disturbance may
not proceed until the applicant or his/her agent has received written approval of a stormwater
management site plan from the municipality, an adequate erosion and sediment control plan review
by the Conservation District and an NPDES permit from the DEP, if required.” The Applicant
shall provide a copy of the Letter of Determination of Adequacy from the Monroe County
Conservation District, as well as any correspondence pertaining to the review. (Previous
Comment 61) The response letter acknowledges the comment.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(14), the stormwater site plan shall contain “The total tract
boundary and size with accurate distances to hundreds of a foot and bearings to the nearest
second.” The PCSM Plan shall include the tract boundary information. (Previous Comment 62)
The tract boundary with bearings and distances must still be provided on the PCSM plan.

In accordance with Section 365-19.B.(19), the stormwater site plan shall contain “A fifteen-foot-
wide access easement to and around all stormwater management facilities that would provide
ingress to and egress from a public right-of-way.” This easement shall be provided on the plan. In
the alternative, the plan may note a blanket easement for access. (Previous Comment 63) The
plans now propose an easement for the stormwater management facilities; however, the
depiction on the PCSM plan must be made more legible as it is difficult to verify the extent of
the stormwater management easement vs. the access and utility easement.

Per Section 365-19.D.(1), “All stormwater management facilities must be located on a plan and
described in detail. Plan and profile drawings of all SWM BMPs, including drainage structures,
pipes, open channels, and swales.” Profiles for the drainage channel and storm pipe must be
provided on the plans. A cross-section, drawn to scale, shall be provided through the berm of the
proposed detention/infiltration basin. The cross section shall depict key elements including the
outlet pipe, key trench, anti-seep collars, etc. (Previous Comment 64) Profiles and cross-sections
have been added to the plan set. Our comments with respect to those are as follows:

a. The profile through the basin berm on Sheet C-15 does not appear to correctly reflect
the size of the anti-seep collar. The profile shows the collar to be 4 feet, but the detail
indicates the collar to be 63.6 inches. The profile shall be drawn accurately.

b. The profile on Sheet C-15 must be revised to show the core.

c. The profile on Sheet C-15 must be revised to accurately show the key trench using the
dimensions from the detail.

d. A profile of Pipe P-3 must be provided.

e. The location of the depicted Basin Cross-Section on Sheet C-16 must be indicated on the
plan view.

In accordance with Section 365-27.A., “For subdivisions and land developments, the applicant
shall provide a performance guarantee to the municipality for the timely installation and proper
construction of all stormwater management controls as required by the approved stormwater



70.

71

w/

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 14 of 19

management site plan in the amount and method of payment provided for in Chapter 390,
Subdivision and Land Development.” A construction cost estimate for the stormwater
management facilities shall be provided to the Township to determine the amount to be required
for the performance guarantee. The performance guarantee shall be provided to the Township, as
required by this Section. (Previous Comment 65) The response letter acknowledges the
comment.

Previous Comment 66 satisfied.

In accordance with Section 365-29., “Prior to approval of the site's stormwater management site
plan, the applicant shall sign and record a maintenance agreement in form and substance
satisfactory to the Board of Commissioners, covering all stormwater control facilities that are to
be privately owned.” This shall be completed as required by this Section. (Previous Comment 67)
The response letter acknowledges the comment.

OTHER ORDINANCE COMMENTS

12,

Per Section 220-8.B., “Slopes greater than 3:1 are allowed but require stabilization with vegetated
E&S matting, appropriately sized stone, or other approved stabilization method. Design
calculations prepared by a registered professional land surveyor, engineer, or registered landscape
architect demonstrating the stability of the stabilization method should be provided along with all
applicable details.” (New Comment) The revised plans show proposed slopes along the proposed
access road/driveway at 2:1 slopes. The stability of the proposed slopes must be addressed on
the plans and in the supporting calculations.

Per Section 220-8.C., “Edges of newly created slopes shall be a minimum of five feet from
property lines, ultimate/future right-of-way lines of streets, and easements to permit the normal
rounding of the edge without encroachment on the abutting property, right-of-way, or easement.”
The submitted plans show proposed grading less than 5-feet from property lines. The grading
must be revised accordingly, or an easement obtained from the owners of this portion of Sky View
Drive. (Previous Comment 68) The response letter states, “GIS data was originally
supplemented for this parcel. Surveyed information has now been provided on the plans and the
proposed grading is greater than 5-feet from the property line.” The plan still reflects grading
at the common property line with Sky View Drive and within the Sky View Drive parcel which
is not owned by the Applicant and must be revised accordingly.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

74.

75.

76.

T

Previous Comment 69 satisfied.

Previous Comment 70 satisfied.

Previous Comment 71 satisfied.

Previous Comment 72 satisfied.



78.

79,

80.

81.

83:

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024
Page 15 of 19

The List of Drawings on the Cover Sheet shall identify the plans to be recorded including which
sheets will be considered as the PCSM plans. (Previous Comment 73) The response letter
acknowledges the comment, but the sheets to be recorded have not been identified.

Previous Comment 74 satisfied.

Previous Comment 75 satisfied.

Previous Comment 76 satisfied.

Previous Comment 77 satisfied.

Previous Comment 78 satisfied.

The “existing wetlands”, “proposed gravel™ and the “proposed grass™ hatching in the legend and
on the plan on Sheet C-05 and other sheets are too similar to each other and are difficult to
differentiate in the plan view. The hatching types shall be revised for clarity. (Previous Comment
79) Although the hatching has been revised, the “existing wetlands” and “proposed grass” are
still too similar to each other to differentiate.

Previous Comment 80 satisfied.

Previous Comment 81 satisfied.

Detailed information regarding the material composition of the “Aggregate Road Section™ on
Sheet C-10 must be provided. (Previous Comment 82) The Aggregate Road Section which is
now on Sheet C-11 depicts one (1) layer of aggregate but has two (2) different labels. This shall
be clarified.

Sheet ES-05 and Narrative page 6 reference Sheet ES-07 for seeding/stabilization. This
information actually appears on Sheet ES-05. The references must be updated accordingly.
(Previous Comment 83) Note 39 on Sheet ES-05 must still be revised.

Previous Comment 84 satisfied.

Previous Comment 85 satisfied.

Previous Comment 86 satisfied.

Previous Comment 87 satisfied.

Previous Comment 88 satisfied.

Previous Comment 89 satisfied.

Previous Comment 90 satisfied.



96.

9.

98.

99.

™/ /4

Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 16 of 19

Previous Comment 91 satisfied.

The Point of Interest/Study Point analyzed in drainage calculations shall be clearly labeled on the
Drainage Area Plans. (Previous Comment 92) The response letter states, “POIs have been
labeled on the Drainage Area Plans.” The submitted plans do not have the POls labeled and
must still be revised.

Previous Comment 93 satisfied.

Previous Comment 94 satisfied.

PLAN REVISION COMMENTS

100.

101.

104.

105.

106.

107.

108.

The tax parcel ID number for the parcel appears to be incorrect. County records show the parcel
number to be 12.16.1.24, not 12.6.1.24. This shall be corrected. (New Comment)

The latest revision date of the wetland report shall be added to the reference in Note 6 on Sheet C-
0l. (New Comment)

The Temporary Protective Fence shown on Sheet C-04 uses a line type similar to that used for
existing “chain link fence™ in the legend. This shall be clarified within the legend. (New Comment)

The Temporary Protective Fence shown on Sheet C-04 crosses through the existing driveway. [t
shall be clarified if the existing driveway is to be used during construction and if so, the fence shall
be configured accordingly to allow access. (Vew Comment)

The Temporary Protective Fence must also be placed along the actual proposed limits of tree
clearing as depicted on the plans. This includes the area around the lease area and across the
existing driveway from the lease area where additional trees are shown to be removed. (New
Comment)

The design engineer shall clarify if the portion of the wetlands being crossed by the existing
driveway is being restored. (New Comment)

The plans contain numerous line types that are not consistent with the legends and must be
corrected. Specifically, “subject property line”, “adj. property line”, and the heavy lines on the
property line at Sky View Drive and setback 30 feet from the same property line. These shall be
consistent and clarified where necessary. (New Comment)

Sheet C-05 contains a reference to a “Point of Beginning (P.O.B.)” which, in the submitted legal
description, is at an iron pin. Any existing pins or monuments must be shown and labeled on the
plans. (New Comment)

The Limit of Disturbance (LOD) on Sheet C-06 does not match the limit of disturbance per the
demolition plan. The LOD on all plan sheets shall be consistent. (New Comment)



109.

110.

111.

114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

§. 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024
Page 17 of 19

The Limit of Disturbance (LOD) must include the disturbed area associated with the replacement
of Pipe P-3. (New Comment)

Restoration of Sky View Drive at the proposed utility crossing must be addressed on the plans.
(New Comment)

The grading of the swale on Sheet C-06 is missing contours at the top of the swale where it
intersects the lease area. The grading shall be corrected. (New Comment)

Contours reflecting a second swale are shown along the west side of Swale #1. These contours
appear to be incorrect and shall be reviewed and revised by the design engineer. (Vew Comiment)

The proposed swale consists of two (2) different segments per the calculations, and the segments
have different geometry and stabilization requirements. The plans shall clearly identify each
segment and its design properties. (New Comment)

A 220-foot line dashed line, which matches a variety of line types in the legend on Sheet C-06, is
shown to the east of the proposed access road/driveway. The identification of this line shall be
clarified. (New Comment)

The Key Trench detail on Sheet C-09 is partially cut off. Additionally, the dimensional table is
missing as are the referenced trash rack, anti-vortex, and riser base details. The referenced details
and dimensions are also missing from the Key Trench detail on Sheet ES-09. (New Comment)

A flared end section and rip-rap apron shall be provided for pipe P-3. (Vew Comment)

The outlet control structures shown on Sheets C-13, ES-08, and ES-09 are inconsistent and shall
be revised to be the same throughout. It is also unclear as to why the detail appears multiple times
in the plan set. (New Comment)

The graphic scale in the title block area of Sheets C-14, C-15, and C-16 does not match the scale
of the plan/profiles. The scales should be consistent. (NVew Comment)

The limits of tree clearing and the location of the temporary protective fence are inconsistent
between the two (2) Existing Features & Demo Plan sheets (C-04 and ES-01). The sheets must be
consistent. (New Comment)

The E&S Plan Sheet ES-2 shows only a single erosion and sediment control matting hatching. The
calculations specify two (2) different types of erosion control matting. (New Comment)

The anticipated project construction date on Sheet ES-05 should be updated. (New Comment)
It is unclear as to where the Temporary Access Drive Section detail on Sheet ES-06 is to be

utilized. The plans shall clearly identify the location of the temporary access drive. (New
Comment)



130.

133.

Pocono Township Planning Commission

% 1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower

Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024
Page 18 of 19

The ETE elevation of 1745.00 on the Detention/Infiltration Basin #1 Details on Sheet ES-08 is
inconsistent with the plans. All references must be consistent. (New Comment)

Step 3 in the Detention/Infiltration Basin #1 Sequence on Sheet ES-08 references orange
construction fence around the basin; however, the fence is not shown around the basin in the plan
views, only along the limit of disturbance. Since the fence in this application is to prevent
compaction of the basin bottom, it must be accurately depicted on the plans in addition to the LOD
fencing. (New Comment)

The WTE elevation of 1745.00 on the Embankment Section Along Emergency Spillway detail on
Sheet ES-08 is inconsistent with the plans. All references must be consistent. (New Comment)

The table associated with the Vegetated Swale detail on Sheet ES-08 does not match the plans or
the swale calculations. The table shall be revised to be consistent with both. (New Comment)

Unless the existing drive is to be removed, the Proposed Drainage Area Plan DA-02 is missing
impervious coverage in OSDA #2. (New Comment)

Tree removals along the south side of the lease area and on the opposite side of the driveway must
be considered on DA-02 and in the calculations. (New Commient)

Drainage area plans are required for the Ex. Swale and Swale #1/Inlet #1. It appears that the
calculations for Swale #1/Inlet #1 use proposed DA #1 and OSDA #2, but which may not be correct
based on the proposed site grading. (New Comment)

It is unclear why the Pond Report does not consider any infiltration. The design engineer shall
clarify the reason for not considering it and address how long it will take for the basin will fully

drain when full. (New Comment)

The pipe slopes for pipes P-2 and P-3 do not match between the report calculation and the plans.
The design engineer shall address the inconsistency. (New Comment)

The submitted closure report must be labeled with the name of the area being calculated. (New
Comment)

Closure calculations shall be submitted for the proposed stormwater easement. (New Comment)

The above comments represent a thorough and comprehensive review of the information submitted, with
the intent of giving the Township the best direction possible. However, due to the number and nature of
the comments in this review, the receipt of new information may generate new comments.

We recommend the above comments be addressed to the satisfaction of Pocono Township, prior to
approval of the Preliminary Land Development Plan.



Pocono Township Planning Commission

1124 Sky View Drive Monopine Tower
Preliminary Land Development Plan Review No. 2
August 15, 2024

Page 19 of 19

¥

In order to facilitate an efficient re-review of revised plans, the Design Engineer shall provide a letter,
addressing item by item, their action in response to each of our comments.

If you should have any questions regarding the above, please call me.

Sincerely,

SO
Jon S.Tresslar, P.E., P.L.S.
Township Engineer

JST/arm

cc: Pocono Township Board of Commissioners
Jerrod Belvin — Township Manager
Lindsay Scerbo — Zoning Officer
Leo DeVito, Esq. — Township Solicitor
Lisa Pereira, Esq. — Broughal & DeVito, LLP
SBA Towers X, LLC — Applicant
Donald & Norma Beaty — Property Owners
Cassidy J. Robinson, P.E. — LaBella Associates, PC
Kristina Heaney — Monroe County Conservation District
Amy R. Montgomery, P.E. - T&M Associates
Melissa E. Hutchison, P.E. — T&M Associates

G:\Projects\POCO'R0660\Correspondence'Review Letters\t 124 Sky View Dr Monopine Tower_LD.Review.No.2.docx



	10-15-24_Agenda_Planning_Commission
	doc04023020241010140907

